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Chapterl
Introduction to Accounting Standards

Question1

“Accounting Standards standardize diverse accounting policies with a view to eliminate the non- com-
parability of financial statements and improve the reliability of financial statements.” Discuss and ex-
plain the benefits of Accounting Standards. (MTP 5 Marks, Nov "21 & April ‘23) (PYP 5 Marks Nov'18,)

Answer 1

Accounting Standards standardize diverse accounting policies with a view to eliminate the non- compa-
rability of financial statements and improve the reliability of financial statements. Accounting Standards
provide a set of standard accounting policies, valuation norms and disclosure requirements. Accounting
standards aim at improving the quality of financial reporting by promoting comparability, consistency and
transparency, in the interests of users of financial statements. The following are the benefits of Accounting
Standards:

(i) Standardization of alternative accounting treatments: Accounting Standards reduce to a
reasonable extent confusing variations in the accounting treatment followed for the purpose
of preparation of financial statements.

(ii) Requirements for additional disclosures: There are certain areas where important is not
statutorily required to be disclosed. Standards may call for disclosure beyond that re-
quired bylaw.

(iii) comparability of financial statements: The application of accounting standards would fa-
cilitate comparison of financial statements of different companies situated in India and fa-
cilitate comparison, to a limited extent, of financial statements of companies situated in
different partsof the world. However, it should be noted in this respect that differences in the
institutions, traditions and legal systems from one country to another give rise to differences
in Accounting Standards adopted in different countries.

Explain the objective of ‘Accounting Standards’ in brief. State the advantages of setting Accounting
standards. (PYP 4 Marks Nov '22, Old & New SM)

Answer 2
Accounting Standards are the written policy documents issued by Government relating to various aspects
of measurement, treatment, presentation and disclosure of accounting transactions and events.
Following are the objectives of Accounting Standards:
a. Accounting Standards harmonize the diverse accounting policies and practices fol-
lowed bydifferent companies in India.

b.  Accounting Standards facilitate the preparation of financial statements and make them
comparable.

¢.  Accounting Standards give a sense of faith and reliability to the users.
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The main advantages of setting accounting standards are as follows:
a. Accounting Standards make the financial statements of different companies compa-
rable whichhelps investors in decision making.
b.  Accounting Standards prevent any misleading accounting treatment.
¢.  Accounting Standards prevent manipulation of data by the management.
Accounting Standards for non-corporate entities in India are issued by
a. Central Govt b. State Govt.
c. Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. d. MCA
Ans: (C)
Accounting Standards
a. Harmonies accounting policies and eliminate b. Improve the reliability of financial
the non-comparability of financial state- statements.
ments.
c. Both (a) and (b). d. Manipulate the data for the manage-
ment.
Ans: (C)
Itis essential to standardize the accounting principles and policies in order to ensure
a. Transparency b. Consistency.
c. Comparability d. All the above
Ans: (d)
Which committee is responsible for approval of accounting standards and their modification for
thepurpose of applicability to companies?
a. NFRA. b. MCA.
c. Central Government Advisory Committee. d. IASB
Ans: (b)
\_ J
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Global Standards facilitate

a. Cross border flow of money. b. Comparability of financial statements

c. Uniformity and Transparency of finan- d. All the three
cialstatements

Ans: (d)

Theoretical Question and Answer
.|

Question 8

Explain the objective of “Accounting Standards” in brief. State the advantages of setting Accounting
Standards.
Answer 8

Accounting Standards are the written policy documents issued by Government relating to various as-
pectsof measurement, treatment, presentation and disclosure of accounting transactions and events.

Following are the objectives of Accounting Standards:

a. Accounting Standards harmonize the diverse accounting policies and practices followed by
differentcompanies in India.

b. Accounting Standards facilitates the preparation of financial statements and make them
comparable.

c. Accounting Standards give a sense of faith and reliability to the users.
The main advantage of setting accounting standards are as follows:

a. Accounting Standards makes the financial statements of different companies comparable
which helpsinvestors in decision making.

b. Accounting Standards prevent any misleading accounting treatment.

c. Accounting Standards prevent manipulation of data by the management.

Question 9

Briefly explain the process of issuance of Indian Accounting Standards.

Answer9

Due to the recent stream of overseas acquisitions by Indian companies, there is need for adoption of
high- quality standards to convince foreign enterprises about the financial standing as also the disclo-
sure and governance standards of Indian acquirers.

The Government of India in consultation with the ICAI decided to converge and not to adopt IFRSs issued
by the IASB. The decision of convergence rather than adoption was taken after the detailed analysis
of IFRSs requirements and extensive discussion with various stakeholders.

The ICAI has worked towards convergence of global accounting standards by considering the applica-
tion of IFRS in Indian corporate environment. Recognising the growing need of full convergence of Ind AS
with IFRS, ICAI constituted a Task Force to examine various issues involved.
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Ind AS are issued by the Central Government of India under the supervision and control of ASB of ICAI
andin consultation with NFRA. NFRA recommends these standards to the MCA and MCA has to spell out
the accounting standards applicable for companies in India.

Question 10
Explain the significance of emergence of IFRS as Global Standards.

Answer10

Global Standards facilitate cross border flow of money, global listing in different bourses and com-
parability of financial statements. Global Standards improve the ability of investors to compare
investments on a global basis and thus lowers their risk of errors of judgment. It facilitates accounting
and reporting for companies with global operations and eliminates some costly requirements say
reinstatement of financial statements.

What do you mean by Carve outs/ins in Ind AS? Explain.

Answer1l

Certain changes have been made in Ind AS considering the economic environment of the country,
whichis different as compared to the economic environment presumed to be in existence by IFRS.
These differences are due to differences in economic conditions prevailing in India. These differenc-
es which arein deviation to the accounting principles and practices stated in IFRS, are commonly
known as ‘Carve- outs’. Additional guidance given in Ind AS over and above what is given in IFRS, is
termed as ‘Carvein’.
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Framework for Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements

Explain in brief, the alternative measurement bases, for determining the value at which an element
canbe recognized in the Balance Sheet or Statement of Profit and Loss. [MTP 5 Marks March '19 & April
19, March'21,0ct‘23] (RTP Nov 18)

Answer1

The Framework for Recognition and Presentation of Financial statements recognizes four alternative
measurement bases for the purpose of determining the value at which an element can be recognized
in the balance sheet or statement of profit and loss. These bases are: (i)Historical Cost; (ii)Current cost
(iii) Realizable (Settlement) Value and (iv) Present Value.

A brief explanation of each measurement basis is as follows:

1. Historical Cost: Historical cost means acquisition price. According to this, assets are recorded at
an amount of cash or cash equivalent paid or the fair value of the asset at the time of acquisi-
tion. Liabilities are generally recorded at the amount of proceeds received in exchange for the
obligation.

2. Current Cost: Current cost gives an alternative measurement basis. Assets are carried out at the
amount of cash or cash equivalent that would have to be paid if the same or an equivalent
asset was acquiredcurrently. Liabilities are carried at the undiscounted amount of cash or cash
equivalents that would be required to settle the obligation currently.

3. Realizable (Settlement) Value: As per realizable value, assets are carried at the amount of cash
or cash equivalents that could currently be obtained by selling the assets in an orderly disposal.
Liabilities are carried at their settlement values; i.e. the undiscounted amount of cash or cash
equivalents paid to satisfy the liabilities in the normal course of business.

4. Present Value: Under present value convention, assets are carried at present value of future net
cash flows generated by the concerned assets in the normal course of business. Liabilities un-
der this convention are carried at present value of future net cash flows that are expected to be
required to settle the liability in the normal course of business.

“One of the characteristics of financial statements is neutrality”- Do you agree with this statement?
Comment. [MTP March ‘18, 5 Marks, PYP Nov '18 5 Marks, Old & New SM)

Answer 2

Yes, one of the characteristics of financial statements is neutrality. To be reliable, the information con-
tained in financial statement must be neutral, that is free from bias.

Financial Statements are not neutral if by the selection or presentation of information, the focus of anal-
ysis could shift from one area of business to another thereby arriving at a totally different conclusion on
the business results.

For example, if the assets of a company primarily consist of trade receivables and insurance claims and
\_ J
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the financial statements do not specify that the insurance claims have been lying unrealized for a number
of years or that a few key trade receivables have not given balance confirmation certificates, an errone-
ous conclusion may be drawn on the liquidity of the company. Financial statements are said to depict the
true and fair view of the business of the organization by virtue of neutrality.

Opening Balance Sheet of Mr. A is showing the aggregate value of assets, liabilities and equity Rs. 8
lakh, Rs. 3 lakh and Rs. 5 lakh respectively. During accounting period, Mr. A has the following transac-
tions:

(1) Earned 10% dividend on 2,000 equity shares held of Rs. 100 each
(2) Paid Rs. 50,000 to creditors for settiement of Rs. 70,000
(3) Rent of the premises is outstanding Rs. 10,000

(4) Mr. A withdrew Rs. 9,000 for his personal use.

You are required to show the effect of above transactions on Balance Sheet in the form of Assets -
Liabilities = Equity after each transaction. (MTP 5 Marks April 21, April 22, Old & New SM)

Answer 3
Effects of each transaction on Balance sheet of the trader is shown below:
Transactions Assets Rs. |- Liabilities  Rs.| = EqQuity Rs.lakh
lakh lakh
Opening 8.00 - 3.00 = 5.00
(1) Dividend earned 8.20 - 3.00 = 5.20
(2) Settlement of Creditors 7.70 - 2.30 = 5.40
(3) Rent Outstanding 7.70 - 2.40 = 5.30
(4) Drawings 7.61 - 2.40 = 5.21

State under which head the following accounts should be classified in Balance Sheet, as per Schedule
Illof the Companies Act, 2013:

(i) Share application money received in excess of issued share capital.
(ii)  Share option outstanding account.

(iii) Unpaid matured debenture and interest accrued thereon.

(iv) Uncalled liability on shares and other partly paid investments.

(v) Calls unpaid.

(vi) Intangible Assets under development.

(viij Money received against share warrant.

(viii) Cash equivalents. (MTP 4 Marks, Mar’22, 5 Marks, April19)
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Answer 4
(i) Current Liabilities/Other Current Liabilities
(ii) Shareholders’ Fund | Reserve & Surplus

(iii) Current liabilities/Other Current Liabilities

(iv) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

(v) Shareholders’ Fund |/ Share Capital

(vi) Property, Plant & EQuipment

(vii) Shareholders’ Fund/Money received against share warrants
(viii)  Current Assets

How will a company classify its investment in preference shares, which are convertible into eq-
uityshares within one year from the balance sheet date? Will it classify the investment as a current
asset or a non-current asset? Explain. (MTP 5 Marks, March’19, Oct’18, Aug’18, Mar'18)

Answer5

In accordance with the Schedule I, an investment realizable within 12 months from the reporting date is
classified as a current asset. Such realisation should be in the form of cash or cash equivalents, rather
than through conversion of one asset into another non-current asset. Hence, company must classify
such an investment as a non-current asset, unless it expects to sell the preference shares or the equity
shares on conversion and realise cash within 12 months.

Question 6

M/s Shyam, a proprietorship firm runs a business of stationary items. It provides you the following
information relating to assets and liabilities:

Assets & Liabilities Ason 01.04.2019 Ason 31.03.2020
Creditors 20,000 15,000
Outstanding Expenses 600 800
Property, Plant & Equipment 12,000 13,000
Stock 10,000 12,000
Cashin hand 7,500 2,000
Cash at Bank 2,500 10,000
Debtors ? 18,000
\. J
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Details of the year's transactions are as follows:
(1) Discounts allowed to Debtor 4,000
(2) Returns from debtors 1,450
(3) Bad debts 500
(4) Total sales (Cash and Credit) 72,000
(5) Discount allowed by creditors 700
(6) Returns to creditors 400
(7) Receipts from debtors paid into Bank 76,000
(8) Cash purchases 1,000
(9) Expenses paid by cash 9,000
(10) Drawings by cheque 500
(m) Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment by cheque 4,000
(12) Cash deposited into bank 5,000
(13) Cash withdrawn from bank 9,000
(14) Payments to creditors by cheque 60,000

No Property, Plant & Equipment were sold during the year. Any difference in cash account to be considered
as cash sales. You are required to prepare Trading and Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31.03.2020
and the Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2020 from the given information. (MTP 16 Marks, Oct 21, May'20)
Answer 6

In the books of M/s Shyam Trading and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Particulars E4 g Particulars g g
To Opening stock 10,000 By Sales:
To Purchases: Cash 500
Cash 1,000 Credit 71,500
Credit (W.N. 3) 56,100 Less: Returns -1450 70,550
57,100 By Closing Stock 12,000
Less: Returns 400 56,700
To Gross Profit c/d 15,850
82,550 82,550
To Discount allowed 4,000 By Gross profit b/d 15,850
To Bad Debts 500 By Discount received 700
U J
Crack ur CA CS CMA Exams in1Attempt-Join CA Mentoring Program if you are unable to manage/focus on ur studies.
— — — —

Batch:Working Students(Job) Batch2: Doing Classes Batch 3: Full time available for Studies Batch 4:Married Students Visit:

CAmentoringprogram.org | +917890770777 | https://t.me/caraviagarwaloriginal all subjects free Question


https://api.whatsapp.com/send/?phone=917890770777&text&type=phone_number&app_absent=0
https://t.me/caraviagarwaloriginal
https://camentoringprogram.org/

Dr. CA Ravi Agarwal's CA Inter Accounts Compiler 6.0

Paper 1-Advanced Accounting

Score 70+ in Accounts 11

(

-

\_

To General expenses (W.N. 9,200 By Net Loss (balancing 150
5) fig.)
To Depreciation (W.N. 4) 3,000
16,700 16,700
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020
Liabilities @ Assets g
Capital (W.N.1) 39,850 Property, Plant & Equipment 12,000
Less: Net loss 150 Add: New asset 4,000
39,700 16,000
Less: Drawings 500 39,200 | Less: Depreciation 3,000 13,000
Sundry credi- 15,000 | Stockin trade 12,000
tors
Expensesout- 800 | Sundry debtors (W.N. 2) 18,000
standing
Cashin hand 2,000
Cashin Bank 10,000
55,000 55,000
Working Notes:
(1) Ascertainment of Opening Capital - Statement of Affairs as at1.4.19
Liabilities g Assets g
Sundry creditors 20,000 Property, Plant & 12,000
Equipment
Outstanding expenses 600 Stock 10,000
Prasad’s Capital Debtors 28,450
(Balancing figure) 39,850 Cashinhand 7,500
Cash at Bank 2,500
60,450 60,450
2. Sundry Debtors Account
© ©
To Balance b/d (ball. fig) 28,450 By Cash 76,000
71,500 By Discount 4,000
To Sales (72,000 - 500) By Returns (sales) 1,450
By Bad debts 500

J
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By Balance c/d (given) 18,000
99,950 99,950
3. Sundry Creditors Account
4 4
To Bank — Payments 60,000 By Balance b/d 20,000
To Discount 700 By Purchases - credit 56,100
To Returns 400 By (Balancing figure)
To Balance c/d (closing
balance) 15.000
76,100 76,100
4. Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment
g
Opening balance of Property, Plant & Equipment 12,000
Add: Additions 4,000
16,000
Less: Closing balance of Property, Plant & Equipment (13,000)
Depreciation 3,000
5. Expenses to be shown in profit and loss account
Expenses (in cash) 9,000
Add: Outstanding of 2020 800
9,800
Less: Outstanding of 2019 600
9,200
6. Cash and Bank Account
Particulars Cash Bank Cash Bank
4 4 4 4
To balance b/d 7,500 2,500 By Purchases 1,000 -
To debtors - 76,000 By Expenses 9,000
By Property,
To Banks E11 (c) 9,000 - Plant & 4,000
Equipment
To Cash (c) - 5,000 By Drawings 500
J
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-
To sales (balancing 500 - By Creditors 60,000
as cash sales)

By Cash (C) 9,000

By Bank (C) 5,000

By Balance c/d 2,000 10,000
17,000 83,500 17,000 83,500

Sheet (Extract) as on 31st March ,2022

The following extract of Balance Sheet of Ram Ltd. (a non-investment company) was obtained:Balance

Liabilities g

Issued and subscribed capital:

20,000, 14% Preference shares of 100 each fully paid 20,00,000
1,20,000 Equity shares of €100 each, Z 80 paid-up 96,00,000
Capitalreserves (21,50,000 is revaluation reserve) 1,95,000
Securities premium 50,000
15% Debentures 65,00,000
Unsecured loans: Public deposits repayable after one year 3,70,000
Investmentin shares, debentures, etc. 75,00,000
Profit and Loss account (debit balance) 15,00,000

2013.(MTP 5 Marks, Sep 22 & Oct ‘23)

Answer?7

Computation of Effective capital

You are required to compute Effective Capital as per the provisions of Schedule V to Companies Act,

®

Paid-up share capital-

20,000, 14% Preference shares 20,00,000
1,20,000 Equiity shares 96,00,000
Capital reserves (excluding revaluation reserve) 45,000
Securities premium 50,000
15% Debentures 65,00,000
Public Deposits 3,70,000
() 1,85,65,000
Investments 75,00,000
Profit and Loss account (Dr. balance) 15,00,000

\_
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(B) 90,00,000 | )
Effective capital (A-B) 95,65,000

Futura Ltd. had the following items under the head “Reserves and Surplus” in the Balance Sheet as on
3ist March, 2022:

Amount Zinlakhs

Securities Premium Ac- 80
count

Capital Reserve 60
General Reserve 90

The company had an accumulated loss of 2 250 lakhs on the same date, which it has disclosed under the
head “Statement of Profit and Loss” as asset in its Balance Sheet. Comment on accuracy of this treat-
ment in line with Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. (MTP 4 Marks Oct '22)

Answer 8

Schedule IIl to the Companies Act, 2013 provides that debit balance of Statement of Profit and Loss (after
all allocations and appropriations) shall be shown as a negative figure under the head ‘Surplus’. Similarly,
the balance of ‘Reserves and Surplus’, after adjusting negative balance of surplus, shall be shown under the
head ‘Reserves and Surplus’ even if the resulting figure is in the negative. In this case, the debit balance of
profit and loss i.e. 250 lakhs exceeds the total of all the reserves i.e. T 230 lakhs. Therefore, balance of ‘Re-
serves and Surplus’ after adjusting debit balance of profit and loss is negative by 2 20 lakhs, which should be
disclosed on the face of the balance sheet. Thus the treatment done by the company is incorrect.

The following is the Balance Sheet of Manish and Suresh as on1st April, 2021:

Equity and Liabilities g Assets g

Capital Accounts: Building 1,00,000

Manish 1,50,000 Machinery 65,000

Suresh 75,000 Stock 40,000

Creditors for goods 30,000 Debtors 50,000

Creditors for expenses 25,000 Bank 25,000
2,80,000 2,80,000

They give you the following additional information:

(i) creditors’ Velocity 1.5 month & Debtors’ Velocity 2 months. Here velocity indicates the no. of timesthe
creditors and debtors are turned over a year.

(ii) Stocklevelis maintained uniformly in value throughout all over the year.

(iii) Depreciation on machinery is charged @ 10%, Depreciation on building @ 5% in the current

year.
(iv) cost price will go up 15% as compared to last year and also sales in the current year will increase by
25% in volume. )—-
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/" (V) Rate of gross profitremains the same. )
(vi) Business Expenditures are Z 50,000 for the year. All expenditures are paid off in cash.

(vii) Closing stock is to be valued on LIFO Basis.

All sales and purchases are on credit basis and there are no cash purchases and sales.

You are required to prepare Trading, Profit and Loss Account, Trade Debtors Account and Trade Credi-
torsAccount for the year ending 31.03.2022.

(MTP 16 Marks April 23 & Nov “21)

Answer 9
Trading and Profit and Loss account for the year ending 31+t March, 2022
Particulars Rs. Particulars Rs.
To Opening Stock 40,000 By Sales 4,31,250
To Purchases (Working Note) 3,45,000 | By Closing Stock 40,000
To Gross Profit ¢/d(20% on 86,250
sales)
4,71,250 4,71,250
To Business Expenses 50,000 | By Gross Profit b/d 86,250
To Depreciation on:
Machinery 6,500
Building 5,000 11,500
To Net profit 24,750
86,250 86,250
Trade Debtors Account
Particulars Rs. Particulars Rs.
To Balance b/d 50,000 | By Bank (bal. fig.) 4,09,375
To Sales 4,31250 | ByBalance c/d (1/60f 71,875
4,31,250)
4,81,250 4,81,250

Trade Creditors Account

Particulars Rs. Particulars Rs.
To Bank (Balancing figure) 3,31,875 | By Balance b/d 30,000
To Balance c/d/ (1/8 of Rs. 4325 | By Purchases 3,45,000
3,45,000)

3,75,000 3,75,000

Working Note:

\_ J
Crack ur CACS CMA Exams in1Attempt-Join CA Mentoring Program if you are unable to manage/focus on ur studies.
L L L L |

Batch1:Working Students(Job) Batch2: Doing Classes Batch 3: Full time available for Studies Batch 4:Married Students Visit

CAmentoringprogram.org | +917890770777 | https://t.me/caraviagarwaloriginal all subjects free Question


https://api.whatsapp.com/send/?phone=917890770777&text&type=phone_number&app_absent=0
https://t.me/caraviagarwaloriginal
https://camentoringprogram.org/

Dr. CA Ravi Ayarwal's CA Inter Accounts Compiler 6.0 Score 70+ in Accounts 16

Paper 1-Advanced Accounting

( Rs. )
(i) Calculation of Rate of Gross Profit earned during previous year
A Sales during previous year (= 50,000 x 12/2) 3,00,000
B Purchases (Rs. 30,000 x 12/1.5) 2,40,000
C | Costof Goods Sold (Rs. 40,000 + Rs. 2,40,000 — Rs. 40,000) 2,40,000
D Gross Profit (A-C) 60,000
E 20%
Rate of Gross Profit X100
(ii) Calculation of sales and Purchases during current year Rs.
A Cost of goods sold during previous year 2,40,000
B Add: Increases in volume @ 25 % 60,000
3,00,000
C Add: Increase in cost @ 15% 45,000
D Cost of Goods Sold during Current Year 3,45,000
E Add: Gross profit @ 25% on cost (20% on sales) 86,250
F Sales for current year [D+E] 4,31,250

Question10

What is meant by ‘Measurement’? What are the bases of measurement of Elements of Financial
Statements? Explain in brief. (RTP Nov 21, PYP 5 Marks Dec '21)

Answer10

Measurement is the process of determining money value at which an element can be recognized in the
balance sheet or statement of profit and loss. The framework recognizes four alternative measurement
bases for the purpose. These bases can be explained as:

Historical cost This is the Acquisition price. According to this, assets are recorded
at an amount of cash and cash equivalent paid or the fair value
of the assetsat time of acquisition.

Current Cost Assets are carried out at the amount of cash or cash equivalent
that would have to be paid if the same or an equivalent asset was
acquired currently. Liabilities are carried at the undiscounted
amount of cash or cash equivalents that would be required to set-
tle the obligation currently.

Realizable (Settlement) For assets, amount currently realizable on sale of the asset in an
Value orderly disposal. For liabilities, this is the undiscounted amount
expected to bepaid on settlement of liability in the normal course
of business.

] - -
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( Present Value Assets are carried at present value of future net cash flows gener- )
ated bythe concerned assets in the normal course of business.
Liabilities are carried at present value of future net cash flows
that are expected to berequired to settle the liability in the normal
course of business.
In preparation of financial statements, all or any of the measurement basis can be used in varying
combinations to assign money values to financial items.
(a) withregardtofinancial statements, name any five qualitative characteristics and elements. (RTP
May’21)
(b) Aman started abusiness on st April 2020 with Rs.24,00,000 represented by 1,20,000 units of Rs. 20
each.During the financial year ending on 31st March, 2021, he sold the entire stock for Rs. 30 each.
In order to maintain the capital intact, calculate the maximum amount, which can be withdrawn
by Aman in the year 2020-21 if Financial Capital is maintained at historical cost. (RTP May’2],
Nov'19) (Same concept different figures Old & New SM, RTP Nov'18)
Answer 11
(a)
(i) Qualitative Characteristics of Financial Statements: Understandability, Relevance,
Comparability, Reliability& Faithful Representation
(ii) Elements of Financial Statements:
Asset, Liability, Equity, Income/Gain and Expense/Loss
(b)
Particulars Financial Capital Maintenance at
Historical Cost (Rs.)
Closing equity 36,00,000 represented by cash
(Rs. 30 x1,20,000 units)
Opening equity 1,20,000 units x Rs. 20 = 24,00,000
Permissible drawings to keep Capital intact 12,00,000 (36,00,000 — 24,00,000)
With regard to financial statements name any four.
(i) Users
(ii) Qualitative characteristics
(iii) Elements (RTP Nov 20, RTP May 19, MTP 5 Marks Mar’23)
Answer 12
(i) Users of financial statements:
Investors, Employees, Lenders, Supplies/Creditors, Customers, Government & Public
-\ J
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4 )

(ii) Qualitative Characteristics of Financial Statements:
Understandability, Relevance, Comparability, Reliability & Faithful Representation
(iii) Elements of Financial Statements:

Asset, Liability, Equity, Income/Gain and Expense/Loss

A Ltd. has entered into a binding agreement with Gamma Ltd. to buy a custom-made machine
Rs.1,00,000. At the end of 20X1-X2, before delivery of the machine, A Ltd. had to change its method of
production. The new method will not require the machine ordered and it will be scrapped after delivery.
The expected scrap value is nil.

You are required to advise the accounting treatment and give necessary journal entry in the year 20X1-
X2.(RTP May’20, May’23 & Nov ‘23)

Answer13

A liability is recognized when outflow of economic resources in settlement of a present obligation can be
anticipated and the value of outflow can be reliably measured. In the given case, A Ltd. should recognize
a liability of Rs.1,00,000 to Gamma Ltd.

When flow of economic benefit to the enterprise beyond the current accounting period is considered
improbable, the expenditure incurred is recognized as an expense rather than as an asset. In the present-
case, flow of future economic benefit from the machine to the enterprise is improbable. The entire amount
of purchase price of the machine should be recognized as an expense.

Journalentry

Loss on change in production method Dr. 1,00,000

To Gamma Ltd. 1,00,000
(Loss due to change in production method)

Profit and loss A/c Dr. 1,00,000

To Loss on change in production method 1,00,000

(Loss transferred to profit and loss account)

Question 14
What are fundamental accounting assumptions?  (RTP May 19)

Answer 14

Fundamental Accounting Assumptions: Accrual, Going Concern and Consistency

Explain main elements of Financial Statements. (RTP May 18) (PYP5 Marks May '18)

Answer15

Elements of Financial Statements

The Framework for preparation and Presentation of financial statements classifies items of financial
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4 )
statements can be classified in five broad groups depending on their economic characteristics: Asset,
Liability, EqQuity, Income/Gain and Expense/Loss.

Asset Resource controlled by the enterprise as a result of past events from
which future economic benefits are expected to flow to the enterprise

Liability Present obligation of the enterprise arising from past events, thesettle-
ment of which is expected to result in an outflow of a resource

embodying economic benefits.

Equity Residual interest in the assets of an enterprise after deducting all its
liabilities.
Income/gain Increase in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form ofinflows

or enhancement of assets or decreases in liabilities that result in increase in eq-
uity other than those relating to contributions from equityparticipants

Expense/loss Decrease in economic benefits during the accounting period in the formof out-
flows or depletions of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decrease in
equity other than those relating to distributions to equityparticipants.

Summarised Balance Sheet of Cloth Trader as on 31.03.2021 is given below:

Equity & Liabilities Amount Assets Amount (2)
()

Proprietor’s Capital 3,00,000 Property, plant and equipment 3,60,000
Profit & Loss Account 1,25,000 Closing Inventory 1,50,000
10% Loan Account 2,10,000 Tradereceivables 1,00,000
Trade payables 50,000 Deferred Expenses 50,000
Cash & Bank 25,000

6,85,000 6,85,000

Additional Information is as follows:

1. The remaining life of Property, plant and equipment is 8 years. The pattern of use of the
asset iseven. The net realisable value of Property, plant and equipment on 31.03.2022 was g
3,25,000.

2. Purchases and Sales in 2021-22 amounted to g 22,50,000 and g 27,50,000 respectively.

3. The cost and net realizable value of inventory on 31.03.2022 were g 2,00,000 and g 2,50,000re-
spectively.

4. Expenses including interest on loan for the year amounted to g 78,000.

5. Deferred Expenses are amortized equally over 5 years.

\_ J
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( 6. Sundry Debtors on 31.03.2022 are g 1,50,000 of which g 5,000 is doubtful. Collection of another & )

7. 25,000 depends on successful re-installation of certain product supplied to the customer;
8. Closing Sundry Creditors are g 75,000, likely to be settled at 10% discount.

9. Cash balance as on 31.03.2022 is  4,22,000.

(1) There is an early repayment penalty for the loan of  25,000. You are required to prepare: (Not
assuming going concern)

(2) Profit & Loss Account for the year 2021-22.

Balance Sheet as on 3Ist March, 2022. (RTP May'22, Nov'22, PYP 5 Marks May’19) (Same conceptdifferent
figures PYP 4 Marks Nov'20, Old & New SM)

Answer16
Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 2021-22(not assuming going concern)
Particulars Amount?Z Particulars Amount 2
To Opening Stock 1,50,000 By Sales 27,50,000
To Purchases 22,50,000 By Closing Stock 2,50,000
To Expenses 78,000 | By Trade payables 7,500
To Depreciation 35,000
To Provision for doubtful debts 30,000
To Deferred expenses 50,000
To Loan penalty 25,000
To Net Profit (b.f.) 3,89,500
30,07,500 30,07,500

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022 (not assuming going concern)

Liabilities Amount?Z Assets Amount 2
Capital 3,00,000 Fixed Assets 3,25,000
Profit & Loss A/c 5,14,500 Inventory 2,50,000
10% Loan 2,35,000 Trade receivables (less provision) 1,20,000
Trade payables 67,500 Deferred expenses Nil

Bank 4,22,000
11,17,000 11,17,000

Question 17

What are the qualitative characteristics of the Financial Statements which improve the usefulness of the
information furnished therein? (PYP 4 Marks Nov '20, Old & New SM)

\_ J
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( )
Answer 17

The qualitative characteristics are attributes that improve the usefulness of information provided in finan-
cialstatements. Financial statements are required to show a true and fair view of the performance, finan-
cial position and cash flows of an enterprise. The framework for Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements suggests that the financial statements should maintain the following four qualitative charac-
teristics to improve the usefulness of the information furnished therein.

1. Understandability: The financial statements should present information in a manner as to be
readily understandable by the users with reasonable knowledge of business and economic activ-
ities and accounting.

2. Relevance: The financial statements should contain relevant information only. Information, which
is likely toinfluence the economic decisions by the users, is said to be relevant. Such information
may help the users to evaluate past, present or future events or may help in confirming or correct-
ing past evaluations. The relevance of a piece of information should be judged by its materiality.

A piece of information is said to be material if its misstatement (i.e., omission or erroneous state-
ment) can influence economic decisions of a user.

3. Reliability: To be useful, the information must be reliable; that is to say, they must be free from
material error and bias. The information provided are not likely to be reliable unless transactions
and events reportedare faithfully represented. The reporting of transactions and events should
be neutral, i.e. free from biasand be reported on the principle of ‘substance over form’. The in-
formation in financial statements must be complete. Prudence should be exercised in reporting
uncertain outcome of transactions or events.

4. Comparability: Comparison of financial statements is one of the most frequently used and most
effective tools of financial analysis. The financial statements should permit both inter-firm and
intra-firm comparison. One essential requirement of comparability is disclosure of financial effect
of change in accounting policies.

Question18

Explain how financial capital is maintained at historical cost? Kishore started a business on 1st April,
2019 with 215,00,000 represented by 75,000 units of 20 each. During the financial year ending on 31st
March, 2020, he sold the entire stock for 2 30 each. In order to maintain the capital intact, calculate
the maximumamount, which can be withdrawn by Kishore in the year 2019-20 if Financial Capital is
maintained at historical cost. (PYP 4 Marks Jan 21)

Answer18

Financial capital maintenance at historical cost: Under this convention, opening and closing assets are
stated at respective historical costs to ascertain opening and closing equity. If retained profit is greater
than or equals to zero, the capital is said to be maintained at historical costs. This means the business will
have enough funds to replace its assets at historical costs. This is quite right as long as prices do not rise.

Maximum amount withdrawn by Kishore in year 2019-20 if financial capital is maintained at historical cost

\_ J
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4 )
Particulars Financial Capital Maintenance atHis-
torical Cost (2)
Closing equity (2 30 x 75,000 units) 22,50,000 represented by cash
Opening equity 75,000 units x 20 = 15,00,000
Permissible drawings to keep Capital intact 7,50,000 (22,50,000 - 15,00,000)

Thus 2 7,50,000 is the maximum amount that can be withdrawn by Kishore in year 2019-20 if financial
capital is maintained at historical cost.

Question 19

A trader commenced business on April 1, 2020 with 120,000, represented by 6000 units of a certain prod-
uct at Z 20 per unit. During the year 2020-21 he sold these units at Z 30/- per unit and had withdrawn 2
60,000. The price of the product at the end of financial year was Z 25/- per unit. Compute retained profit of
the trader under the concept of physical capital maintenance at current cost. Also, state, whether Answer
would be different if the trader had not withdrawn any amount. (PYP July’21, 5 Marks) (MTP 5 Marks Sep '23)

Answer19

Physical Capital Maintenance at Current Cost

In the given case, the specific price index applicable to the product is 125 (25/20X100). Current cost of
opening stock = (Z1,20,000 / 100) x 125 Or 6,000 unit’s x ¥ 25 = 1, 50,000

Current cost of closing cash = g 1,20,000 (Z1,80,000 - g 60,000) Opening equity at closing current costs
=g1,50,000

Closing equity at closing current costs = g 1, 20,000 Retained Profit = 21, 20,000 — 1, 50,000 = (-) 30,000
The negative retained profit indicates that the trader has failed to maintain his capital. The available fund
of 21, 20,000 is not sufficient to buy 6,000 units again at increased price of g 25 per unit. The drawings
shouldhave been restricted to & 30,000 (2 60,000 - & 30,000).

If the trader had not withdrawn any amount, then the Answer would have been as below:
Current cost of opening stock = 2 1, 80,000
Opening equity at closing current costs = g 1, 50,000Retained Profit = €1,80,000 - 1, 50,000 = E 30,000

If the trader had not withdrawn any amount, then the retained profit would have beeng 30,000.

Question 20

Mrs. A is showing the consolidated aggregate opening balance of equity, liabilities and assets of 2 6
lakh, 4lakh and 10 lakhs respectively. During the current year Mrs. A has the following transactions:

1. Received20% dividend on 10,000 equity shares of €10 each held as investment.
2. Theamount of 70,000 is paid to creditors for settlement of € 90,000.

3. Salaryis pending by 20,000.

4. Mrs.A'sdrawing 2 20,000 for her personal use.

You are required to prepare the statement of the effect of aforesaid each transaction on closing bal-
ancesheet in the form of Assets - Liabilities = Equity after each transaction. (PYP 5 Marks, Dec ‘21)
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Answer 20
Effect of each transaction on Balance sheet of Mrs. A is shown below:
Transactions Assets = Liabilities Equity
Zlakh Zlakh Zlakh
Opening 10.00 - 4.00 6.00
(1) Dividend earned 10.20 - 4.00 6.20
[10.00+0.20] [6.00+0.20]
(2) settlement of Creditors 9.50 - 3.10 6.40
[10.20-0.70] [4.00-0.90] [6.20+0.20]
(3) salary Outstanding 9.50 - 3.30 6.20
[3.10+0.20] [6.40-0.20]
(4) brawings 9.30 - 3.30 6.00
[9.50-0.20] [6.20-0.20]

As on Ist April, 2021 opening Balance Sheet of Mr. Mohanty is showing the aggregate value of Assets,
Liabilities and Equity g 12 Lakhs, 3 Lakhs and 9 lakhs respectively.

During the accounting period 01/04/2021 to 31/03/2022, Mr. Mohanty has the following transactions:
1. Aliability of 50,000 was finally settled at a discount of 2%.
2. Dividend earned @ 15% on 1,000 (F.V 100 each) Equity shares held @ 2 12,000.
3. Rent of the premises paid g 20,000.

4. Mr. Mohanty withdrew 2 10,000 for personal purposes and also withdrew Goods worth g 5,000 for
personal purposes.

5. 215000 were received against Bill Receivables.

You are required to show the effect of the above transactions on Balance Sheet in the form of Assets -
Liabilities = Equity equation after each transaction. .(PYP 4 Marks Nov '22)

Answer 21

Effects of each transaction on Balance sheet of the trader is shown below:

Assets Liabilities Equity
Transactions g lakh - g lakh = g lakh
Opening 12 - 3 = 9
(1) settlement of Creditors 12 - 0.49 3-050 9.0 + 0.01
1.51 - 25 = 9.01
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(" | (2) bividend earned 151 + 015 9.01+ 0.15 h

11.66 - 25 = 9.16

(3) Rent paid 1.66 -0.20 9.16 -0.20
11.46 - 25 = 8.96

(4) brawings .46 -0.15 8.96 -0.15
1.31 - 25 = 8.8

(5) *Money received against 11.31+0.15 -0.15

Bills receivables n.al _ 05 _ 8.8]

*No change as cash received from bills receivable will have impact on individual asset only (will reduce
billreceivables with corresponding increase in cash).

Mille started a business on 01.04.2022 with a capital of £15,00,000. She purchased g 1,500 units of stock
at 21,000 each. She sold the entire stock for 1,500 each unit till 31.03.2023.

You are required to calculate the maximum amount which can be withdrawn by Mille in order to keep
hercapital intact, if Financial Capital is maintained at:

(i) Historical Cost

(i) current Purchasing Power (opening index at 100 and closing index at 125)

(iii) Physical Capital Maintenance

(Price per unit at the end of year is 21,350) (PYP 5 Marks May ‘23)
Answer 22
Financial Capital Maintenance at historical Costs
Sr. No. Particulars Computation g
(i Opening Equity 1,500 x 1,000 15,00,000
(ii) Closing Equity 1,500 x 1,500 22,50,000
(iii) Maximum Drawing (i)~ (i) 7,50,000

Financial Capital Maintenance at current purchasing power

Sr. No. Particulars Computation g
(i) Opening Equity 1,500 x 1,000 x 125/100 18,75,000
(ii) Closing Equity 1,500 x 1,500 22,50,000
(iii) Maximum Drawing (i)~ (i) 3,75,000
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4 )
Financial Capital Maintenance at Physical Capital Maintenance
Sr. No. Particulars Computation 4
(i) Opening Equity 1500 x1,350 20,25,000
(ii) Closing Equity 1500 x 1,500 22,50,000
(iii) Maximum Drawing (i)- (i) 2,25,000

The ‘going concern’ concept assumes that

a. The business can continue in operational existence for the foreseeablefuture.

b. The business cannot continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

c. The business is continuing to be profitable.

d. The business cannot continue if it is not able to earn profits.

Ans: (a)

Question 24

Two principal qualitative characteristics of financial statements are

a. Understand ability and materiality b. Relevance and reliability
c. Relevance and materiality d. Comparability and materiality.
Ans: (b)

All of the following are components of financial statements except

a. Balance sheet b. Statement of Profit and loss
c. Human responsibility report d. Social responsibility report.
Ans:(c)

An accounting policy can be changed if the change is required

a. By statute or accounting standard b. For more appropriate presentation of
financial statements
c. Both (a) and (b) d. By statute as well as accounting stan-
dards. —
\_ /
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( Ans: (c)

Value of equity may change due to

a. Contribution from or Distribution b. Income earned
to equityparticipants

C. expenses incurred d. All the three.

Ans: (d)

Theoretical Questions and Answer
.|

Questions 28

What are the qualitative characteristics of the financial statements whichimprove the usefulness of the
information furnished therein?

Answer 28

The qualitative characteristics are attributes that improve the usefulness of information provided in finan-
cial statements. Understand ability; Relevance; Reliability; Comparability are the qualitative characteris-
tics of financial statements. For details, refer para 7 of the chapter.

Questions 29
“One of the characteristics of financial statements is neutrality”- Do you agree with this statement?

Answer 29

Yes, one of the characteristics of financial statements is neutrality. To be reliable, the informationcon-
tained in financial statement must be neutral, that is free from bias. Financial Statements are not

neutral if by the selection or presentation of information, the focus of analysis could shift from one areaof
business to another thereby arriving at a totally different conclusion on the business results.

Practical Questions Answer
.|

Questions 30

Mohan started a business on Ist April 20X1with €12,00,000 represented by 60,000 units of 220 each.
During the financial year ending on 31st March, 20X2, he sold the entire stock for 30 each. In order to
maintain the capital intact, calculate the maximum amount, which can be withdrawn by Mohanin
theyear 20X1-X2 if Financial Capital is maintained at historical cost.

Answer 30
Particulars Financial Capital Maintenance at Historical
Cost (2)
Closing equity 18,00,000 represented by cash
el | (30 X 60,000 units) A
\_ J
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4 Opening equity 60,000 units x 20 =12,00,000 h
Permissible drawings to keep Capital intact 6,00,000 (18,00,000 - 12,00,000)

Opening Balance Sheet of Mr. A is showing the aggregate value of assets, liabilities and equity Z 8
lakh, 3 lakh and 2 5 lakh respectively. During accounting period, Mr. A has the following transac-
tions:

(1) Earned 10% dividend on 2,000 equity shares held of € 100 each
(2) PaidZ50,000 to creditors for settlement of 70,000
(3) Rent of the premises is outstanding Z 10,000

(4) Mr. A withdrew g 9,000 for his personal use.

You are required to show the effect of above transactions on Balance Sheet in the form of Assets -
Liabilities = Equity after each transaction.

Answer 31

Effects of each transaction on Balance sheet of the trader is shown below:

Assets Liabilities Equity
Transactions lakh - | 2lakh =  |Zlakh
Opening 8.00 - 3.00 | = 5.00
(1) Dividend earned 8.20 - 300 | = 5.20
(2) settlement of Creditors 7.70 - 230 | = 5.40
(3) Rent Outstanding 7.70 - 240 | = 5.30
(4) Drawings 7.61 - 240 | = 5.21

Balance Sheet of Anurag Trading Co. on 31st March, 20X1 is given below:

Liabilities Amount (2) Assets Amount ()
Capital 50,000 | Property, Plant and Equipment 69,000
Profitand Loss A/c 22,000 | StockinTrade 36,000
10% Loan 43,000 | Trade Receivables 10,000
Trade Payables 18,000 | Deferred Expenditure 15,000
Bank 3,000
1,33,000 1,33,000
\_ J
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Additional Information:

1. Remaining life of Property, Plant and Equipment is 5 years with even use. The net realisable
value of Property, Plant and Equipment as on 31st March, 20X2 was g 64,000.

2. Firm’s sales and purchases for the year 20X1-X2 amounted to Z 5 lacs and

3. Z4.50 lacs respectively.

4. The cost and net realisable value of the stock were Z 34,000 and Z 38,000 respectively.
5. General Expenses for the year 20X1-X2 were 2 16,500.

6. Deferred Expenditure is normally amortised equally over 4 years starting from

7. F.Y.20X0-Xli.e.Z 5,000 peryear.

8. oOut of trade receivables worth 210,000, collection of 24,000 depends on successful re- design
of certain product already supplied to the customer.

9. Closing trade payable is 10,000, which is likely to be settled at 95%.

10. There is pre-payment penalty of 22,000 for Bank loan outstanding.

Prepare Profit & loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 20X2 by assuming it is not a Going
Concern.

Answer 32

Profit and Loss Account of Anurag Trading Co. for theyear ended 31t March, 20X2

(Assuming business is not a going concern)

4 4
To Opening Stock 36,000 By Sales 5,00,000
To Purchases 4,50,000 | By Trade payables 500
To General expenses 16,500 | By Closing Stock 38,000
To Depreciation (69,000-64,000) 5,000
To Provision for doubtful debts 4,000
To Deferred expenditure 15,000
To Loan penalty 2,000
To Net Profit (b.f.) 10,000
5,38,500 5,38,500
_\ )_..
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(s )

Question 33 (lllustration)

Balance sheet of a trader on 31st March, 20X1 is given below:

Liabilities E4 Assets 4

Capital 60,000 | Property, Plant and 65,000
Equipment

Profit and Loss Account 25,000 | Stock 30,000

10% Loan 35,000 | Trade receivables 20,000

Trade payables 10,000 | Deferred expenditure 10,000

Bank 5,000

1,30,000 1,30,000

Additional information:

1. Theremaining life of Property, Plant and Equipment is 5 years. The pattern of use of the asset is
even. The netrealisable value of Property, Plant and Equipment on 31.03.X2 was 260,000.

2. The trader’'s purchases and sales in 20X1-X2 amounted to 2 4 lakh and 4.5 lakh respectively.
3. The cost and net realisable value of stock on 31.03.X2 were 2 32,000 and Z 40,000respectively.
4. Expenses (including interest on 10% Loan of Z 3,500 for the year) amounted to Z 14,900.

5. Deferred expenditure is amortised equally over 4 years.

6. Trade receivables on 31.03.X2 is Z 25,000, of which Z 2,000 is doubtful. Collection of another

7. 24,000 depends on successful re-installation of certain product supplied to the customer.
8. Closing trade payabile is 12,000, which is likely to be settled at 5% discount.

9. Cashbalanceon 31.03.X2is Z37,100.

10. Thereisanearly repayment penalty for the loan2,500.

You are required to prepare Profit and Loss Accounts and Balance Sheets of the trader in both cases
(i) assuming going concern (ii) not assuming going concern.

—

\_

Answer 33
Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 20X2
case (i) case (ii) case (i) case (ii)
g <4 4 4
To Opening Stock 30,000 30,000 By Sales 4,50,000 4,50,000
To Purchases 4,00,000 4,00,000 By Closing 32,000 40,000
Stock
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To Expenses 14,900 14,900 By Trade 600
To Depreciation 13,000 5,000 payables
To Provision for
doubtful debts 2,000 6,000
To Deferred 2,500 10,000
expenditure
To Loan penalty 2,500
To Net Profit 19,600 22,200
(b.f.)
4,82,000 4,90,600 4,82,000 4,90,600
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 20X2
Liabilities case (i) Case Assets Case Case
., (i) 0) (i)
4 4 g
Capital 60,000 60,000 Property, Plant 52,000 60,000
and Equipment
Profit & Loss A/c 44,600 47,200 | Stock 32,000 40,000
10% Loan 35,000 37,500 Trade
receivables (less 23,000 19,000
provision)
Trade payables 12,000 11,400 | Deferred 7,500 Nil
expenditure
Bank 37,100 37,100
1,51,600 1,56,100 1,51,600 1,56,100
A trader commenced business on 01/01/20X1 with 212,000 represented by 6,000 units of a certainprod-
uct atZ 2 per unit. During the year 20X1 he sold these units at
Z 3 per unit and had withdrawn Z 6,000. Let us assume that the price of the product at the end ofyearis
Z 2.50 per unit. In other words, the specific price index applicable to the product s 125.
Current cost of opening stock = (2 12,000 [ 100) x 125 = 6,000 x Z 2.50 = Z 15,000 Current cost ofclosing
cash = 212,000 (218,000 - 2 6,000)
Opening equity at closing current costs = 15,000 Closing equity at closing currentcosts = 212,000 Re-
tained Profit = 212,000 - 215,000 = (-) Z 3,000
_\ )—.
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(

The negative retained profit indicates that the trader has failed to maintain his capital. The available
fund ofZ 12,000 is not sufficient to buy 6,000 units again at increased price of  2.50 per unit. The
drawings should have been restricted to Z 3,000 (2 6,000 — 2 3,000). Had the trader withdrawn Z 3,000
instead of 2 6,000, he would have left with 215,000, the fund required to buy 6,000 units at Z 2.50
per unit.

You are required to compute the Capital maintenance under all three bases ie. (i) Historical costs, (i)
Current purchasing power and (iii) Physical capital maintenance.
Answer 34

Financial Capital Maintenance at historical costs

4 4
Closing capital (At historical cost)Less: 12,000
Capital to be maintained
Opening capital (At historical cost)
Introduction (At historical cost)
12,000
Retained profit .
Nil (12,000)
Nil

Financial Capital Maintenance at current purchasing power

4 4
Closing capital (At closing price) Less: 12,000
Capital to be maintained Opening cap-
ital (At closing price)Introduction (At
closing price)
Retained profit/(loss) 14,400
Nil 1 (14,400)
(2,400)
Physical Capital Maintenance
4 4
Closing capital (At current cost) ( 4,800 units)Less: 12,000
Capital to be maintained
Opening capital (At current cost) (6,000 units)
Introduction (At current cost) 15,000
Nil (15,000)
Loss resulting in non-maintenance of capital (3,000)

\_ J
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Applicability of Accounting Standards

Al MAY | NOV | MAY | NOV | MAY | NOV | MAY | NOV MAY | NOV | MAY | NOV
Coverage 2018 2018 | 2019 2019 | 2020 | 2020 | 2021 2021 2022 | 2022 | 2023 | 2023

Study Q570 Q14
Mat.
Past NO NO NO NO NO NO Q.4 NO NO NO NO NO

Exams

MTP NO Ql NO NO NO NO NO NO NO Ql NO NO

RTP NO NO NO NO NO Q.2 NO NO Q.3 NO NO NO

D [r—
\_ J
Crack ur CA CS CMA Exams in1Attempt-Join CA Mentoring Program if you are unable to manage/focus on ur studies.
I I L L |

Batch:Working Students(Job) Batch2: Doing Classes Batch 3: Full time available for Studies Batch 4:Married Students Visit:
CAmentoringprogram.org | +917890770777 | https://t.me/caraviagarwaloriginal all subjects free Question


https://api.whatsapp.com/send/?phone=917890770777&text&type=phone_number&app_absent=0
https://t.me/caraviagarwaloriginal
https://camentoringprogram.org/

Dr. CA Ravi Ayarwal's CA Inter Accounts Compiler 6.0 Score70+in Accounts 33

Paper 1-Advanced Accounting

4 )

Applicability of Accounting Standards

M/s X & Co. (a partnership firm) had a turnover of Z 5 crores (excluding other income) and borrowings
of € 1.5 crores in the previous year. It wants to avail the exemptions available in application of Account-
ing Standards to non-corporate entities for the year ended 31.3.2022. Advisethe management of M/s X &
Coin respect of the exemptions of provisions of ASs, as per the directive issued by the ICAL (MTP 5 Marks
Oct '22) (Same concept different figures MTP Oct’18 5 Marks, Old & New SM)

Answer1

The question deals with the issue of Applicability of Accounting Standards to a non-corporate entity. For
availment of the exemptions, first of all, it has to be seen that M/s Omega & Co. falls in which levelof the
non-corporate entities. Its classification will be done on the basis of the classification of non- corporate
entities as prescribed by the ICAI. According to the ICAI, non- corporate entities can be classified under
4 levels viz Level |, Level ||, Level lll and Level IV entities.

Non-corporate entities which meet following criteria are classified as Level IV entities:

1. All entities engaged in commercial, industrial or business activities, whose turnover (excluding
other income) does not exceed rupees ten crores in the immediately preceding accounting year.

2. All entities engaged in commercial, industrial or business activities having borrowings (including
public deposits) does not exceed rupees two crores at any time during the immediately preced-
ingaccounting year.

3. Holding and subsidiary entities of any one of the above.

As the turnover of M/s Omega & Co. is less than 2 10 crores and borrowings less than Z 2 crores, it falls
under Level IV non-corporate entities. In this case, AS 3, AS 14, AS 17, AS 18, AS 20, AS 21, AS 23,AS 24, AS
25, AS 27 and AS 28 will not be applicable to M/s Omega & Co. Relaxations from certain requirements
in respect of AS10, AS 11, AS13, AS15, AS 19, AS 22, AS 26 and AS 29 are also availableto M/s Omega & Co.

What are the issues, with which Accounting Standards deal? (RTP Nov 20) (Old & New SM)

Answer 2

Accounting Standards deal with the issues of (i) Recognition of events and transactions in the financial
statements, (i) Measurement of these transactions and events, (jii) Presentation of these transactions
and events in the financial statements in a manner that is meaningful and understandable to the read-
er, and (iv) Disclosure requirements.
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(a) A company with a turnover of Rs. 225 crores and borrowings of Rs. 51 crore during the year
ended 31st March, 2021, wants to avail the exemptions available in adoption of Accounting
Standards applicable to companies for the year ended 31.3. 2021. Advise the management
on the exemptions that are available as per the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,
2021.

(b) Anorganizationwhose objects are charitable orreligious, believes that the Accounting Stan-
dards are not applicable to it since only a very small proportion of its activities are business
in nature. Comment. (RTP May '22)

Answer 3

(a) The question deals with the issue of Applicability of Accounting Standards for corporate entities.
The companies can be classified under two categories viz SMCs and Non-SMCs under the Com-
panies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021. As per the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,
202], criteriafor above classification as SMCs, are:

“Small and Medium Sized Company” (SMC) means, a company- whose equity or debt securities
are not listed or are not in the process of listing on any stock exchange, whether in India or outside
India;

[0 whichis not a bank, financial institution or an insurance company;

[0 whose turnover (excluding other income) does not exceed rupees two-fifty crores in the im-
mediately preceding accounting year;

[0 which does not have borrowings (including public deposits) in excess of rupees fifty crores at
any time during the immediately preceding accounting year; and

[l  which is not a holding or subsidiary company of a company which is not a small and medi-
um-sizedcompany. Since, XYZ Ltd.’s turnover was Rs. 225 crores which does not exceed Rs. 250
crores but borrowings of Rs. b1 crore are more than Rs. 50 crores, it is not a small and medium
sized company (SMC). The exemptions available to SMC are not available to this company.

(b) Accounting Standards apply in respect of any enterprise (whether organized in corporate, co-op-
erative or other forms) engaged in commercial, industrial or business activities, whether or not
profit oriented and even if established for charitable or religious purposes. Accounting Standards
however, do not applyto enterprises solely carrying on the activities, which are not of commercial,
industrial or business nature, (e.g., an activity of collecting donations and giving them to flood
affected people). Exclusion of an enterprise from the applicability of the Accounting Standards
would be permissible only if no part ofthe activity of such enterprise is commercial, industrial or
business in nature. Even if a very small proportion of the activities of an enterprise were considered
to be commercial, industrial or business innature, the Accounting Standards would apply to all its
activities including those, which are notcommercial, industrial or business in nature.

Question 4

List the Criteria for classification of non-corporate entities as level | Entities for the purpose of applica-
tion of Accounting Standards as per the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. (PYP 4 Marks Jan
21)
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Answer 4

Criteria for classification of non-corporate entities as level 1 entities for purpose of application of
A counting Standards decided by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is given below: Non-
corporate entities which fall in any one or more of the following categories, at the end of the relevant
accounting period, are classified as Level | entities:

(i) Entities whose equity or debt securities are listed or are in the process of listing on any stock
exchange, whether in India or outside India.

(ii) Banks (including co-operative banks), financial institutions or entities carrying on insurance
business.

(ii) All commercial, industrial and business reporting entities, whose turnover (excluding other
income) exceeds rupees fifty crore (as per amendment- Rupees two fifty crore) in the
immediately preceding accounting year.

(iv) All commercial, industrial and business reporting entities having borrowings (including
publicdeposits) in excess of rupees ten crore (as per amendment- Rupees fifty crore) at
any time during the immediately preceding accounting year.

(v) Holding and subsidiary entities of any one of the above.

Non-corporate entities which are not Level | entities whose turnover (excludingother income) ex-
ceeds rupees __ but does not exceed rupees two-fifty crores in the immediately preceding
accountingyear are classified as Level llentities.

a. Five crores. a. Two crores

b. Fifty crores c. Ten crores

Ans: (C) Tencrores

Question 6

The following Accounting Standard is not applicable to Non-Corporate Entities falling in Level Il in

its entirety.
a. AS10 b. AS17
c.AS 2 d. AS13
Ans: (b) AS17

Question 7

All non-corporate entities engaged in commercial, industrial and business reporting entities, whose
turnover (excluding other income) exceeds rupees 250 crores in the immediately preceding ac-
counting year, are classified as.

a. Level Il entities b. Level | entities
c. Level lll entities d. Level IV entities
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Crack ur CA CS CMA Examsin1Attempt -Join CA Mentoring Program if you are unable to manage/focus on ur studies.
L L L L |

Batch1:Working Students(Job) Batch2: Doing Classes Batch 3: Full time available for Studies Batch 4:Married Students Visit

CAmentoringprogram.org | +917890770777 | https://t.me/caraviagarwaloriginal all subjects free Question


https://api.whatsapp.com/send/?phone=917890770777&text&type=phone_number&app_absent=0
https://t.me/caraviagarwaloriginal
https://camentoringprogram.org/

\_ J

Dr. CA Ravi Agarwal's CA Inter Accounts Compiler 6.0 Score70+in Accounts 36

Paper 1-Advanced Accounting

4 )
Ans: (b) Level l entities

Question 8

All non-corporate entities engaged in commercial, industrial or business activities having bor-
rowings (including public deposits) in excess of rupees two crores but does not exceed rupees ten
crores at any timeduring the immediately preceding accounting year.

a. Level Il entities b. Level IV entities

c. Level lll entities d. Level | entities

Ans: (C) Levellll entities

Question 9

“Small and Medium Sized Company” (SMC) means, a company-

a. which may be a bank, financial institution or an insurance company.

b. whose turnover (excluding other income) does not exceed rupees two-fifty crores in the im-
mediately preceding accounting year;

c. whose turnover (excluding other income) does not exceed rupees fifty crores in the imme-
diately preceding accounting year;

d. whose turnover (excluding other income) does not exceed rupees five hundred crores in the
immediately preceding accounting year.

Ans: (b)

whose turnover (excluding other income) does not exceed rupees two-fifty crores in the immediately
preceding accounting year;

Theory Questions Answer
1

Question 10
What are the issues, with which Accounting Standards deal?

Answer10

Accounting Standards deal with the issues of (i) Recognition of events and transactions in the finan-
cial statements, (ii) Measurement of these transactions and events, (jii) Presentation of these trans-
actions andevents in the financial statements in a manner that is meaningful and understandable to the
reader, and (iv) Disclosure requirements.

List the criteria to be applied for rating a non-corporate entity as Level-I entity and Level Il entity forthe
purpose of compliance of Accounting Standards in India.
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Answer 11

Criteria for classification of Non-company Entities as decided by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
ofIndia
Level | Entities

Non-company entities which fall in any one or more of the following categories, at the end of the rel-
evant accounting period, are classified as Level | entities:

1. Entities whose securities are listed or are in the process of listing on any stock exchange, whether
in India or outside India.

2. Banks (including co-operative banks), financial institutions or entities carrying on insurancebusi-
ness.

3. All entities engaged in commercial, industrial or business activities, whose turnover (excluding
other income) exceeds rupees two-fifty crore in the immediately preceding accounting year.

4. All entities engaged in commercial, industrial or business activities having borrowings (including
public deposits) in excess of rupees fifty crore at any time during the immediately preceding
accounting year.

5. Holding and subsidiary entities of any one of the above.
Level ll Entities

Non-company entities which are not Level I entities but fall in any one or more of the following cate-
gories are classified as Level Il entities:

1. All entities engaged in commercial, industrial or business activities, whose turnover (excluding
other income) exceeds rupees fifty crore but does not exceed rupees two-fifty crore in the im-
mediately preceding accounting year.

2. All entities engaged in commercial, industrial or business activities having borrowings (including
public deposits) in excess of rupees ten crore but not in excess of rupees fifty crore at any time
during the immediately preceding accounting year.

3. Holding and subsidiary entities of any one of the above.

List the criteria to be applied for rating a non-corporate entity as Level IV entity for the purpose of
compliance of Accounting Standards in India.
Answer 12
Level IV Entities
Additional requirements
1. AN MSME WHICH AVAILS THE EXEMPTIONS OR RELAXATIONS GIVEN TO IT SHALL DISCLOSE (BY WAY OF A NOTE TOITS FINANCIAL STATE™

MENTS) THE FACT THAT IT IS AN MSME, THE LEVEL OF MSME AND THAT IT HAS compLED wiTh the Accounting Standards
insofar as they are applicable to entities falling in Level Il or Level lll or Level IV, as the case may

be.
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(2. Where an entity, being covered in Level Il or Level lil or Level IV, had qualified for any exemption or "\
relaxation previously but no longer qualifies for the relevant exemption or relaxation in the current
accounting period, the relevant standards or requirements become applicable from the cur-
rent period and the figures for the corresponding period of the previous accounting period need
not berevised merely by reason of its having ceased to be covered in Level Il or Level Ill or Level
IV, as thecase may be. The fact that the entity was covered in Level Il or Level lll or Level IV, as the
case may

3. be, in the previous period and it had availed of the exemptions or relaxations available to that Level
of entities shall be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The fact that previous peri-
odfigures have not been revised shall also be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

4. Where an entity has been covered in Level | and subsequently, ceases to be so covered and gets
covered in Level Il or Level lll or Level IV, the entity will not qualify for exemption/relaxation available to
that Level, until the entity ceases to be covered in Level | for two consecutive years. Similar is the case
in respect of an entity, which has been covered in Level Il or Level lll and subsequently, gets covered
under Level lll or Level IV.

5. If an entity covered in Level Il or Level lll or Level IV opts not to avail of the exemptions or relaxations
available to that Level of entities in respect of any but not all of the Accounting Standards, it shall
disclose the Standard(s) in respect of which it has availed the exemption or relaxation.

6. If anentity coveredin Levelll or Level lll or Level IV opts not to avail any one or more of the exemptions
or relaxations available to that Level of entities, it shall comply with the relevant requirements of the
Accounting Standard.

7. An entity covered in Level Il or Level lll or Level IV may opt for availing certain exemptions or relaxa-
tions from compliance with the requirements prescribed in an Accounting Standard:

8. Provided that such a partial exemption or relaxation and disclosure shall not be permitted to mis-
lead any person or public.

9. Inrespect of Accounting Standard (AS) 15, Employee Benefits, exemptions/ relaxations are available
to Level Il and Level Il entities, under two sub- classifications, viz, (i) entities whose average num-
ber of persons employed during the year is 50 or more, and (ii) entities whose average number of
persons employed during the year is less than 50. The requirements stated in paragraphs (1) to
(6) above, mutatis mutandis, apply to these sub- classifications.

Practical Questions Answer
.|

XYZ Ltd., with a turnover of Rs. 50 crores during previous year and borrowings of Rs. 1 crore during any
time in the previous year, wants to avail the exemptions available in adoption of Accounting Standards
applicable to companies for the year ended 31.3.20X1. Advise the management on the exemptions that
are available as per the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021.

Answer13

The question deals with the issue of Applicability of Accounting Standards for corporate entities.

The companies can be classified under two categories viz SMCs and Non SMCs under the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021.
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As per the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021, criteria for above classification as SMCs,
are:

“Small and Medium Sized Company” (SMC) means, a company-

B whose equity or debt securities are not listed or are not in the process of listing on any stock
exchange,whether in India or outside Indig;

B which is not a bank, financial institution or an insurance company;

®m  whose turnover (excluding other income) does not exceed rupees two- fifty crores in the im-
mediatelypreceding accounting year;

®  which does not have borrowings (including public deposits) in excess of rupees fifty crores at
any timeduring the immediately preceding accounting year; and

B which is not a holding or subsidiary company of a company which is not a small and medi-
um-sized

B company.
B Since, XYZ Ltd.'s turnover was Rs. 50 crores which does not exceed Rs. 250 crores and borrow-

ings of Rs. 1 crore are

less than Rs. 50 crores, it is a small and medium sized company (SMC).

Question 14

A company was classified as Non-SMC in 20X1-X2. In 20X2-X3, it has been classified as SMC. The
management desires to avail the exemptions or relaxations available for SMCs in 20X2-X3. However,
the accountant of the company does not agree with the same. Comment.

Answer 14

As per Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021, an existing company, which was previously not
a SMC and subsequently becomes a SMC, should not be qualified for exemption or relaxation in
respect of accounting standards available to a SMC until the company remains a SMC for two con-
secutive accounting periods. Therefore, the management of the company cannot avail the exemp-
tions/ relaxations available to the SMCs for the FY 20X2-X3.

J
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( A
Chapter 4.1
AS 1- Disclosure of Accounting Policies
Attempts [L\SIN Y MAY | NOV | MAY NOV | MAY NOV | MAY NOV | MAY | Nov
(TACICTCH 2018 | 2018 2019 | 2019 | 2020 2020 | 2021 2021 | 2022 2022 | 2023 | 2023
Study
Q.10TOQ.19
Mat.
Past NO Ql Q.8 NO NO NO Q.l, NO Q.2 NO Q.9 NO
Exams Q3
MTP NO Q.3, Q4 Q.2 Ql, NO Q.1 Q.3 QJl, Q4 Ql Ql,
Q4 Q.2 Q.2 Q.2
NO NO NO NO Q.2 Q.6 Q.5 NO NO NO Q.3 NO
D [r—
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Chapter4.l

AS 1- Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HIL Ltd. was making provision for non-moving stocks based on no issues having occurred for the last
12months up to 31.03.2019. The company now wants to change it and make provision based on tech-
nical evaluation during the year ending 31.03.2020. Total value of stock on 31.3.20 is Rs. 120 lakhs. Pro-
vision required based on technical evaluation amounts Rs. 3.00 lakhs. However, provision required
based on 12 months (no issues) is Rs. 4.00 lakhs. You are required to discuss the following points in
the light of Accounting Standard (AS)-1:

1. Does this amount to change in accounting policy?
2. Can the company change the method of accounting?

3. Explain how it will be disclosed in the annual accounts of HIL Ltd. for the year 2019-20. (MTP 5 Mark
March 21, MTP 5 Marks April 22 & MTP 5 Marks April ‘23) (PYP Nov 18, 5 Marks, PYP 5 Marks Dec'21)
(Same concept different figures- MTP 5 Marks Mar23, RTP May'20 & Nov 23)

Answer 1

The decision of making provision for non-moving inventories on the basis of technical evaluation does
not amount to change in accounting policy. Accounting policy of a company may require that provi-
sion for non-moving inventories should be made but the basis for making provision will not constitute
accounting policy. The method of estimating the amount of provision may be changed in case a more
prudent estimate can be made.

In the given case, considering the total value of inventory, the change in the amount of required provi-
sion of non-moving inventory from Rs. 4 lakhs to Rs. 3 lakhs are also not material. The disclosure can be
made for such change in the following lines by way of notes to the accounts in the annual accounts of
HIL Ltd. for the year 2019-20 in the following manner:

“The company has provided for non-moving inventories on the basis of technical evaluation unlike pre-
ceding years. Had the same method been followed as in the previous year, the profit for the year and
the value of net assets at the end of the year would have been lower by Rs. 1 lakh.”

State whether the following statements are ‘True’ or ‘False’ in line with the provisions of AS Also give
reason for your answer.

1. Certain fundamental accounting assumptions underline the preparation and presentation of fi-
nancial statements. They are usually specifically stated because their acceptance and use are not
assumed.

2. If fundamental accounting assumptions are not followed in presentation and preparation of finan-
cial statements, a specific disclosure is not required.
3. All significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation and presentation of financial

statements should form part of the financial statements.

4. Any change in an accounting policy, which has a material effect should be disclosed. Where the
\_ J
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amount by which any item in the financial statements is affected by such change is not ascertainable,
wholly or in part, the fact need not to be indicated.

5. There is no single list of accounting policies which are applicable to all circumstances. (MTP 5 Marks
April 21, Oct 19, Mar 22, May’20 & Oct 23, RTP 5 Marks May 20, PYP 5 Marks May 22, Old & New SM)

Answer 2

1. False; As per AS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”, certain fundamental accounting assumptions
underlie the preparation and presentation of financial statements. They are usually not specifically
stated because their acceptance and use are assumed. Disclosure is necessary if they are not fol-
lowed.

2. False; As per AS |, if the fundamental accounting assumptions, viz. Going Concern, Consistency and
Accrual are followed in financial statements, specific disclosure is not required. If a fundamental ac-
counting assumption is not followed, the fact should be disclosed.

3. True; To ensure proper understanding of financial statements, it is necessary that all significant
accounting policies adopted in the preparation and presentation of financial statements should
be disclosed. The disclosure of the significant accounting policies as such should form part of the
financial statements and they should be disclosed at one place.

4. False; Any change in the accounting policies which has a material effect in the current period or
whichis reasonably expected to have a material effect in later periods should be disclosed. Where
such amount is not ascertainable, wholly or in part, the fact should be indicated.

5. True; As per AS |, there is no single list of accounting policies which are applicable to all circumstanc-
es. The differing circumstances in which enterprises operate in a situation of diverse and complex
economic activity make alternative accounting principles and methods of applying those principles
acceptable.

In the books of Rani Ltd., closing inventory as on 31.03.2020 amounts to 21,75,000 (valued based on FIFO
method). The Company decides to change from FIFO method to weighted average method for ascer-
taining the costs of inventory from the year 2019-20. On the basis of weighted average method, clos-
ing inventory as on 31.03.2020 amounts to £1,59,000. Realizable value of the inventory as on 31;03;2020
amounts to 22,07,000. Discuss disclosure requirements of change in accounting policy as per AS 1.(MTP
Nov "21, 5 Marks, MTP Oct’'18 5 Marks, RTP May 23, PYP 5 Marks Dec’21, Old & New SM)

Answer 3

As per AS 1"Disclosure of Accounting Policies”, any change in an accounting policy which has a materi-
al effect should be disclosed in the financial statements. The amount by which any item in the financial
statements is affected by such change should also be disclosed to the extent ascertainable. Where such
amount is not ascertainable, wholly or in part, the fact should be indicated. Thus Rani Ltd. should disclose
the change in valuation method of inventory and its effect on financial statements. The company may
disclose the change in accounting policy in the following manner:

“The company values its inventory at lower of cost and net realizable value. Since net realizable value
of all items of inventory in the current year was greater than respective costs, the company valued its
inventory at cost. In the present year i.e. 2019-20, the company has changed to weighted average meth-
od, which better reflects the consumption pattern of inventory, for ascertaining inventory costs from the
earlier practice of using FIFO for the purpose. The change in policy has reduced current profit and value of
inventory by 16,000 (1,75,000 - 1,59,000).”
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Kumar Ltd. had made a rights issue of shares in 2017. In the offer document to its members, it had
projected a surplus of Rs. 40 crores during the accounting year to end on 31 st March, 2017. The draft
results for the year, prepared on the hitherto followed accounting policies and presented for perusal
of the board of directors showed a deficit of Rs. 10 crores. The board in consultation with the man-
aging director, decided not to provide for “after sales expenses” during the warranty period; Till the
last year, provision at 2% of sales used to be made under the concept of “matching of costs against
revenue” and actual expenses used to be charged against the provision. The board now decided to
account for expenses as and when actually incurred. Sales during the year total to Rs. 600 crores.

As chief accountant of the company, you are asked by the managing director to draft the notes on
accounts for inclusion in the annual report for 2016-2017 (MTP Apr’19, Aug’18, Oct’22 5 Marks)

Answer 4

As per AS 1, any change in the accounting policies which has a material effect in the current period
or which is reasonably expected to have a material effect in later periods should be disclosed. In the
case of a change in accounting policies which has a material effect in the current period, the amount
by whichany item in the financial statements is affected by such change should also be disclosed to
the extent ascertainable. Where such amount is not ascertainable, wholly or in part, the fact should be
indicated. Accordingly, the notes on accounts should properly disclose the change and its effect.

Notes on Accounts:

So far, the company has been providing 2% of sales for meeting “after sales expenses during the warranty
period. With the improved method of production, the probability of defects occurring in the products
has reduced considerably. Hence, the company has decided not to make provision for such expenses
butto account for the same as and when expenses are incurred. Due to this change, the profit for the
year is increased by Rs. 12 crores than would have been the case if the old policy were to continue.

The draft results of Surya Ltd. for the year ended 31st March, 2020, prepared on the hitherto followed
accounting policies and presented for perusal of the board of directors showed a deficit of Rs. 10
crores. The board in consultation with the managing director, decided to value year-end inventory
at works cost (Rs. 50 crores) instead of the hitherto method of valuation of inventory at prime cost (Rs.
30crores). As chief accountant of the company, you are asked by the managing director to draft the
notes on accounts for inclusion in the annual report for 2019-2020. (RTP May '21)

Answer 5

As per AS 1, any change in the accounting policies which has a material effect in the current period or
which is reasonably expected to have a material effect in later periods should be disclosed. In the
caseof a change in accounting policies which has a material effect in the current period, the amount
by which any item in the financial statements is affected by such change should also be disclosed to
the extent ascertainable. Where such amount is not ascertainable, wholly or in part, the fact should be
indicated. Accordingly, the notes on accounts should properly disclose the change and its effect.

Notes on Accounts:

“During the year inventory has been valued at factory cost, against the practice of valuing it at prime
cost as was the practice till last year. This has been done to take cognizance of the more capital inten-
sive method of production on account of heavy capital expenditure during the year. As a result of this
change,the year-end inventory has been valued at Rs. 50 crores and the profit for the year is increased

by Rs. 20 crores.”
—
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Question 6

What are the three fundamental accounting assumptions recognized by Accounting Standard (AS) 1?
Briefly describe each one of them. (RTP Nov'20)

Answer 6

Accounting Standard (AS) 1 recognizes three fundamental accounting assumptions. These are as follows:

1. Going Concern: The financial statements are normally prepared on the assumption that an enter-
prise will continue its operations in the foreseeable future and neither there is intention, nor there
is needto materially curtail the scale of operations.

2. Consistency: The principle of consistency refers to the practice of using same accounting policies
for similar transactions in all accounting periods unless the change is required (i) by a statute, (ii)
by an accounting standard or (jii) for more appropriate presentation of financial statements.

3. Accrual basis of accounting: Under this basis of accounting, transactions are recognized as soon
as they occur, whether or not cash or cash equivalent is actually received or paid.

Question 7

(i) ABC Ltd. was previously making provision for non-moving stocks based on stocks not issued for
the last 12 months up to 31.03.2020. Now, the company wants to make provisions based on technical
evaluation during the year ending 31;03;2021; Total value of stock 2 133;75 lakhs Provision required
based on technical evaluation 2 4;00 lakhs Provision required based on 12 months not issued 2 5;00
lakhs; (2.5 Marks, Dec '21)

Answer 7

(i) The decision of making provision for non-moving inventories on the basis of technical evaluation does
not amount to change in accounting policy. Accounting policy of a company may require that provi-
sion for non-moving inventories should be made. The method of estimating the amount of provision
may be changed in case a more prudent estimate can be made.

In the given case, considering the total value of inventory, the change in the amount of required provision
of non-moving inventory from g 5 lakhs to Z 4 lakhs is also not material. The disclosure can be made for
such change in the following lines by way of notes to the accounts in the annual accounts of ABC Ltd. for
the year 2020 -2

“The company has provided for non-moving inventories on the basis of technical evaluation unlike pre-
ceding years. Had the same method been followed as in the previous year, the profit for the year and the
corresponding effect on the year end net assets would have been lower by Z 1lakh.”

Question 8

What do you mean by ‘Accrual’ in reference to AS-1? Also, specify any three reasons for ‘Accrual Basis
of Accounting’. (PYP May'19, 5 Marks)

J
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Answer 8

The term “Accrual” has been explained in the AS 1on Disclosure of Accounting Policies, as “Revenues and

costs are accrued, that is, recognised as they are earned or incurred (and not as money is received or

paid)and recorded in the financial statements of the periods to which they relate”

Reasons for Accrual Basis of Accounting

1. Accruadl basis of accounting, attempts to record the financial effects of the transactions, events, and
circumstances of an enterprises in the period in which they occur rather than recording them in the
period(s) in which cash is received or paid by the enterprise.

2. Receipts and payments of the period will not coincide with the buying producing or selling events
and other economic events that affect entity performance.

3. The goal of Accrual basis of accounting is to follow the matching concept of income and expen-
diture so that reported net income measures an enterprise’s performance during a period instead of
merely listing its cash receipts and payments.

4. Accrual basis of accounting recognizes assets, liabilities or components of revenues and expenses
for amounts received or paid in cash in past, and amounts expected to be received or paid in cash
in the future.

5. Important point of difference between accrual and accounting based on cash receipts and outlay
is in timing of recognition of revenues, expenses, gains andlosses.

You are required to comment on the following cases as per the provisions of Accounting Standard-1

‘Disclosure of Accounting Policies’:

(1) Bee Limited has not complied with AS-2 “Valuation of inventories” and the same is disclosed in
the Notes on Accounts. Management is of the view that the financial statements give a true and
fair view as non-compliance with AS-2 is disclosed.

(2) CeelLimited sold its Office Building for Rs. 10,00,000 on 1st March, 2023. The buyer has paid the
full amount and taken possession of the building. The book value of the Office Building is Rs.
4,00,000. On 31st 2023, documentation and legal formalities are pending. The company has not
recorded the disposal and the amount received is shown as an advance.

(3) Dee Limited has prepared its accounts on cash basis and the same is not disclosed.

(4) Jee Limited disclosed significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial
statements, in the Directors’ Report. (PYP 5 Marks May ‘23)

Answer 9

(1) As per AS-I disclosure of accounting policies is not a remedy for wrong or inappropriate treatment
in accounting. In the given case the financial statement does not give a true and fair view as they
are not in compliance with AS-2.

(2) Considering the substance over form as per AS-I, documentation and legal formalities represent
the form of the transaction, although the legal title has not been transferred, the economic reality
and substance are that the rights and beneficial interest in the Office Building have been trans-
ferred. Therefore, recording of acquisition/ disposal (by the transferee and transferor respectively)
would in substance represent the transaction entered into.

(3) Accrual is a fundamental accounting assumption. If it is not followed by the company, the facts
should be disclosed under AS-I. Hence the company should disclose the fact that the cash basis of
accounting has been followed in the notes on accounts.
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4 (4) The practice followed by the company is not correct. It should be disclosed as part of financial
statements (The director’s report is not part of financial statements).

Question 10

Which of the following is NOT a major consideration in selection and application of accounting poli-
cies?

a. Prudence b. Comparability
c. Materiality d. Substance over form
Ans: (b)

Adoption of different accounting policies by different companies operating in the same industry af-
fects which of the qualitative characteristics the most?

a. Comparability b. Relevance
c. Faithful representation d. Reliability
Ans: (a)

Which of the following statement would not be correct in relation to disclosures to be made in the fi-
nancial statements after making any change in an accounting policy?

a. Any change in an accounting policy which has a material effect shouldbe disclosed.

b. The amount by which any item in the financial statements is affected by such change should be
disclosed to the extent ascertainable. Where such amount is not ascertainable, wholly or in part,the
fact should be indicated.

c. If a change is made in the accounting policies which has no material effect on the financial
statements for the current period but which is reasonably expected to have a material effect in
later periods, the fact of such change should be appropriately disclosed in the period in which
the change is adopted.

d. If achange is made in an accounting policy which has material effect on the financial statements
for the current period and is reasonably expected to have a material effect in later periods, the
fact of such change shouldbe appropriately disclosed only in the later periods i.e. year(s) next to the
year in which the change is adopted.

Ans: (d)

Theoretical Questions Answer
.|

What are the three fundamental accounting assumptions recognised by Accounting Standard (AS) 1?
Briefly describe each one of them.
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(. )
Answer 13

Accounting Standard (AS)1 recognises three fundamental accounting assumptions. These are: (i) Go-
ingConcern; (ii) Consistency; and (iii) Accrual basis of accounting.

Question 14

Has Accounting Standard 1 prescribed the manner in which the accounting policies followed by the
entityshould be disclosed?

Answer 14

Paras 18-20 of Accounting Standard 1, Disclosure of Accounting Policies, lay down the manner in which
accounting policies have to be disclosed, which is stated as under:

0 To ensure proper understanding of financial statements, it is necessarythat all significant ac-
countingpolicies adopted in the preparation and presentation of financial statements should
be disclosed.

0 Such disclosure should form part of the financial statements.

[0 All the disclosures should be made at one place instead of being scattered over several state-
ments, schedules and notes.

Practical Questions Answer
.|

State whether the following statements are ‘True’ or ‘False’. Also give reason for your answer.

() Certain fundamental accounting assumptions underline the preparation and presen-
tation of financial statements. They are usually specifically stated because their accep-
tance and use are not assumed.

(i) If fundamental accounting assumptions are not followed in presentation and prepara-
tion of financial statements, a specific disclosure is not required.

(ii) All significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation and presentation of fi-
nancial statements should form part of the financial statements.

(iv) Any change in an accounting policy, which has a material effect should be disclosed.
Where the amount by which any item in the financial statements is affected by such
change is not ascertainable, wholly or in part, the fact need not to be indicated.

Answer 15

() False; As per AS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”, certain fundamental accounting as-
sumptions underlie the preparation and presentation of financial statements. They are usu-
ally not specifically stated because their acceptance and use are assumed. Disclosure is
necessary if they are not followed.

(i) False; As per AS ], if the fundamental accounting assumptions, viz. Going Concern, Consis-
tency andAccrual are followed in financial statements, specific disclosure is not required.
If a fundamental accounting assumption is not followed, the fact should be disclosed.

True; To ensure proper understanding of financial statements, it is necessary that all significant
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(~ accounting policies adopted in the preparation and presentation of financial statements should be
disclosed. The disclosure of the significant accounting policies as such should form part of the financial
statements and they should be disclosed in one place.

False; Any change in the accounting policies which has a material effect in the current period or which is
reasonably expected to have a material effect in later periods should be disclosed. Where such amount
is not ascertainable, wholly or in part, the fact should be indicated.

Question 16

Give examples of areas where accounting policies adopted could be different for different enterprises.
Would there be any adverse impact due to the adoption of different policies, and if yes, how does Ac-
counting Standard 1seek to address such issue?

Answer 16

There are various areas where different accounting policies could be adopted by different entities within
the same industry. An entity may choose to value its inventories using FIFO method, whereas another en-
tity may choose to value the same using Weighted Average method.

While an entity is free to choose its accounting policy as long as in thefinancial statements reflect
a trueand fair view of the state of affairs of the enterprise as at the balance sheet date and of the
profit or lossfor the period ended, the application of different accounting policies by different entities
affects the comparability of the financial statements of such different entities by stakeholders, analysts,
investors etc. Tomitigate the loss of comparability, Accounting Standard 1, Disclosure of Accounting
Policies requires disclosure of significant accounting policies as a part of the financial statements.
This would help users of the financial statements to understand the policies followed by different
entities, particularly if they belong to the same industry, and make a correct analysis of each entity
resulting in more informed decision-making.

Question 17 (lllustration)

In the books of M/s Prashant Ltd., closing inventory as at 31.03.20X2 amounts to Rs. 1,63,000 (on the ba-
sis of FIFO method).

The company decides to change from FIFO method to weighted average method for ascertaining the
cost of inventory from the year 20X1-X2. On the basis of weighted average method, closing inventory
as on 31.03.20X2 amounts to Rs. 1,47,000. Realisable value of the inventory as on 31.03.20X2 amounts to
Rs.1,95,000. Discuss disclosure requirement of change in accounting policy as per AS-1.

Answer 17

As per AS 1“Disclosure of Accounting Policies”, any change in an accounting policy which has a materi-
al effect should be disclosed in the financial statements. The amount by which any item in the financial
statements is affected by such change should also be disclosed to the extent ascertainable. Where such
amount is not ascertainable, wholly or in part, the fact should be indicated. Thus Prashant Ltd. should
disclose the change in valuation method of inventory and its effect on financial statements. The company
may disclose the change in accounting policy in the following manner:

‘The company values its inventory at lower of cost and net realizable value. Since net realizable value of all
items of inventory in the current year was greater than respective costs, the company valued its inven-
tory at cost. In the present year i.e. 20X1-X2, the company has changed to weighted average method,
which better reflects the consumption pattern of inventory, for ascertaining inventory costs from the
earlier practice of using FIFO for the purpose. The change in policy has reduced current profit and
value of inventory by Rs. 16,000.
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\

Jagannath Ltd. had made a rights issue of shares in 20X2. In the offer document to its members,
it hadprojected a surplus of 40 crores during the accounting year to end on 31st March, 20X2. The
draft results for the year, prepared on the hitherto followed accounting policies and presented
for perusal of the board of directors showed a deficit of "10 crores. The board in consultation with
the managing director,decided on the following:

(i) Valueyear-endinventory at works cost (Rs. 50 crores) instead of the hitherto method of
valuation ofinventory at prime cost (Rs. 30 crores).

(i) Provide for permanent diminution in the value of investments, which had taken place
over the pastfive years, the amount of provision being “10 crores.

As chief accountant of the company, you are asked by the managing director to draft the notes on
accounts for inclusion in the annual report for 20X1-20X2.

Answer 18

As per AS 1, any change in the accounting policies which has a material effect in the current period or
whichis reasonably expected to have a material effect in later periods should be disclosed. In the case
of a change in accounting policies which has a material effect in the current period, the amount by
which any item in the financial statements is affected by such change should also be disclosed to the
extent ascertainable. Where such amount is not ascertainable, wholly or in part, the fact should be indi-
cated. Accordingly, the notes on accounts should properly disclose the change and its effect.

Notes on Accounts:

() During the year inventory has been valued at factory cost, against the practice of valuing
it at prime cost as was the practice till last year. This has been done to take cognizance of
the more capital intensive method of production on account of heavy capital expenditure
during the year. As a resultof this change, the year-end inventory has been valued at Rs.
50 crores and the profit for the year has increased by Rs. 20 crores.

(i) The company has decided to provide 10 crores for the permanent diminution in the value
of investments which has taken place over the period of past five years. The provision so
made has reduced the profit disclosed in the accounts by 10 crores.

Question 19 (lllustration)

XYZ Company is engaged in the business of financial services and is undergoing tight liquidity
position, since most of the assets of the company are blocked in various claims/petitions in a
Special Court. XYZ

has accepted Inter-Corporate Deposits (ICDs) and it is making its best efforts to settle the dues.
There

were claims at varied rates of interest, from lenders, from the due date of ICDs to the date of repay-
ment. The company has provided interest, as per the terms of the contract till the due date and a
note for non- provision of interest on the due date to date of repayment was affected in the financial
statements. On account of uncertainties existing regarding the determination of the amount and in
the absence of any specific legal obligation at present as per the terms of contracts, the company
considers that these claims are in the nature of “claims against the company not acknowledged as
debt”, and the same has been disclosed by way of a note in the accounts instead of making a provi-
sion in the statement of profit and loss. State whether the treatment done by the Company is correct

or not.
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4 )
Answer 19

AS 1'Disclosure of Accounting Policies’ recognises ‘prudence’ as one of the major considerations governing
the selection and application of accounting policies. In view of the uncertainty attached to future events,
profits are not anticipated but recognised only when realised though not necessarily in cash. Provision is
made for all known liabilities and losses even though the amount cannot be determined with certainty
and represents only a best estimate in the light of available information.

Also as per AS 1, ‘accrual’ is one of the fundamental accounting assumptions. Irrespective of the terms
ofthe contract, so long as the principal amount of a loan is not repaid, the lender cannot be replaced
in a disadvantageous position for non- payment of interest in respect of overdue amount. From the
aforesaid, it is apparent that the company has an obligation on account of the overdue interest. In this
situation, the company should provide for the liability (since it is not waived by the lenders) at an
amount estimated oron reasonable basis based on facts and circumstances of each case. However,
in respect of the overdue interest amounts, which are settled, the liability should be accrued to the ex-
tent of amounts settled. Non- provision of the overdue interest liability amounts to violation of accrual
basis of accounting. Therefore, the treatment, done by the company, of not providing the interest
amount from due date to the date ofrepayment is not correct.

Reference: The students are advised to refer the full text of AS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”.
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Chapter 4.2
AS 3- Cash Flow Statements

LU E Tl MAY | NOV | MAY | NOV MAY | NOV | MAY NOV MAY NOV | MAY | NOV

(SN 2018 | 2018 | 2019 | 2019 | 2020 | 2020 | 2021 2021 2022 2022 | 2023 | 2023

Study

.16 TO Q.31

Mat. Q.16 TOQ.3

Past Q.6 NO NO Q.9 NO NO Q.n Q.10 Q.12 Q.13 Q.14 NO

Exams

MTP NO Q.3 NO NO Q.1 Q.2 | Q.5Q.9 Q.4 Q.5,Q.9 Q.6 Q.7 Q.9

RTP NO NO NO NO | Q1,Q.8 | NO NO NO NO NO NO Q.15
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( -

Chapter 4.2

AS 3- Cash Flow Statements

Prepare Cash Flow Statement of Tom & Jerry Ltd. for the year ended 315t March, 2020, inaccordance with
AS-3 (Revised) from the following Summary Cash Account:

Summary Cash Account

Rs.in ‘000 Rs.in"’000
Balance as on 01.04.2019 210
Receipts from Customers 16,596
Sale of Investments (CostRs. 90,000) 102
Issue of Shares 1,800
Sale of Property Plant & Equipment 768
19,476
Payment to Suppliers 12,204
Purchase of Investments 78
Purchase of Property Plant & Equipment 1,380 .
Wages & Salaries 414
Selling & Administration Expenses 690
Payment of Income Tax 1,458
Payment of Dividends 480
Repayment of Bank Loan 1,500
Interest paid on Bank Loan 300 (18,504)
Balance as on 31.03.2020 972

(MTP 8 Marks May 20) (Same concept different figures RTP May’20)

Answer 1

Cash Flow Statement of Tom & Jerry Ltd. for the year ended 31st March, 2020
(Rs; '000)

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers 16,596
Cash payments to suppliers (12,204)
Cash paid to employees (414)
Other cash payments (for Selling & Administrative expenses) (690)
\_ J
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( Cash generated from operations 3,288 )
Income taxes paid (1,458)
Net cash from operating activities 1,830

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for purchase of Property Plant & Equipment (1,380)

Proceeds from sale of Property Plant & Equipment 768

Purchase of investments (78)

Sale of investments 102

Net cash used in investing activities (588)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of share capital 1,800

Bank loan repaid (1,500)

Interest paid on bank loan (300)

Dividend paid (480)

Net cash used in financing activities (480)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 762
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 210
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 972

What do you mean by the term “cash and cash equivalent” as per AS 3? From the following
information of XYZ Limited, calculate cash and cash equivalent as on 31-03-2019.

Particulars Amount ()
Cash balance with Bank 10,000
Fixed Deposit created on 01-11-2018 and maturing on15-07-2019 75,000

Short Term Investment in highly liquid Sovereign Debt Mutual fund made on01- | 1,00,000
03-2019 (having maturity period of less than 3 months)

Bank Balance in a Foreign Currency Account in India $1,000

(Conversion Rate: on the day of deposit Z 69/USD;  70/USD as on 31-03-2019)

Debentures purchased of g 10 lacs of A Ltd.,, which are redeemable on 315t 90,000
October, 2019

Shares of Alpha Ltd. purchased on 18t January, 2019 60,000
(MTP 5 Marks Oct 20)

Answer 2

As per AS 3, Cash and cash equivalents consists of: (i) Cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand
with any bank or other financial institutions and (ii) Cash equivalents, which are short term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk
or change in value. A short-term investment is one, which is due for maturity within three months from
the date of acquisition. Investments in shares are not normally taken as cash equivalent, because of
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/~ uncertainties associated with them as to realizable value. )
Computation of Cash and Cash Equivalents as on 31st March, 2019
g
Cash balance with bank 10,000
Short term investment in highly liquid sovereign debt mutual fund 1,00,000
on 1.3.19
Bank balance in foreign currency account ($1,000 x Z 70) 70,000
1,80,000

Note: Fixed deposit, Shares and Debentures will not be considered as cash and cash equivalents.

Classify the following activities as (i) Operating Activities, (ii) Investing Activities, (iii) Financing
Activities:
a. Purchase of Machinery.

b. Proceeds fromissuance of equity share capital
c. Cashsales.
d. Proceedsfromlong-term borrowings.

e. Proceeds from Trade receivables.

f. Cashreceipts from Trade receivables.
g. Trading Commission received.
h. Purchase of investment.

Redemption of Preference Shares.

j.  Cash Purchases. (MTP 5 Marks Oct 18)
Answer 3

(i) Operating Activities: c, e, f, g, .

(i) Investing Activities: g, h.

(iii) Financing Activities: b, d, i.

Question 4

From the following information, prepare the Cash Flow from Financing activities as per AS 3
‘Cash Flow Statements’ as the accountant of XYZ Limited is not able to decide and seeks your advice:

(i) Received Z 4,00,000 as redemption of short-term deposit

(ii) Proceeds of Z 20,00,000 from issuance of equity share capital
(iii) Received interest of 2 70,000 on Govt. bonds.

(iv) An amount of Z13,00,000 incurred for purchase of goodwiill

(v) Proceeds of Z 5,00,000 from sale of patent.
Proceeds of 2 12,00,000 from long term borrowing.
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4 (vi) Amount paid for redemption of debentures of g 22,00,000 )
(vii) Underwriting commission of 40,000 paid on issue of equity share capital

(viii) Interest of 2 1,44,000 paid on long-term borrowing. (MTP 5 Marks Oct ‘21)

Answer 4

Statement showing Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Cash inflow from financing activity

Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital 20,00,000
Proceeds from long term borrowings 12,00,000
Total cash inflow from financing activity 32,00,000

Less: Cash outflow from financing activity

Amount paid for redemption of debentures 22,00,000
Underwriting commission paid 40,000
Interest paid on long-term borrowings 1,44,000 (23,84,000)
Net cash inflow from financing activity 8,16,000

Following is the cash flow abstract of Alpha Ltd. for the year ended 31st March, 2021:
Cash Flow (Abstract)

Inflows Rs. | Outflows Rs.
Opening cash and bank balance 80,000 | Payment for Account Payables 90,000
Share capital — shares issued 5,00,000 | Salaries and wages 25,000
Collection from Trade Payment of overheads 15,000
Receivables 3,560,000 | Machinery acquired 4,00,000
Debentures redeemed 50,000
Sale of Machinery 70,000 Bank loan repaid 2,50,000
Tax paid 1,55,000
Closing cash and bank bal- 15,000

ance
10,00,000 10,00,000

Prepare Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 315t March, 2021 in accordance with AS 3. (MTP5 Marks
April 21, Mar 22, Old & New SM)

] - -
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Answer 5

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31.3.2021

Rs. Rs.
Cash flow from operating activities
Cash received on account of trade receivables 3,50,000
Cash paid on account of trade payables (90,000)
Cash paid to employees (salaries and wages) (25,000)
Other cash payments (overheads) (15,000)
Cash generated from operations 2,20,000
Income tax paid (1,55,000)
Net cash generated from operating activities 65,000
Cash flow from investing activities
Payment for purchase of machinery (4,00,000)
Proceeds from sale of machinery 70,000
Net cash used in investment activities (3,30,000)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital 5,00,000
Bank loan repaid (2,50,000)
Debentures redeemed (50,000)
Net cash used in financing activities 2,00,000
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (65,000)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 80,000
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15,000

Classify the following activities as
(1) Operating Activities,
(i1) Investing activities,
(ili) Financial activities and
(iv) Cash Equivalents.
(1) Cash receipts from Trade Receivables

(3) Purchase of investment

(4) Proceeds from long term borrowings
(5) Wages and Salaries paid

(6) Bank overdraft

\_

(2) Highly liquid Marketable Securities without risk of change in value

J
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4 (7) Purchase of Goodwill )
(8) Interim dividend paid on equity shares

(9) Short term Deposits

(10) underwriting commission paid

(MTP 5 Marks, Sep 22) (PYP May ‘18, 5 Marks)

Answer 6

1. Operating Activities: Items 1 and 5.

2. Investing Activities: Items 3,7 and 9

3. Financing Activities: Items 4,6,8 and 10

4. Cash Equivalent: 2

How will you disclose following items while preparing Cash Flow Statement of Gagan Ltd. as per AS-3
for the year ended 31st March, 2022?

(i) 10% Debentures issued: As on 01-04-2021 € 1,10,000
As on 31-03-2022 g 77,000

(i) Debentures were redeemed at 5% premium at the end of the year. Premium was
chargedto the Profit & Loss Account for the year.

(i) Unpaid Interest on Debentures: As on 01-04-20212 275
As on 31-03-2022 1,175

(iv) Debtors of 36,000 were written off against the Provision for Doubtful Debts Alc
during the year.

(vy 10% Bonds (Investments): As on 01-04-2021 2 3,50,000
(vi) As on 31-03-2022  3,50,000
(vii) Accrued Interest on Investments:As on 31-03-2022 Z 10,500 (MTP 5 Marks March '23)

Answer 7
Cash Flow Statement of Gagan Ltd. for the year ended March 31, 2022

A | CashFlow from Operating Activities
Net Profit as per Profit & LossAflc | —emeee-

Add: Premium on Redemption of Debentures 1,650
Add: Interest on 10% Debentures 11,000
Less: Interest on 10% Investments (35,000)

B | CashFlow fromInvesting Activities

Interest on Investments [35,000-10,500] 24,500
C | CashFlow from Financing Activities
Interest on Debentures paid [11,000 - (1,175 - 275)] (10,100)
Redemption of Debentures [(1,10,000 - 77,000) at 5% premium] (34,650)
\_ J
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a.
b.

C.

> m

k.

Note: Debtors written off against provision for doubtful debts does not require any furtheradjustment in
Cash Flow Statement.

Classify the following activities as (1) Operating Activities, (2) Investing Activities, (3)
Financing Activities (4) Cash Equivalents.

Proceeds from long-term borrowings.
Proceeds from Trade receivables.

Trading Commission received.

. Redemption of Preference Shares.

Proceeds from sale of investment

Interim Dividend paid on equity shares.

Interest received on debentures held as investment.

Dividend received on shares held as investments.
Rent received on property held as investment.
Dividend paid on Preference shares.

Marketable Securities (RTP May 20)

Answer 8

Operating Activities: b, c.
Investing Activities: e, g, h, i.
Financing Activities: g, d, f, j.

Cash Equivalent: k.

Question 9

Prepare cash flow from investing activities as per AS 3 of M/s Subham Creative Limited for year ended
31.3.2019. (PYP Nov;19,5 Marks, Old & New SM) (Same concept lesser adjustments- MTP 4 Marks March 2],

\

MTP 5 Marks April 22 & Oct "23)

Particulars

Amount (Rs.)

Machinery acquired by issue of shares at face value

2,00,000

Claim received for loss of machinery in earthquake

55,000

Unsecured loans given to associates

5,00,000

Interest on loan received form associate company

70,000

Pre-acquisition dividend received on investment made

52,600

Debenture interest paid

145,200

Term loan repaid

4,50,000

\_
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4 Interest received on investment (TDS of Rs. 8,200 was deducted on the above interest) 73,800 \

Purchased debentures of X Ltd., on Ist December, 2018 which are redeemable

within 3 months 3,00,000
Book value of plant & machinery sold (loss incurred Rs. 9,600) 90,000
Answer 9
Cash Flow Statement from Investing Activities of Subham Creative Limitedfor the year ended 31-03-
2019
Cash generated from investing activities Rs. Rs.
Interest on loan received 70,000
Pre-acquisition dividend received on investment made 52,600
Unsecured loans given to subsidiaries (5,00,000)
Interest received on investments (gross value) 82,000
TDS deducted on interest (8,200)
Sale of Plant & Machinery Z (90,000 — 9,600) 80,400
Cash used in investing activities (before extra-ordinary (2,23,200)
item)
Extraordinary claim received for loss of machinery 55,000
Net cash used in investing activities (after extra-ordinary (1,68,200)
item)
Note:

1. Debenture interest paid and Term Loan repaid are financing activities and therefore not consid-
eredfor preparing cash flow from investing activities.

2. Machinery acquired by issue of shares does not amount to cash outflow, hence also not considered
inthe above cash flow statement.

The investments made in debentures are for short-term, it will be treated as ‘cash equivalent’ and willnot
be considered as outflow in cash flow statement.

Crack ur CA CS CMA Exams in1Attempt-Join CA Mentoring Program if you are unable to manage/focus on ur studies.
I I L L |

Batch:Working Students(Job) Batch2: Doing Classes Batch 3: Full time available for Studies Batch 4:Married Students Visit:
CAmentoringprogram.org | +917890770777 | https://t.me/caraviagarwaloriginal all subjects free Question


https://api.whatsapp.com/send/?phone=917890770777&text&type=phone_number&app_absent=0
https://t.me/caraviagarwaloriginal
https://camentoringprogram.org/

Dr. CA Ravi Agarwal's CA Inter Accounts Compiler 6.0

Paper 1-Advanced Accounting

Score 70+ in Accounts 61

Question 10
Prepare cash flow statement of Gama Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2021 in accordance with
As-3(Revised) from the following cash account summary: (PYP July’21, 5Marks)
Cash summary Account
Inflows Z (‘000) | outflows Z (‘000)
Opening Balance 945 | Payment to suppliers 54,918
Receipts from Customers 74,682 | Purchase of Investments 351
Sale of Investments 459 | Property, plant and 6,210
(Cost # 4,05,000) equipment acquired
Issue of Shares 8,100 | Wages and salaries 1,863
Sale of Property, Plant and 3,456 | Payment of Overheads 3,105
equipment Taxation 6,561
Dividends 2,160
87,642 | Repayment of Bank Overdraft 6,750
Interest paid on Bank 1,350
Overdraft
Closing Balance 4,374
87,642
Answer 10
Gama Limited Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March 2021
Particulars Amount Amount
(2'000) (2'000)
Cash flow from Operating Activities:
Cash receipts from customers 74,682
Cash payments to suppliers (54,918)
Cash payments for wages & salaries (1,863)
Cash payments of overheads (3105)
Cash Generated from Operations 14,796
Payment of Taxation (6,561)
Net Cash from Operating Activities 8,235
Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments 459
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 3,456
Purchase of Investments (351)
| \. J
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~
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (6,210)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (2,646)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities: (2,60)
Proceeds from issue of shares 8,100
Payment of Dividend (2,160)
Repayment of Bank Overdraft (6,750)
Interest paid on Bank Overdraft (1,350)
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities
Net Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalent 3,429
Cash and Cash Equivalent in the Beginning of the year 945
Cash and Cash Equivalent in the end of the year 4374
Question 1 _
Following are the extracts from the Balance Sheet of ABC Ltd.
Liabilities 31.3.2020 31.3.2021
() C)
Equity Share Capital 25,00,0000 35,60,000
10% Preference Share Capital 7,00,000 6,00,000
Securities Premium Account 5,00,000 5,50,000
Profit & Loss Afc 20,00,000 28,00,000
Equity Share Capital for the year ended 31st March, 2021 includes 60,000 of equity shares issued to
Grey Ltd; at par for supply of Machinery of g 60,000; Profit & Loss account on 31st March, 2021 includes g
50,000 of dividend received on Equity shares invested in X Ltd. Show how the related items will appear
in the Cash Flow Statement of ABC Ltd. as per AS-3 (Revised)
(PYP 5 Marks, Dec ‘21)
Answer 11
The related items given in the question will appear in the Cash Flow Statement of ABC Limitedfor
the year ended 31st March, 2021 as follows:
g g
Cash flows from operating activities
Closing Balance as per Profit and Loss Account 28,00,000
Less: Opening Balance as per Profit and Loss Account (20,00,000)
8,00,000
Less: Dividend received 50,000
7,50,00(0

J
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Cash flows from investing activities
Dividend received 50,000

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of share capital

Equity shares issued forcash 2 10,00,000Pro-
ceeds from securities premium

(2 5,50,000 - 5,00,000) Z 50,000
10,50,000
Less: Redemption of Preference shares (2
7,00,000 - Z 6,00,000) (1,00,000) 9,50,000

Note:

1. Machinery acquired by issue of shares does not amount to cash outflow, hence
also not consideredin the cash flow statement.

2. ABC Ltd. has been considered as a non-financial company in the given answer.

The following information is provided by Alpha Limited, for the year ended 31st March, 2022:
(i) Net profit before taking into account income tax and income from law suits but aftertaking
into account the following items was Z 40 lakhs;
(i) Depreciation on Fixed Assets 2 10 lakhs;

(i) Discount on issue of Debentures written of 2 60,000;

(iv) Interest on Debentures paid g 7,00,000;

(v) Book value of investments 2 6 lakhs (Sale of Investments for Z 6,40,000);
(vi) Interest received on investments € 1,20,000;

(vil Compensation received 2 1,80,000 by the company in a suit filed;

(viii) Income tax paid & 21,00,000

(ix) Current assets and current liabilities in the beginning and at the end of the year were asde-
tailed below:

As on 31.3.2021 As on 31.3.2022

g g

Stock 24,00,000 26,36,000
Sundry Debtors 4,16,000 4,26,200
Cashin hand 3,92,600 70,600
Bills Receivable 1,00,000 80,000
Bills Payable 90,000 80,000
Sundry Creditors 3,32,000 3,42,600
Outstanding Expenses 1,560,000 1,63,600

\_ J
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Answer 12
Alphal Ltd.

You are required to prepare Cash Flow Statement from Operating Activities in accordance withAS-3
(revised) using the indirect method for the year ended 31st March,2022. (PYP 5 Marks May’22)

Cash Flow Statement (from Operating Activities) for the year ended 31st March, 2022

\

g

g

Cash flow from Operating Activities

Net profit before income tax and extraordinary items:

40,00,000

Adjustments for:

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment

10,00,000

Discount on issue of debentures

60,000

Interest on debentures paid

7,00,000

Interest on investments received

(1,20,000)

Profit on sale of investments

(40,000)

16,00,000

Operating profit before working capital changes

56,00,000

Adjustments for:

Increase in inventory

(2,36,000)

Increase in Sundry Debtors

(10,200)

Decrease in Bills receivables

20,000

Increase in Sundry Creditors

10,600

Increase in Bills payables

(10,000)

Increase in outstanding expenses

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid

Cash flow from ordinary items

Cash flow from extraordinary items:

Compensation received in a suit filed

Net cash flow from operating activities

13,600

(2,12,000)

53,88,000

(21,00,000)

32,88,000

1,80,000

34,68,000

(i) Dividend paid for the year.
(i) TDS on interest income earned on investments made.

(iv) Deposit with bank for a term of two years.

(vij Investments made and dividends earned on them.

\_

Ridgeway Limited, a Non-Financial company has the following activities:

(i) Loans and advances given to suppliers and interest earned from them.

(v) Highly liquid Marketable Securities (without risk of change in value).

J
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(vii) Insurance claims received against loss of stock or loss of profits.

(ix) Issue of Bonus Shares.
(x) Term loan repaid.

(viii) Loans and advances given to subsidiaries and interest earned from them.

You are required to classify the above activities in Cash Flow Statement as per ‘AS-3’; (PYP 5Marks

Nov '22)
Answer 13

No. Activities

(i) Dividend paid for the year Financing

(ii) TDS on interest income earned oninvest- Investing
ments made

(iii) Loans and advances given to suppliers andinter- Operating
est earned from them

(iv) Deposit with bank for a term of two years Investing

(v) Highly liquid Marketable Securities (without Cash Equivalent
risk of change in value)

(vi) Investments made and dividends earned onthem Investing

(vii) Insurance claims received against loss ofstock Operating
or loss of profits

(viii) Loans and advances given to subsidiariesand Investing
interest earned from them

(ix) Issue of Bonus Shares No Cash Inflow/Cash

outflow
(x) Term Loan repaid Financing

Question 14

31stMarch, 2023 are as below:

The summarized Balance Sheets of Flora Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2022 and

Assts 31/03/2023 31/03/2022

(@) ()

Goodwill 15,000 28,000
Land 5,75,000 6,00,000
Furniture and Fixtures 48,000 44,000
Vehicles 22,000 28,000
Office Equipment 21,000 -
Long-term Investments 60,000 1,10,000
Stock-in-hand 96,000 88,000

\_
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(| Bills Receivables 18,150 14,500
Trade Receivables 46,000 52,000
Cash and Bank Balances 1,29,850 34,500
Total 10,31,000 9,99,000

Liabilities 31/03/2023 31/03/2022
() ()
Equity Shares Capital 6,80,000 5,00,000
General Reserves 90,000 60,000
Profit and Loss Account 93,000 52,000
Capital Reserve 75,000 -
8% Debentures of 2100 each - 3,00,000
Loan from Mr. Andrew - 15,000
Bills Payables 11,000 13,000
Trade Payables 49,000 45,000
Creditors for Equipment 10,500 -
Outstanding Expenses 4,500 3,000
Provision for Taxation 18,000 11,000
Total 10,31,000 9,99,000

Additional Information:

1. On st April, 2022, one of the vehicles was sold for Z 3,000. No new purchases were made during
the year.

2. A part of the total land was sold for 21,25,000 (Cost 2 1,00,000) and the balance land was reval-
ued. Capital reserve consists of profit on revaluation of balance land. No new purchases were
made during the year. (iii) Depreciation provided during the year-

e  Furniture and Fixtures € 5,000
e Vehicles 2,200

3. Interim dividend of 5,000 was paid during the year.

4. Provision for taxation for the year 2022-2023 was Z 16,000.

5. 8% Debentures were redeemed at par after half year interest payment on 30th September, 2022.

6. Partof the long-term investments were sold at a profit of 8,000.

7. Interestincome received during the year on long-term investment was 6,500.

You are required to prepare Cash Flow Statement from Operating Activities for the year ended3ist

March, 2023 using indirect method. (All workings should form part of the answer) (PYP 10 Marks May

‘23)

\. J
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( )

Answer 14
Cash Flow Statement of Flora Limited from Operating Activities For the year ended 3ist March, 2023
4 4
Net profit before taxation (W.N.1) 92,000
Adjustment: Depreciation on Furniture & Fixtures 5,000
Depreciation on Vehicles 2,200
Profit on sale of land (Z 125000 - F100000) (25,000)
Loss on sale (Vehicle) 800
Profit on sale of long-term investments (8,000)
Interest received (6,500)
Interest on debentures 12,000
Goodwill written off 13,000 (6,500)
Operating profit before working capital changes 85,500
Increase in Stock in Hand (8,000)
Increase in Bills Receivables (3,650)
Decrease in Trade Receivables 6,000
Decrease in Bills payable (2,000)
Increase in Trade Payables 4,000
Increase in outstanding expenses 1,500 (2,150)
Cash generated from Operations 83,350
Less: Income taxes paid 9,000
Cash flow from Operating activities 74,350

Alternative presentation:

Cash Flow Statement of Flora Limited from Operating Activities For the year ended 31st March, 2023

4
Net profit before taxation (W.N. 1) 92,000
Adjustment: Depreciation on Furniture & fixtures 5,000
Depreciation on Vehicles 2,200
Profit on sale of land (25,000)
Loss on sale (Vehicle) 800
Profit on sale of long- term investments (8,000)
Interest received (6,500)
Interest on debentures 12,000
Goodwill written off 13,000 (6,500)
\. J
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Operating profit before working capital changes 85,500 )
Increase in inventory (8,000)
Decrease in Trade receivables* 2,350
Increase in Trade payables** 2,000
Increase in outstanding expenses 1,500 (2,150)
Cash generated from Operations 83,350
Less: Income taxes paid 9,000
Cash flow from Operating activities 74,350
*[(18,150 +46,000) - (14,500 + 52,000)] ** [(11,000 +
49,000) - (13,000+45,000)] Working Notes:
1.  (Net Profit before Taxation
Increases in Profit and Loss A/c (93,000-52,000) 41,000
Increases in General Reserve (90,000-60,000) 30,000
Interim dividend Paid 5,000
Transfer — provision for Taxation 16,000
Increase in retained earnings (Net Profit beforeTaxation) 92,000
Provision for Taxation Account
4 g
To Bank (Balancingfigure) 9,000 By Balance b/d 11,000
To Balance c/d 18,000 By Profit and lossaccount 16,000
27,000 27,000
Vehicles Account
Particulars €))
Opening Balance 28,000
Less: Depreciation (2,200)
Less: Closing Balance (22,000)
Book value of vehicle sold 3,800
Less: Sale Value (3,000)
Loss on sale of Vehicle 800

on the basis of the following information prepare a Cash Flow Statement for the year end-

ed 31st March, 2023 (Using direct method):

() Totalsales forthe year were 2 796 crores out of which cash sales amounted to g 524 crores.

J
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(i) Receipts from credit customers during the year, totalled Z 268 crores;

(iii) Purchases for the year amounted to 440 crores out of which credit purchase was 80%;Balance in
creditors as on1.4.2022 2168 crores 31.3.2023 2184 crores

(iv) suppliers of other consumables and services were paid Z 38 crores in cash;
(v) Employees of the enterprises were paid 40 crores in cash.

(vi) Fully paid 9% Preference shares of the face value of 64 crores were redeemed; Equity shares of
the face value of Z 40 crores were allotted as fully paid up at premium of 20%;

(vii) 10% Debentures of Z 40 crores at a premium of 10% were redeemed; Debenture holders were issued
equity shares in lieu of their debentures. 52 crores were paid by way of income tax.

(viii) A new machinery costing Z 50 crores was purchased in part exchange of an old machinery; The
book value of the old machinery was Z 26 crores. Through the negotiations, the vendor agreed to
take over the old machinery at a higher value of 30 crores. The balance was paid in cash to the
vendor.

(ix) Investment costing 2 36 cores were sold at a loss of 2 4 crores;

(x) Dividends totaling g 30 crores was also paid;

(xi) Debenture interest amounting Z 4 crore was paid;
(xii) Non-cash expenditure incurred during the current year was 1.2 crores.
(xiii) Dividends declared during the current year was 15% on equity share capital (ESC = ‘120 crores);
(xiv) on 31st March 2022, Balance with Bank and Cash on hand totalled 2 4 crores. (RTP Nov '23)

Answer 15
Cash flow statement (using direct method) for the year ended 31t March, 2023
(Zincrores) (Zincrores)
Cash flow from operating activities
Cash sales 524
Cash collected from credit customers 268
Less: Cash paid to suppliers for goods & services and to
employees (Refer Working Note) (502)
Cash from operations 290
Less: Income tax paid (52)
Net cash from operating activities 238
Cash flow from investing activities
Net Payment for purchase of Machine (50 - 30) (20)
Proceeds from sale of investments 32
Net cash from investing activities 12
Cash flow from financing activities
Redemption of Preference shares (64)
Proceeds from issue of Equity shares 48
Debenture interest paid (4)
\. J
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Dividend Paid (30)

Net cash used in financing activities (50)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 200
Add: Cash and cash equivalents as on 1.04.2022 4
Cash and cash equivalents as on 31.3.2023 204

Working Note:

Calculation of cash paid to suppliers of goods and services and to employees

(2 in crores)
Opening Balance in creditors Account 168
Add: Purchases (440x .8) 352
Total 520
Less: Closing balance in Creditors Account 184
Cash paid to suppliers of goods 336
Add: Cash purchases (440x .2) 88
Total cash paid for purchases to suppliers (a) 424
Add: Cash paid to suppliers of other consumables and services (b) 38
Add: Payment to employees (c) 40
Eo)t?l cash paid to suppliers of goods & services and to employees[(a)+ (b) + 502
c

Question 16

Crown Ltd. wants to prepare its cash flow statement. It sold equipment of book value of 60,000 at a
gain of  8,000. The amount to be reported in its cash flow statement under operating activities is

a. Nil b. 8,000
c. 68,000 d. 60,000
Ans: (a)

Question 17

While preparing cash flows statement, an entity (other than a financial institution) should disclose
thedividends received from its investment in shares as

a. Operating cash inflow b. Investing cash inflow
c. Financing cash inflow d. Cash & cash equivalent
Ans: (b)

Question18

XYZ Co. is a financial enterprise. In its cash flow statement, interest paid and dividends received

J
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should be
a. Classified as operating cash flows b. Classified as financing cash flows
c. Not shown in cash flow statement d. Classified as investing cash flows
Ans: (a)
Question 19
Inthe cash flow statement, ‘cash and cash equivalents’ do notinclude
a. Bank balances b. Short-term investments readily convert-
ibleinto Cash are subject to an insignifi-
cant risk of changes in value
c. Cash balances d. Loan from bank
Ans: (d)
Question 20
While preparing a Cash Flow Statement using the Indirect method as required under AS 3, which
of the following will not be deducted from/added to the Net Profit to arrive at the “Cash flow from
Operating activities”?
a. Interest income b. Gain on sale of a fixed asset
c. Depreciation d. Gain on sale of inventory
Ans: (d)
Theoretical Questions Answers
1
What are the main features of the Cash Flow Statement?
Answers 21
According to AS 3 on “Cash Flow Statement”, cash flow statement deals with the provision of in-
formation about the historical changes in cash and cash equivalents of an enterprise during the
given period from operating, investing and financing activities. Cash flows from operating activities
can be reported using either
(a) the direct method, or (b) the indirect method. A cash flow statement when used in conjunc-
tion with theother financial statements, provides information that enables users to evaluate the
changes in net assets ofan enterprise, its financial structure (including its liquidity and solvency),
and its ability to affect the amount and timing of cash flows in order to adapt to changing cir-
cumstances and opportunities.
\ J
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Mayuri Ltd. acquired Plant and Machinery for 2 25 lakhs. During the same year, it also sold Furniture
andFixtures for Z 4 lakhs. Can the company disclose, Net Cash Outflow towards purchase of Fixed As-
sets Z 2llakhs (i.e., 25 lakhs — 4 lakhs) in the Cash Flow Statement?

Answers 22

As per AS 3, Cash Flow Statements, an enterprise should report separately major classes of gross cash
receipts and gross cash payments arising from investing and financing activities, except in the case of:

[0 cash receipts and payments on behalf of customers when the cash flows reflect the
activities of the customer rather than those of the enterprise; and

0 cash receipts and payments for items in which the turnover is quick, the amounts
are large, and the maturities are short.

In the given case, since the purchase of Plant and Machinery and disposal of Furniture and Fixtures do
not fall in the criteria of exception mentioned above, the same should be presented on a gross basis as
an outflow of 25 lakhs and an inflow of € 4 lakhs. Presentation of net cash outflow of Z 21 lakhs is not
permitted as per AS 3.

Practical Questions Answers
.|

How would the following cash flows be classified in accordance with AS 3?

B Corporate Income Tax paid amounting to 70 lakhs during the reporting period.

®  Payment of advance tax 2 8,75,000 out of which 2 75,000 was towards capital gains arising
on accountof sale of assets during the reporting period.

®  Fixed Deposits withdrawn by customers of State Bank of | dia 2 3 crores.

Answers 23

As per AS 3, the given cash flows shall be recorded as under:

Corporate Income Tax paid amounting to Z 70 lakhs: Operating Cash Flows

g 70 lakhs during the reporting period.

Payment of advance tax g 8,75,000 out of which g g 8,00,000: Operating Cash Flows
75,000 was towards capital gains arising on account

. . . Z 75,000: Investing Cash Flows
of sale of assets during the reporting period. 9

Fixed Deposits withdrawn by customers of State Z 3 crores: Operating Cash Flows for
Bank of India Z 3 crores. State Bank of India.

Questions 24

Money Ltd., a non-financial company has the following entries in its Bank Account. It has sought
youradvice on the treatment of the same for preparing Cash Flow Statement.
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G) Loans and Advances given to the following and interest earned on them:
(1) tosuppliers
(2) toemployees
(3) toits subsidiaries companies
(i) Investment made in subsidiary Smart Ltd. and dividend received
(i) Dividend paid for the year

Discuss in the context of AS 3 Cash Flow Statement.

Answers 24
Treatment as per AS 3 ‘Cash Flow Statement’
() Loans and advances given and interest earned
(1) to suppliers - Cash flows from operating activities
(2) to employees - Cash flows from operating activities
(3) toits subsidiary companies - Cash flows from investing activities

(i) Investment made in subsidiary company and dividend received Cash flows from investing activ-
ities

(i) Dividend paid for the year Cash flows from financing activities

From the following information of XYZ Limited, calculate cash and cash equivalent as on 31-03-20X2 as
per AS 3.

Particulars Amount (2)

Balance as per the Bank Statement 25,000
Cheque issued but not presented in the Bank 15,000
Short Term Investment in liquid equity shares of ABC 50,000
Limited
Fixed Deposit created on 01-11-20X1 and maturing on 15- 75,000
04-20X2
Short Term Investment in highly liquid Sovereign Debt 1,00,000
Mutual fund on 01-03-20X2 (having maturity period of less
than 3 months)

Bank Balance in a Foreign Currency Account in India $1,000
(Conversion Rate: On the day of deposit & 69/USD as on
31-03-20X2 Z 70/USD)

\_ J
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Answers 25

Computation of Cash and Cash Equivalents as on 31st March, 20X2

g
Cash balance with bank (2 25,000 less Z 15,000) 10,000
Short term investment in highly liquid sovereign debt 1,00,000

mutual fund on 1.3.20X2

Bank balance in foreign currency account ($1,000 x Z 70,000
70)

1,80,000

Note: Short term investment in liquid equity shares and fixed deposit will not be considered as cash
and cash equivalents.

Questions 26

Z Ltd. has no Foreign Currency Cash Flow during the reporting period. It held a deposit in a bank in
France. The balances as at the beginning of the year and at the end of the year were € 100,000 and €
105,000 respectively. The exchange rate at the beginning of the year was € 1= 2 82, and at the end of
the year was€ 1=2 85. Theincrease in the deposit balance of € 5,000 was on account of interest cred-
ited on the last day of the reporting period. The deposit was reported at 2 82,00,000 in the opening
balance sheet and at Z 89,25,000 in the closing balance sheet. You are required to show how these
transactions would be presented in the Cash Flow Statement as per AS 3.

Answers 26

The Statement of Profit and Loss was credited on account of:
Interest Income: € 5,000 x E 85 = 2 4,25,000
Exchange difference = € 100,000 x (Z 85 - Z 82) = Z 3,00,000

In preparing the Cash Flow Statement, the exchange difference of 2 3,00,000 should be deducted from
the Net Profit before taxes, since it is a non-cash item. However, in order to reconcile the opening
balance ofthe Cash and Cash Equivalents with its closing balance, the Exchange Difference of €
3,00,000 should be added to the opening balance in a Note to the Cash Flow Statement.,,

Cash Flows arising from transactions in a Foreign Currency shall be recorded in Z Ltd.’s reporting curren-
cyby applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and
the foreign currency at the date of the cash flow.

Question 27 (lllustration)

Classify the following activities as
(a) Operating Activities,

(b) Investing Activities,

(c) Financing Activities

(d) cash Equivalents.

(@) Purchase of Machinery.
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( (b) Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital A
(c) CashSales.
(d) Proceeds from long-term borrowings.
(e) Cheques collected from Trade receivables.
(f) Cash receipts from Trade receivables.
(g) Trading Commission received.
(h) Purchase of investment.
(i) Redemption of Preference Shares.
(i) Cash Purchases.
(k) Proceeds from sale of investment
() Purchase of goodwill.
(m) Cash paid to suppliers.
(n) Interim Dividend paid on equity shares.
(o) Wages and salaries paid.
(p) Proceedfrom sale of patents.
(q) Interestreceived on debentures held as investment.
(r) Interest paid on Long-term borrowings.
(s) Office and Administration Expenses paid
() Manufacturing Overheads paid.
(u) Dividend received on shares held as investments.
(v) Rent Received on property held as investment.
(w) Selling and distribution expense paid.
(x) Income tax paid
(y) Dividend paid on Preference shares.
(z) Underwritings Commission paid.
(aa) Rent paid.
(ab) Brokerage paid on purchase of investments.
(ac) Bank Overdraft
(ad) Cash Credit
(ae) Short-term Deposits
(af) Highly liquid Marketable Securities (without risk of change in value)
(ag) Refund of Income Tax received.
Answers 27
(a) Operating Activities: c, e, f, g,j, m, 0, s, t, w, x, aa & gg.
(b) Investing Activities: o, h, k, I, p, g, u, v, bb & ee.
| \. J
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4 (c) Financing Activities: b, d, i, n, r,y,z cc & dd. N\
(d) Cash Equivalent: ff.

Question 28(lllustration)

X Ltd. purchased debentures of 10 lacs of Y Ltd., which are redeemable within three months. How will
you show this item as per AS 3 while preparing cash flow statement for the year ended on 31t March,
20X1?

Answers 28

As per AS 3 on ‘Cash flow Statement’, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash in hand, balance with
banks and short-term, highly liquid investments. If investment, of 10 lacs, made in debentures is for
short-term period then it is an item of ‘cash equivalents’.

However, if investment of 210 lacs made in debentures is for long-term period then as per AS 3, it should
be shown as cash flow from investing activities.

Question 29 (lllustration)

Classify the following activities as per AS 3 Cash Flow Statement:
1. Interest paid by financial enterprise
2. Tax deducted at source on interest received from subsidiary company
3. Deposit with Bank for a term of two years
4. Insurance claim received towards loss of machinery by fire
5. Bad debts written off

Answers 29

(i) Interest paid by financial enterprise Cash flows from operating activities As per AS 3, an investment
normally qualifies as a cash equivalent only when it has a short maturity of, say three months or less
from the date of acquisition and is subject to insignificant risk of change in value.

(i) TDS on interest received from subsidiary company Cash flows from investing activities
(i) Deposit with bank for a term of two years Cash flows from investing activities

(iv) Insurance claim received against loss of fixed asset by fire Extraordinary item to be shown as a sep-
arate heading under ‘Cash flow from investing activities’

(v) Bad debts written off It is a non-cash item which is adjusted from net profit/loss under indirect meth-
od, to arrive at net cash flow from operating activity.
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Following is the cash flow abstract of Alpha Ltd. for the year ended 31 st March, 20X1: Cash Flow (Ab-
stract)

Inflows E4 Outflows E4
Opening balance: Payment for Account
Cash 10,000 Payables 90,000
Bank 70,000 Salaries and wages 25,000
Share capital — shares issued 5,00,000 Payment of overheads 15,000
Collection on account of Property, plant and
Trade Receivables 3,50,000 equipment acquired 4,00,000
Debentures redeemed 50,000
Sale of Property, plant and 70,000 | Bankloan repaid 2,50,000
equipment
Taxation 55,000
Dividends 1,00,000
Closing balance:
Cash 5,000
bank 10,000
10,00,000 10,00,000

Prepare Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 20Xlin accordance with Accounting
Standard 3.

Answers 30
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31.3.20X1
54 g
Cash flow from operating activities
Cash received on account of trade receivables 3,560,000
Cash paid on account of trade payables (90,000)
Cash paid to employees (salaries and wages) (25,000)
Other cash payments (overheads) (15,000)
Cash generated from operations 2,20,000
Income tax paid (55,000)
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,65,000
Cash flow from investing activities
\. J
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( Payment for purchase of Property, plant and equipment (4,00,000)
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment 70,000
Net cash used in investment activities (3,30,000)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital 5,00,000
Bank loan repaid (2,50,000)
Debentures redeemed (50,000)
Dividends paid (1,00,000)
Net cash used in financing activities 1,00,000
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (65,000)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 80,000
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15,000

Question 31 (lllustration)

Prepare Cash Flow from Investing Activities of M/s. Creative Furnishings Limited for the year ended

31-3-20X1.
Particulars 4
Plant acquired by the issue of 8% Debentures 1,56,000
Claim received for loss of plantin fire 49,600
Unsecured loans given to subsidiaries 4,85,000
Interest on loan received from subsidiary companies 82,500
Pre-acquisition dividend received on investment made 62,400
Debenture interest paid 1,16,000
Term loan repaid 4,25,000
Interest received on investment 68,000
(TDS of Z 8,200 was deducted on the above interest)
Book value of plant sold (loss incurred Z 9,600) 84,000
U J
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Answers 31
Cash Flow Statement from Investing Activities of
M/s Creative Furnishings Limited for the year ended 31-03-20XI
Cash generated from investing activities g g
Interest on loan received 82,500
Pre-acquisition dividend received on investment made 62,400
Unsecured loans given to subsidiaries (4,85,000)
Interest received on investments (gross value) 76,200
TDS deducted on interest (8,200)
Sale of plant 74,400
Cash used in investing activities (before extra-ordinary item) (1,97,700)
Extraordinary claim received for loss of plant 49,600
Net cash used in investing activities (after extra-ordinary item) (1,48,100)
Note:

1. Debenture interest paid and Term Loan repaid are financing activities and, therefore, not
considered forpreparing cash flow from investing activities.

2. Plant acquired by issue of 8% debentures does not amount to cash outflow, hence also
not consideredin the above cash flow statement.

Note:

For details regarding preparation of Cash Flow Statement and Problems based on practical application
of AS 3, students are advised to refer unit 2 of Chapter 11.

Reference:

The students are advised to refer the full text of AS 3 “Cash Flow Statement.

\_ J
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Chapter 4.3

AS 17- Segment Reporting

LU G TG MAY | NOV MAY |NOV | MAY |NOV | MAY NOV MAY NOV MAY NOV

S CELE 2018 | 2018 2019 | 2019 | 2020 |2020 | 2021 2021 | 2022 2022 | 2023 2023

Study

Q.10 TO Q.26
Mat.
Past Q.8 NO NO Q7 |NO Q.7 |Q.2,Q.7 [NO Q.9 NO NO NO
Exams
MTP NO NO NO NO NO NO |[NO Q.l NO NO Q1Q2 | Q7
RTP NO Q1Q6 Q5 |Ql Q.2 Q.l Q.1 Q.3 Q1Q4 |Ql Q.2 Q.7

D [r—
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Chapter 4.3

AS 17- Segment Reporting

A Company has an inter-segment transfer pricing policy of charging at cost less 5%. The market prices
are generally 20% above cost. You are required to examine whether the policy adopted by the company
is correct or not? (MTP 5 Marks Nov '21 & April ‘23) (RTP May’21, Nov'20, May’22, Nov ‘19, May’18, Nov’22,
Old & New SM)

Answer 1

AS 17 ‘'Segment Reporting’ requires that inter-segment transfers should be measured on the basis that
the enterprise actually used to price these transfers. The basis of pricing inter- segment transfers and any
change therein should be disclosed in the financial statements. Hence, the enterprise can have its own
policy for pricing inter-segment transfers and hence, inter-segment transfers may be based on cost, below
cost or market price. However, whichever policy is followed, the same should be disclosed and applied
consistently. Therefore, in the given case inter-segment transfer pricing policy adopted by the company is
correct if followed consistently.

The Chief Accountant of Cotton Garments Limited gives the following data regarding its five segments:

(ZincCrore)
Particulars A B (o D E Total
Segment Assets 40 15 10 10 5 80
Segment Results (95) 5 5 (5) 15 (75)
Segment Revenue 310 40 30 40 30 450

The Chief Accountant is of the opinion that segment “A" alone should be reported. Is he justified in his
view? Examine his opinion in the light of provisions of AS 17 ‘Segment Reporting’. (MTP 5 Marks March
'23) (RTP May "20 & May ‘23) (PYP 5 Marks, Jan 21) (Similar to RTP Nov 20 & Nov 19 but different figures)
(PYP 5 Marks May '23)

Answer 2

As per para 27 of AS 17 ‘Segment Reporting’, a business segment or geographical segment should be
identified as a reportable segment if:

1. Itsrevenue from sales to external customers and from other transactions with other segments is
10% or more of the total revenue- external and internal of all segments; or

2. Its segment result whether profit or loss is 10% or more of:
* The combined result of all segments in profit; or

= The combined result of all segments in loss,whichever is greater in absolute amount; or
\_ )
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3. Its segment assets are 10% or more of the total assets of all segments.

Further, if the total external revenue attributable to reportable segments constitutes less than 75% of
total enterprise revenue, additional segments should be identified as reportable segments even if they
donot meet the 10% thresholds until at least 75% of total enterprise revenue is included in reportable
segments.

Accordingly,
1. On the basis of revenue from sales criteria, segment A is a reportable segment.

2. On the basis of the result criteria, segments A & E are reportable segments (sincetheir re-
sults in absolute amount is 10% or more of Z 100 crore).

3. On the basis of asset criteria, all segments except E are reportable segments.

Since all the segments are covered in at least one of the above criterig, all segments have to be report-
edupon in accordance with AS 17.

Hence, the opinion of chief accountant that only segment ‘A’ is reportable is wrong.

a) Company A is engaged in the manufacture of chemicals. The company manufactures five
types of chemicals that have different applications. Can this company include more than
one type of chemical in a single business segment? Comment.

b) Is an enterprise required to disclose changes in the basis of allocation of revenue and ex-
penses to segments? Explain. (RTP Nov ‘21)

Answer 3

a) As per AS 17, “A business segment is a distinguishable component of an enterprise that is en-
gaged in providing an individual product or service or a group of related products of services
and that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments.
Factors that should be considered in determining whether products or services are related in-
clude:

(a) the nature of the products of services;

(b) the nature of the productions processes;

(c) the type of class of customers for the products or services;

(d) the methods used to distribute the products or provide the services; and

(e) if applicable, the nature of the regulatory environment, for example, banking, insurance,
or public utilities.”

As per provisions of the standard, a single business segment does not include products and services
with significantly differing risks and returns. Products and services included in a single business segment
may be dissimilar with respect to one or several factors listed above but are expected to be similar with
respectto majority of the factors. In the present case, the Company should consider whether the chem-
icals with different applications, have similar risks end returns. For this purpose, the Company should
ascertain whether one or more types of chemicals are related keeping in view the relevant factors in-
cluding those given in the definition of business segment. Chemicals having different applications can
be included in a single business segment if majority of the relevant factors including those listed above
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are similar. This would ensure that the chemicals having significantly different risks and returns are not in-
cluded in a singlebusiness segment.

b) AsperAS17,“Changesin accounting policies adopted for segment reporting that have a material
effect onsegment information should be disclosed. Such disclosure should include a description
of the nature of the change, and the financial effect of thechangeifitis reasonably determinable.”
It also states that “some changes in accounting policies relate specifically to segment reporting.
Examples include changes in identification of segments and changes in the basis for allocating
revenues and expenses to segments. Such changes can have a significant impact on the seg-
ment information reported but will not change aggregate financial information reported for the
enterprise. To enable users to understand and impact of such changes, this Statement requires
the disclosure of the nature of change and the financial effect of the change, if reasonably de-
terminable”.

In view of the above, a change in the basis of allocation of revenue and expenses to segments is
a change in the accounting policy adopted for segment reporting. Accordingly, if the change has
a material financial effect on the segment information, a description of the nature of the change,
and the financial effect of the change, if it is reasonably determinable, should be disclosed.

Company A is engaged in the manufacture and sale of products, which constitute two distinct business
segments. The products of the Company are sold in the domestic market only. The management in-
formation system of the Company is organized to reflect operating information by two broad market
segments, rural and urban. Besides the two business segments, how should Company A identify geo-
graphical segments? Do geographical segments exist within the same country? Explain in line with the
provisions of AS 17. (RTP May 22) (New SM)

Answer 4

AS 17 explains that, “a single geographical segment does not include operations in economic environ-
ments with significantly differing risks and returns. A geographical segment may be a single country, a
group of two or more countries, or a region within a country”. Accordingly, to identity geographical seg-
ments, Company A needs to evaluate whether the segments reflected in the management information
system function in environments that are subject to significantly differing risks and returns irrespective of
the fact whether they are within the same country.

The Standard recognizes that, “Determining the composition of a business or geographical segment
involves a certain amount of judgement..”. Accordingly, while the management information system of the
Company provides segment information for rural and urban geographical segments for the purpose of
internal reporting, judgement is required to determine whetherthese segments are subject to significantly
differing risks and returns based on the definition of geographical segment. In making such a judgement,
aspect like different pricing and other policies, e.g., credit policies, deployment of resources between dif-
ferent regions etc.,, may be considered for the purpose identifying ‘urban and ‘rural’ as separate geo-
graphical segment. Company A, in making judgmentfor identifying geographical segments, should also
consider the relevance, reliability and comparability over time of segment information that will be report-
ed. The Standard, explains that, “In making that judgement, enterprise management takes into account
the objective of reporting financial information bysegment as set forth in the standard and the qualitative
characteristics of financial statements. The qualitative characteristics include the relevance, reliability
and comparability over time of financial information that is reported about the different groups of prod-
ucts and services of an enterprise and about its operations in particular geographical areas, and the
usefulness of that information for assessingthe risks and returns of the enterprise.”
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Question s

PK Ltd. has identified business segment as its primary reporting format. It has identified India, USA
andUK as three geographical segments. It sells its products in the Indian market, which constitutes
70 percent of the Company'’s sales. 25 per cent is sold in USA and the balance is sold in UK. Is PK Ltd. as
part of its geographical secondary segment information, required to disclose segment revenue from
export sales, where such sales are not significant? (RTP May 19)

Answer 5

As per AS 17 if primary format of an enterprise for reporting segment information is business segments, it
should also report segment revenue from external customers by geographical area based on the geo-
graphical location of its customers, for each geographical segment whose revenue from sales to exter-
nal customers is 10 per cent or more of enterprise revenue. Accordingly, for the purposes of disclosing
secondary segment information, PK Ltd. is not required to disclose segment revenue from export sales
to UK, since that segment does not meet the 10 per cent or more of enterprise revenue threshold. How-
ever, other secondary segment information as per AS 17 should be disclosed in respect ofthis segment
if the thresholds prescribed in the AS 17 are met.

Question 6

(a) Calculate the segment results of a manufacturing organization from the following information:

(RTP Nov 18 & New SM)
Segments A B (o3 Total
Directly attributed revenue 5,00,000 3,00,000 1,00,000 9,00,000
Enterprise revenue (allocated in 1,10,000
5:4: 2 basis)
Revenue from transactions with
othersegments
Transaction fromB 1,00,000 50,000 1,50,000
Transaction from C 10,000 50,000 60,000
Transaction from A 25,000 1,00,000 1,25,000
Operating expenses 3,00,000 1,50,000 75,000 5,25,000
Enterprise expenses (allocated 77,000
in5: 4: 2 basis)
Expenses on transactions with
othersegments
Transaction from B 75,000 30,000
Transaction from C 6,000 40,000
Transaction from A 18,000 82,000
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Answer 6
Calculation of segment result
Segments A B (3 Total
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Directly attributed revenue 5,00,000 3,00,000 1,00,000 9,00,000
Enterprise revenue (allocated in 50,000 40,000 20,000 110,000
5: 4: 2 basis)
Revenue from transactions with other
segments
Transaction from B 1,00,000 50,000 1,50,000
Transaction from C 10,000 50,000 60,000
Transaction from A 25,000 1,00,000 1,25,000
Total segment revenue as per AS 17
(A) 6,60,000 4,15,000 2,70,000 13,45,000
Operating expenses 3,00,000 1,50,000 75,000 5,25,000
Enterprise expenses (allocqted inb 35,000 28,000 14,000 77,000
:4:2 basis)
Expenses on transactions with other
segments
Transaction from B 75,000 30,000 1,05,000
Transaction from C 6,000 40,000 46,000
Transaction from A 18,000 82,000 1,00,000
Total segment expenses as per AS 17
(8) 4,16,000 2,36,000 2,01,000 8,53,000
Segment result (A-B) 2,44,000 1,79,000 69,000 4,92,000

The accountant of Parag Limited has furnished you with the following data related to its Business
Divisions: (Rs. in Lacs)

Division A B © D Total
Segment Revenue 100 300 200 400 1,000
Segment Result 45 -70 80 -10 45
Segment Assets 39 51 48 12 150

You are requested to identify the reportable segments in accordance with the criteria laid down in AS
17. (PYP 5 Marks, Nov 20) (Similar to PYP Jan 21 & Nov 19 but different figures, Old & New SM) (MTP 5 Marks
Sep '23) (RTP Nov '23)
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Answer 7

As per AS 17 ‘Segment Reporting’, a business segment or geographical segment should be identified as
areportable segment if:

Its revenue from sales to external customers and from other transactions with other segments is 10% or
more of the total revenue- external and internal of all segments; or
Its segment result whether profit or loss is 10% or more of:
[l The combined result of all segments in profit; or

[l The combined result of all ssgments in loss, whichever is greater in absolute amount;
or Its segment assets are 10% or more of the total assets of all segments.

On the basis of revenue criteria, segments A, B, C and D - all are reportable segments.

On the basis of the result criteria, segments A, B and C are reportable segments (since their results in
absolute amount is 10% or more of 125 Lakhs). On the basis of asset criteria, all segments except Dare re-
portable segments. Since all the segments are covered in at least one of the above criterig, all segments
have to be reported upon in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 17.

Question 8

M/s Nathan Limited has three segments namely P, Q and R. The assets of the company are Rs. 15
crores. Segment P has 4 crores, Segment Q has 6 crores and Segment R has 5 crores. Deferred tax
assets included in the assets of each segment are P - Rs. 1 crore, Q - Rs. 0.90 crores and R - Rs. 0.80
crores. The accountant contends all these three segments are reportable segments. Comment. (PYP
5 Marks, May 18) (Old & New SM)

Answer 8

According to AS 17 “Segment Reporting”, segment Assets do not include income tax assets.

Therefore, the revised total assets are 12.3 crores [15 - (Rs.1+ 0.9 + 0.8). Details of Segment wise assets
Segment P holds total assets of Rs. 3 crores (Rs. 4 crores — Rs. 1 crores); Segment Q holds Rs. 5.1 crores (Rs.
6 crores — 0.9 crores); Segment R holds Rs. 4.2 crores (Rs.5 crores — Rs. 0.8 crores).

Thus, allthe three segments hold more than 10% of the total assets, all sesgments are reportable segments.
Hence, the contention of the accountant that all three segments are reportable segments is correct.

Question 9

Answer any four of the following:

XYZ Ltd. has 5 business segments. Profit [ Loss of each of the segments for the year ended 3ist
March,2022 has been provided below. You are required to identify from the following whether report-
able segments or not reportable segments, on the basis of “profitability test” as per AS-17.

Segment Profit (Loss) Z in lakhs
A 225
B 25
c (175)
D (20)
E (105)
U J
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(PYP 5 Marks May’22)

Answer 9

As per AS 17 ‘Segment Reporting’, a business segment or geographical segment should be identified as a
reportable segment if:

Its segment results whether profit or loss is 10% or more of:
[l The combined result of all segments in profit; i.e., 250 Lakhs or

[ The combined result of all segments in loss; i.e, T 300 Lakhs Whichever is greater in
absoluteamount i.e., E 300 Lakhs.

Operating Absolute amount of Profit or Reportable Segment Yes or No
Segment Loss (Z In lakhs)
A 225 Yes
B 25 No
C 175 Yes
D 20 No
E 105 Yes

On the basis of the profitability test (result criteria), segments A, C and E are reportable segments (since
their results in absolute amount is 10% or more of Z 300 lakhs i.e., 30 lakhs).

As per AS 17, reportable segments are those whose total revenue from external sales and inter- seg-
mentsales is (Old & New SM)

a. 10% or more of the total revenue of all b. 10% or more of the total revenue of all
segments external segments
c. 12% or more of the total revenue of allseg- d. 12% or more of the total revenue of allexter-
ments nal segments
Ans: (a)

queston1

Which of the following statements is correct? (Old & New SM)

a. Management has a discretion to include a segment as a reportable segment even if it
passes the 10% materiality test.

b. Management has a discretion to include any segment as a reportable segment if it fails the
12% materiality test.

c. Itis mandatory for the management to include the segment as a reportable segment if it
passes the 10% materiality test.

d. It is not mandatory for the management to include the segment as a reportable segment if it
passes the 10% materiality test.
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Ans: (c)

Which of the following statements is correct? (Old & New SM)

The overall test of 75% considers only external revenue to compute the threshold limit.

b. The overall test of 75% considers only internal revenue to compute the threshold limit.

c. The overall test of 75% considers both internal and external revenue to compute
the threshold limit.

d. Itis management choice whether they want to include both external and internal reve-
nue for computing threshold limit.

Ans: (a)

Which of the following statements is correct? (Old & New SM)

a. The 10% test computed on the basis of revenue, considers both internal and external

revenue to compute the threshold limit.

b. The 10% test computed on the basis of revenue, considers only external revenue to

compute the threshold limit.

c. The 10% test computed on the basis of revenue, considers only internal revenue to

compute the threshold limit.

d. Itis management choice whether they want to include both external and internal revenue

for computing threshold limit.

Ans: (a)

Question 14

Which of the following statements is correct? (Old & New SM)

a. In case of 10% test based on profit/loss, we need to consider that any segment whose profit
or loss is 10% or more than the net profit or netloss respectively of all segments taken together
becomes reportable segment.

b. Incase of 10% test based on profit/loss, we need to consider that any segment whose profit
or lossis 10% or more than the net profit (after netting the losses) of all segments taken together
becomes reportable segment.

c. Incase of 10% test based on profit/loss, we need to consider that any segment whose profit
or lossis 10% or more than the net profit or loss (whichever is higher in absolute figures) of
all segments taken together becomes reportable segment.

d. Incase of 10% test based on profit/loss, we need to consider that any segment whose profit
or lossis 10% or more than the net profit or loss (whichever is lower in absolute ﬁgures) of all
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segments taken together becomes reportable segment.

Ans: (c)

Nathan Limited has three segments namely P, Q and R. The assets of the company are 2 15 crores. Seg-
ment P has 4 crores, Segment Q has 6 crores and Segment R has 5 crores. Deferred tax assets included
in the assets of each segment are P - 21 crore, Q - Z 0.90 crores and R - Z 0.80 crores. The accountant
contends all these three segments are reportable segments. Comment.

Practical Questions Anhswers
.|

Answers15

According to AS 17 “Segment Reporting”, segment assets do not include income tax assets.Therefore, the
revised total assets are 12.3 crores [215 - (1+0.9 + 0.8).

Details of Segment wise assets:

Segment P holds total assets of Z 3 crores (2 4 crores - Z1crores); Segment Q holds 5.1 crores (2 6 crores
- Z0.9crores);

Segment R holds Z 4.2 crores (2 5 crores - Z 0.8 crores).

Thus, all the three segments hold more than 10% of the total assets, all sesgments are reportable segments.
Hence, the contention of the Accountant that all three segments are reportable segments is correct.

Questions 16

Company A is engaged in the manufacture and sale of products, which constitute two distinct business
segments. The products of the Company are sold in the domestic market only. The management infor-
mation system of the Company is organized to reflect operating information by two broad marketseg-
ments, rural and urban.

Besides the two business segments, how should Company A identify geographical segments? Do geo-
graphical segments exist within the same country? Explain in line with the provisions of AS 17.

Answers 16

AS 17 explains that, “a single geographical segment does not include operations in economic environ-
ments with significantly differing risks and returns. A geographical segment may be a single country, a
group of two or more countries, or a region within a country”.

Accordingly, to identity geographical segments, Company A needs to evaluate whether the seg-
ments reflected in the management information system function in environments that are subject to sig-
nificantly differing risks and returns irrespective of the fact whether they are within the same country.

The Standard recognizes that, “Determining the composition of a business or geographical segment in-
volves a certain amount of judgement..”. Accordingly, while the management information system of the
Company provides segment information for rural and urban geographical segments for the purpose of
internal reporting, judgement is required to determine whether these segments are subject to significantly
differing risks and returns based on the definition of geographical segment. In making such ajudgement,
aspect like different pricing and other policies, e.g., credit policies, deployment of resourcesbetween differ-
ent regions etc., may be considered for the purpose identifying ‘urban and ‘rural’ as separate geograph-
ical segment.
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Company A, in making judgment for identifying geographical segments, should also consider the
relevance, reliability and comparability over time of segment information that will be reported. The
Standard, explains that, “In making that judgement, enterprise management takes into account
the objective of reporting financial information by segment as set forth in the standard and the
qualitative characteristics of financial statements. The qualitative characteristics include the relevance,
reliability and comparability over time of financial information that is reported about the different
groups of products and services of an enterprise and about its operations in particular geographical
areas, and the usefulness ofthat information for assessing the risks and returns of the enterprise.”

Questions 17

PK Ltd. has identified business segment as its primary reporting format. It has identified India, USA
and UK as three geographical segments. It sells its products in the Indian market, which consti-
tutes 70 percent of the Company’s sales. 25 per centis sold in USA and the balance is sold in UK.

Is PK Ltd. as part of its geographical secondary segment information, required to disclose segment
revenue from export sales, where such sales are not significant?

Answers 17

As per AS 17, if primary format of an enterprise for reporting segment information is business segments,
it should also report segment revenue from external customers by geographical area based on the
geographical location of its customers, for each geographical segment whose revenue from sales to
external customers is 10 per cent or more of enterprise revenue.

Therefore, for the purposes of disclosing secondary segment information, PK Ltd. is not required to dis-
close segment revenue from export sales to UK, since that segment does not meet the 10 per cent ormore
of enterprise revenue threshold. However, other secondary segment information as per AS 17 should be
disclosed in respect of this segment if the thresholds prescribed in the AS 17 are met.

Questions 18

XYZ Ltd. has 5 business segments. Profit [ Loss of each of the segments for the year ended 31st March,
20X2 have been provided below. You are required to identify from the following whether report-
ablesegments or not reportable segments, on the basis of “profitability test” as per AS-17.

Segment Profit (Loss) Zin lakhs
A 225
B 25
c (175)
D (20)
E (105)
Answers18

As per AS 17 ‘'Segment Reporting’, a business segment or geographical segment should be identified
as a reportable segment if:

Its segment results whether profit or loss is 10% or more of:

[0 The combined result of all segments in profit; i.e. € 250 Lakhs or

[ The combined result of all segments in loss; i.e. € 300 LakhsWhichever is greater in absolute )—-
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amount i.e. 300 Lakhs.
Operating Segment Absolute amount of Profit orLoss (2| Reportable Segment
In lakhs) Yes or No
A 225 Yes
B 25 No
C 175 Yes
D 20 No
E 105 Yes

On the basis of the profitability test (result criteria), segments A, C and E are reportable segments (since
their results in absolute amount is 10% or more ofZ 300 lakhs i.e. 30 lakhs).

Questions 19

ABC Limited has 5 segments namely A, B, C, D and E. The profit/loss of each segment for the year ended
March 3ist, 20X2 is as follows:

Segment Profit/
(Loss) (Zincrore)
A 780
B 1,500
c (2,300)
D (4,500)
E 6,000
Total 1,480
Identify the Reportable segments.
Answers19

In compliance with AS 17, the segment profit/loss of respective segment will be compared with thegreater
of the following:

All segments in profit, i.e, A, Band E - Total profit 8,280 crores.All segments in loss, i.e,, C and D - Total loss
6,800 crores.

Greater of the above - Z 8,280 crores.

Based on the above, reportable segments will be determined as follows:

Segment Profit/(Loss) Absolute Profit/Loss as a % of Reportable Segment
8,280
A 780 9% No
B 1,500 18% Yes
C (2,300) 28% Yes
D (4,500) 54% Yes
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4 E 6,000 72% Yes h
Total 1,480

Questions 20

Heavy Goods Ltd. has 6 segments namely L-Q (below). The total revenues (internal and external),
profitsor losses and assets are set out below:

(In2)
Segment Inter Segment Sales External Sales Profit [ loss Total assets
L 4,200 12,300 3,000 37,500
M 3,500 7,750 1,500 23,250
N 1,000 3,500 (1,500) 15,750
0 0 5,250 (750) 10,500
P 500 5,500 900 10,500
Q 1,200 1,050 600 5,250
10,400 35,350 3,750 1,02,750

Heavy Goods Ltd. needs to determine how many reportable segments it has. You are required to
advice Heavy Goods Ltd. as per the criteria defined in AS 17.

Answers 20
Quantitative Threshold Test:
Revenue Test:

Combined total sales of all the segment = 210,400 + Z 35,350 =  45,750.
10% thresholds = 45,750 x 10% = 4,575.

Profitability Test:

In the given situation, combined reported profit = 6,000 and combined reported loss (Z 2,250).
Hence,for 10% thresholds g 6,000 will be considered.

10% thresholds = 6,000 x 10% = 600 Asset
Test:

Combined total assets of all the segment = 2 1,02,750 10% thresholds = g 1,02,750 x 10% = 10,275Accord-
ingly, quantitative thresholds are calculated below:

Reportable
Segments L M N o P Q
segments
% segment sales to | 36.66% | 24.59% 9.84% 11.48% 13.11% 4.92% L, M,OP
total sales
% segment profit to | 50% 25% 25% 12.5% 15% 10% LM,N,O,P,Q
total profits
% segment assets | 36.50% 22.63% 15.33% 10.22% 10.22% 511% LM,N,O,P
to total assets
\_ /
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Conclusion:

Segments L, M, O and P clearly satisfy the revenue and assets tests and they are separate reportable
segments.

Segment N does not satisfy the revenue test, but it does satisfy the asset test and it is a reportable
segment.

Segment Q does not satisfy the revenue or the assets test but is does satisfy the profits test. Therefore,
Segment Q is also a reportable segment.

Hence all segmentsi.e. L, M, N, O, P and Q are reportable segments.

Calculate the segment results of a manufacturing organization from the following information:

Segments A B Cc Total
Directly attributed revenue 5,00,000 3,00,000 1,00,000 9,00,000
Enterprise revenue 1,10,000

(allocated in 5:4 : 2 basis)

Revenue from transactions with

other segments

Transaction from B 1,00,000 50,000 1,50,000
Transaction from C 10,000 50,000 60,000
Transaction from A 25,000 1,00,000 1,25,000
Operating expenses 3,00,000 1,560,000 75,000 5,25,000
Enterprise expenses 77,000

(allocated in 5 :4 :2 basis)

Expenses on transactions with other

segments
Transaction from B 75,000 30,000
Transaction fromC 6,000 40,000
Transaction from A 18,000 82,000
Answers 21
Computation of segment result:
Segments A B C Total
4 (4 (4 4
Directly attributed revenue 5,00,000 3,00,000 1,00,000 9,00,000
Enterprise revenue 50,000| 40,000 20,000| 110,000
(allocated in 5 :4 :2 basis)
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4 Revenue from transactions with other ’
segments
1,00,000 50,000 1,50,000
Transaction from B
10,000 60,000
Transaction from C
50,000 1,00,000 1,25,000
Transaction from A
6,60,000 25,000 2.70,000 13,45,000
Total segment revenue (1)Op- 3,00,000 | 415,000 75,000| 525,000
erating expenses Enterprise 35,000 | 150,000 14,000 77,000
expenses (allocated in 5:4:2 28,000
basis)
Expenses on transactions with otherseg-
ments
75,000 30,000 1,05,000
Transaction from B
6,000 46,000
Transaction from C
40,000 82,000 1,00,000
Transaction from A
416,000 18,000 2,01,000 8,53,000
Total segment expenses (2) 2,44,000 | 2,36,000 69,000 4,92,000
Segment result (1-2) 179,000

Question 22 (lllustration)

The Chief Accountant of Sports Ltd. gives the following data regarding its six segments:

inlakhs
Particulars M N o P Q R Total
Segment Assets 40 80 30 20 20 10 200
Segment Results 50 (190) 10 10 (10) 30 (100)
Segment Revenue 300 620 80 60 80 60 1,200

The Chief accountant is of the opinion that segments “M” and “N” alone should be reported. Is he
justified in his view? Discuss.
Answers 22

As per AS 17 'Segment Reporting’, a business segment or geographical segment should be identified
as a reportable segment if:

Its revenue from sales to external customers and from other transactions with other segments is 10%
or more of the total revenue- external and internal of all segments; or

Its segment result whether profit or loss is 10% or more of:

B The combined result of all segments in profit; or

] - -
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B The combined result of all segments in loss,whichever is greater in absolute amount; or
Its segment assets are 10% or more of the total assets of all segments.

If the total external revenue attributable to reportable segments constitutes less than 75% of total
enterprise revenue, additional segments should be identified as reportable segments even if they
do notmeet the 10% thresholds until atleast 75% of total enterprise revenue is included in reportable seg-
ments. Onthe basis of turnover criteria segments M and N are reportable segments.

On the basis of the result criteria, segments M, N and R are reportable segments (since their results in
absolute amount is 10% or more ofZ 200 lakhs).

On the basis of asset criteria, all segments except R are reportable segments.

Since all the segments are covered in at least one of the above criteria, all sesgments have to be reportedin
accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 17. Hence the opinion of chief accountant is wrong.

Question 23 (lllustration)

A Company has an inter-segment transfer pricing policy of charging at costless 10%. The market prices
are generally 25% above cost. Is the policy adopted by the company correct?

Answers 23

AS 17 ‘Segment Reporting’ requires that inter-segment transfers should be measured on the basis
that the enterprise actually used to price these transfers. The basis of pricing inter-segment trans-
fers and anychange therein should be disclosed in the financial statements. Hence the enterprise
can have its own policy for pricing inter-segment transfers and hence inter-segment transfers may be
based on cost, below cost or market price. However, whichever policy is followed, the same should be
disclosed and applied consistently. Therefore, in the given case inter-segment transfer pricing policy
adopted by the companyis correct if, followed consistently.

Question 24 (lllustration)

M/s XYZ Ltd. has three segments namely X, Y, Z. The total Assets of the Company are 2 10.00 crores.
Segment X hasZ 2.00 crores, segment Y has 2 3.00 crores and segment Z hasZ 5.00 crores. Deferred tax
assets included in the assets of each segments are X- g 0.50 crores, Y—2 0.40 crores and Z— 0.30
crores. The accountant contends that all the three segments are reportable segments. Comment.

Answers 24

According to AS 17 “Segment Reporting”, segment assets do not include income tax assets. Therefore,
the revised total assets are Z 8.8 crores [2 10 crores - (2 0.5 + Z 0.4 +2 0.3)]. Segment X holds total as-
sets of 2 1.5 crores (2 2 crores -2 0.5 crores); Segment Y holds Z 2.6 crores (2 3 crores -2 0.4 crores);
and Segment Z holds 2 4.7 crores (2 5 crores —2 0.3 crores). Thus all the three segments hold more than
10% of the total assets, all segments are reportable segments.

\_ J
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Question 25 (lllustration)

Prepare a segmental report for publication in Diversifiers Ltd. from the following details of the

company’s three divisions and the head office:

2 (“000)

Forging Shop Division
Sales to Bright Bar Division 4,575
Other Domestic Sales 90
Export Sales 6,135
Bright Bar Division 10,800
Sales to Fitting Division 45
Export Sales to Rwanda 300
Fitting Division 345
Export Sales to Maldives 270
Particulars Head Office ForgingShop | Bright BarDivi- | FittingDivi-
2 (“000) Division sion sion
Z (‘000) Z(“000) Z (*000)
Pre-tax operating result 240 30 (12)
Head office cost reallocated 72 36 36
Interest costs 6 8 2
Fixed assets 75 300 60 180
Net current assets 72 180 60 135
Long-term liabilities 57 30 15 180

J
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Answers 25
Diversifiers Ltd. Segmental Report (2'000)
Divisions Inter Seg- Consolidated
Particulars Forg- Bright | Fitting ment Elimi- Total
ing Bar nations
shop
Segment Revenue
Sales:
Domestic 90 - - - 90
Export 6,135 300 270 - 6,705
External Sales 6,225 300 270 - 6,795
Inter-Segment Sales 4,575 45 - 4,620 -
Total Revenue 10,800 345 270 4,620 6,795
Segment Result (Given) 240 30 (12) 258
Head Office Expenses (144)
Operating Profit na
Interest Expense (16)
Profit Before Tax 98
Information in Relation
to Assets and Liabilities:
Fixed Assets 300 60 180 - 540
Net Current Assets 180 60 135 - 375
Segment assets 480 120 315 - 915
Unallocated Corporate
Assets (75 + 72) - - - - 147
Total assets 1,062
Segment liabilities 30 15 180 - 225
Unallocated corporate 57
liabilities
Total liabilities 282
Sales Revenue by Geographical Market (2 ‘000)
H o m e |Export Sales (by forging | Export to | Export to|Consolidated
Sales shop division) Rwanda Maldives | Total
External sales 90 6,135 300 270 6,795
\. J
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Question 26 (lllustration)

Microteach Ltd. produces batteries for scooters, cars, trucks, and specialized batteries for investors
andUPS. How many segments should it have and why?

Answers 26

In case of Microtech Ltd,, the basic product is the batteries, but the risks and returns of the batteries for
automobiles (scooters, cars and trucks) and batteries for invertors and UPS are affected by different set
of factors. In case of automobile batteries, the risks and returns are affected by the Government policy,
road conditions, quality of automobiles, etc. whereas in case of batteries for invertors and UPS, the risks
and returns are affected by power condition, standard of living, etc. Therefore, it can be said that Mi-
crotech Ltd. has two business segments viz- ‘Automobile batteries’ and ‘batteries for Invertors and UPS'.

Reference: The students are advised to refer the full text of AS 17 “Segment Reporting”.
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Chapter 4.4

AS 18- Related Party Disclosures

L G MAY | NOV MAY |NOV | MAY |NOV | MAY NOV |MAY |NOV |MAY |NOV
SO EEN 2018 | 2018 2019 | 2019 | 2020 | 2020 | 2021 2021 2022 | 2022 |2023 | 2023

Study Mat. Q.12T0 Q.32

Past Exams [JeX] Q.2,Q.10 | Q.9 NO NO NO NO Q.l NO NO Qn NO

MTP NO NO NO NO Q.3 Q2 |Q.l1Q2 |NO Q.2 Q.3 Q.4 Q.1,Q.2
RTP Q.7 Q.4 NO NO Q.4 Q4 Q6 Q.5 Q.8 Q.1 NO Q.9
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Chapter4.4

AS 18- Related Party Disclosures

SP hotels Limited enters into an agreement with Mr. A for running its hotel for a fixed return payable to the
later every year. The contract involves the day-to-day management of the hotel, while all financial and
operating policy decisions are taken by the Board of Directors of the company. Mr. A does not ownany
voting power in SP Hotels Limited. Would he be considered as a related party of SP Hotels Limited?Also
explain the required related party disclosure requirements under AS 182 (MTP 5 Marks April 21, Sep 23,
RTP Nov 22, PYP 5 Marks July'21) (Same concepts but lesser adjustments as RTP Nov'19, May'19)

Answer 1

Mr. A will not be considered as a related party of SP Hotels Limited in view of AS 18 which states, “individ-
uals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the reporting enterprise thatgives
them control or significant influence over the enterprise, and relatives of any such individual”. In thegiven
case, in the absence of share ownership, Mr. A would not be considered to exercise significant influence
on SP Hotels Limited, even though there is an agreement giving him the power to manage the company.
Further, the fact that Mr. A does not have the ability to direct or instruct the board of directorsdoes not
qualify him as a key management personnel.

Related Party Disclosures: Name of the related party and nature of the related party relationship where
control exists should be disclosed irrespective of whether or not there have been transactions between
the related parties.

This is to enable users of financial statements to form a view about the effects of related party relation-
ships on the enterprise.

If there have been transactions between related parties, during the existence of a related party relation-
ship, the reporting enterprise should disclose the following:

(i) The name of the transacting related party;

(ii) A description of the relationship between the parties;

(iii) A description of the nature of transactions;

(iv) Volume of the transactions either as an amount or as an appropriate proportion;
(a) Any other elements of the related party transactions necessary for an
(b) understanding of the financial statements;

(c) The amounts or appropriate proportions of outstanding items pertaining to related parties
at the balance sheet date and provisions for doubtful debts due from such parties at

that date;
(d) Amounts written off or written back in the period in respect of debts due from or to related
parties.
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(i) Mr. Raj a relative of key management personnel received remuneration of Rs. 2,50,000 for his
services in the company for the period from 1.4.2020 to 30.6.2020. On 1.7.2020, he left the service.
Should the relative be identified as at the closing date i.e. on 31.3.2021 for the purposes of AS

18? (MTP 5 Marks March 21, Oct’20, Mar’22, Old & New SM) (Same concept different figures PYP 2.5
Marks July’21, PYP 2.5 Marks, Nov ‘18)

(ii) X Ltd. sold goods to its associate Company during the 1st quarter ending 30.6.2020. After that,
the related party relationship ceased to exist. However, goods were supplied as were supplied to
any other ordinary customer. Decide whether transactions of the entire year need disclosure as
related party transaction. (MTP 5 Marks March 21, Oct’20, Mar'22 & Oct ‘23, Old & New SM)

Answer 2

(i) According to AS 18 on ‘Related Party Disclosures’, parties are considered to be related if at any time
during the reporting period one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise signifi-
cant influence over the other party in making financial and/or operating decisions. Hence, Mr. Raj,
a relative of key management personnel should be identified as related party for disclosure in the
financial statements for the year ended 31.3.2021.

(i) Asper AS18, transactions of X Ltd. with its associate company for the first quarter ending 30.06.2020
only are required to be disclosed as related party transactions. The transactions for the period in
which related party relationship did not exist need not be reported.

You are required to identify the related parties in the following cases as per AS 18: M Ltd. holds 61 %
shares of S Ltd. S Ltd. holds 51 % shares of F Ltd. C Ltd. holds 49% shares of F Ltd. (Give your answer - Re-
porting Entity wise for M Ltd., S Ltd., C Ltd. and F Ltd.) (MTP 5 Marks May 20 & Sep ‘22) (PYP 2.5 MarksMay
18)
Answer 3
(a) Reporting entity- M Ltd.
0 S Ltd. (subsidiary) is a related party
0 FLtd.(subsidiary) is a related party
(b) Reporting entity- S Ltd.
[ MLtd. (holding company) is a related party
0 FLtd. (subsidiary) is a related party
(c) Reporting entity- F Ltd.
[ MLtd. (holding company) is a related party
0 sLtd. (holding company) is a related party
[ C Ltd. (investor/ investing party) is a related party
(d) Reporting entity- C Ltd.
0 FLtd. (associate) is a related party
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Question 4

J

(i) onthe basis of provisions of AS 18 ‘Related Party Disclosures’: Identify the related parties in the
following cases:

X Limited holds 60% shares of Y Limited Y Limited holds 55% shares of W Limited Z Limited holds
35% shares of W Limited

(ii) Himalaya Limited sold goods for 40 Lakhs to Aravalli Limited during financial year ended on
March 31, 2022. The Managing Director of Himalaya Limited owns 80% shares of Aravalli Limited.
The sales were made to Aravalli Limited at normal selling prices followed by Himalaya Limited.
The chief accountant of Himalaya Limited contends that these sales need not require a differ-
ent treatment from the other sales made by the company and hence no disclosure is necessary
as per AS 18. You are required to comment on this. (MTP 5 Marks March "23, RTP Nov '20) (Same
concept different figures RTP May’20, RTP Nov'18, Old & New SM)

Answer 4

(i) X Ltd., Y Ltd. & W Ltd. are related to each other. Z Ltd. & W Ltd. are related to each other
by virtueof associate relationship. However, neither X Ltd. nor Y Ltd. is related to Z Ltd. and
vice versa since neither control nor significant influence exists between them.

(ii) Himalaya Ltd. and Aravalli Ltd are related parties since key management personnel of Hima-
laya Ltd.

i.e. its managing director holds 80% in Aravalli Ltd. and hence disclosure of transaction between them is
required irrespective of whether the transaction was done at normal selling price. Hence the contention
of Chief Accountant of Himalaya Ltd that these sales require no disclosure under related party Trans-
actions, is wrong.

(a) omega Bank Limited holds 25 per cent of the voting power of B Limited. Omega Bank Limited
also provides finance by way of a loan to B Limited at market rates of interest, on account
of which, Omega Bank Limited would have the power to nominate one person to the board
of directors of B Limited. Any major transactions proposed to be entered into by B Limited
would need the consent of Omega Bank Limited. Would Omega Bank Limited be considered
as related party for B Ltd. (reporting enterprise)?

(b) A Limited has two Associates, B Limited and C Limited, and owns 25 per cent of the voting
power of B Limited and 30 per cent of the voting power of C Limited. Would Be Limited be
considered a related partyfor the purpose of financial statements of C Limited? (RTP Nov ‘21)

Answer 5

(a) Omega Bank Limited would be a related party of B Limited. As per AS18 “associates and joint ven-
tures of thereporting enterprise and the investing party of venture in respect of which the report-
ing enterprise is an associate or a joint venture” are related party relationship. Further, an as-
sociate has been defined as “an enterprise in which an investing reporting party has significant
influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture of the party”. Significant influence has
been defined to be “participation in the financial and [oroperating policy decisions of an enterprise, but
not control of those policies”. Further, it is given in the standard that significant influence may be gained
by share ownership, agreement or statute. As regards share ownership,there is a presumption
that ownership of 20 per cent or more of the voting power enables the enterpriseto exercise sig-
nificant influence, unless it could be clearly demonstrated otherwise. In the given example, Ome-
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ga Bank Limited exercises significant influence over B Limited by virtue of ownership of 25 per cent of
the voting power. Omega Bank Limited is also a provider of finance for B Limited (as it has provided a
loan to B Limited), and as per the standard, a provider of finance is deemed not to be a related party
during its normal dealings with the enterprise by virtue only of those dealing. However, in this case, the
exemption would not be available to Omega Bank Limited as the exercise of significant influence of
Omega Bank Limited over B Limited has been demonstrated on account of ownership of more than 20
per cent of votingpower. Accordingly, Omega Bank Limited would be construed to be a related party
in the financial statements of B Limited and consequently, the latter would be required to disclose the
transactions with Omega Bank Limited in its financial statements.

(b) Both B Limited and C Limited are ‘associates’ of A Limited. Follow-associates cannot be regarded as a
related parties only by virtue of the relationship. AS 18 states that “enterprise that directly, or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by, or are under common control with,
the reporting enterprise” are related parties. Further, it is given that “associates and joint ventures of
the reporting enterprise and the investing party or venture in respect of which the reporting enterprise
is an associate or a joint venture” are also related parties. As B Limited is not an associate of C Limited,
nor is it being controlled, directly or indirectly, by C Limited or is not so controlling C Limited, it is not a
related partyof C Limited.

R Ltd. has 60% voting right in S Ltd. S Ltd. has 15% voting right in T Ltd. R Ltd. directly enjoys voting right of
10% in T Ltd. T Ltd. is a listed company and regularly supplies goods to R Ltd. The management of T Ltd. has
not disclosed its relationship with R Ltd. You are required to assess the situation from the view point of AS
18 on Related Party Disclosures. (RTP May 21)

Answer 6

AS 18 ‘Related Party Disclosures’, defines related party as one that has at any time during the reporting period,
the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in makingfinancial
and/or operating decisions.

Definition for Control

Here, control is defined as ownership directly or indirectly of more than one-half of the voting power of an
enterprise; and Significant Influence is defined as participation in the financial and/or operating policydeci-
sions of an enterprise but not control of those policies.

Nature of Relationship

R Ltd. has direct economic interest in T Ltd. to the extent of 10%, and through S Ltd. in which it is the majority
shareholders, it has further control of 9% in T Ltd. (60% of S Ltd.'s 15%). These two taken together (10% + 9%)
make the total control of 19%.

Conclusion

In the present case, control of R Ltd. in T Ltd. directly and through S Ltd., is only 19%. Significant influencemay
also not be exercised as an investing party (R Ltd.) holds, directly or indirectly through intermediariesonly 19%
of the voting power of the T Ltd. Accordingly, R Ltd. and T Ltd. are not related parties. Hence related party dis-
closure, as per AS 18, is not required.
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Question 7

Is remuneration paid to Board of Directors a related party transaction? Explain. (RTP May 18)

Answer 7

In case of a Company, the Managing Director, whole time director, manager and any person in accor-
dance with whose directions or instructions the board of directors of the company is accustomed to
act, are

usually considered Key Managerial Personnel (KMP). Persons who do not have the authority and re-
sponsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the enterprise would not be KMP.
Conversely, persons without any formal titles may be considered to be KMP, if they plan, direct and control
the activities of the enterprise.

Further, as per Sec 2(76) of Companies Act, 2013, a related party includes a director or his relative. Sec
2(34) defines a director as a director appointed to the Board of a Company. Hence, remuneration paid
to Board of Directors will be considered as related party transaction.

Question 8

a) Inrespect of a key supplier who is dependent on the company for its existence and the com-
pany enjoys influence over the prices of this supplier (which may not be formally demonstra-
ble), can the supplier andthe company be considered as related parties?

b) Define “Key management personnel” in the context of AS 18. (RTP May 22)

Answer 8

(a The supplier and the company cannot be considered to be related parties merely because the
latter is able to influence the transaction price between the parties. Paragraph 3 of AS 18 states
that “enterprises that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are
controlled by, or are under common control with, the reporting enterprise” are considered to be
related party relationships. However, the conditions which define the existence of control, as fol-
lows, are not satisfied in the given example.

[l ‘ownership, directly or indirectly, of more than one-half of the voting power of an enterprise, or

[l Control of the composition of the board of directors in the case of a company or of the compo-
sition of thecorresponding governing body in case of any other enterprise, or

[l a substantial interest in voting power and the power to direct, by statue or agreement, the fi-
nancial and/oroperating policies of the enterprise”. Paragraph 10 of the standard defines sig-
nificant influence as “participation in the financial and/or operating policy decisions of an en-
terprise, but not control of those policies”. In the given example, although the supplier and the
company have entered into a commercial transaction, the terms of which are influenced by the
latter because of its better bargaining power in the specific market for such goods, it cannot be
concluded that there is participation in the financial and/or operating policy decisions. There-
fore, as the conditions specified by the Standard for being classified as a related party are not
satisfied in the given example, the company cannot be said to be related to the supplier.This view
is supported by paragraph 4 (b) of the Standard which states that “a single customer, supplier,
franchiser, distributor, or general agent with whom an enterprise transacts a significant volume
of businessmerely by virtue of the resulting economic dependence” would not be deemed to be
related parties.
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(b) In context of AS 18, “Key management personnel” are those persons who have the authority and

responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the reporting enterprise. For

example, in the case of a company, the managing director(s), whole time director(s), manager

and any person in accordance with whose directions or instructions the board of directors of the
company is accustomed to act, are usually considered key management personnel.

Identify the related parties in the following cases as per AS-18

(i) Maya Ltd. holds 61 % shares of Sheetal Ltd. Sheetal Ltd. holds 51 % shares of Fair Ltd.Care Ltd.
holds 49% shares of Fair Ltd. (Give your answer - Reporting Entity wise for Maya Ltd., Sheetal
Ltd., Care Ltd. and Fair Ltd.) (RTP Nov '23)

(ii) Mr. subhash Kumar is Managing Director of a Ltd. and also holds 72% capital of B Ltd.
(PYP 5 Marks May "19)

Answer 9
() a) Reporting entity- Maya Ltd.
e Sheetal Ltd. (subsidiary) is a related party
e Fair Ltd.(subsidiary) is a related party
(b) Reporting entity- Sheetal Ltd.
e Maya Ltd. (holding company) is a related party
e Fair Ltd. (subsidiary) is a related party
(c) Reporting entity- Fair Ltd.
e Maya Ltd. (holding company) is a related party
e Sheetal Ltd. (holding company) is a related party
e  Care Ltd. (investor/ investing party) is a related party
(d) Reporting entity- Care Ltd.
o Fair Ltd. (associate) is a related party

(i) Mr. Subhash Kumar is Key management personnel as he has the authority for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of A Ltd. He also holds substantial interest in B Ltd. as he holds 72% cap-
ital ofB Ltd. Thus, Mr. Subhash is related party for both A Ltd. and B Ltd. Moreover, as per the definition
of related party relationship described in para 3 of AS 18, enterprises over which Subhash is able to
exercise significant influence are also related parties. Thus, a Ltd. and B Ltd. willalso be construed as
related to each other.

Question 10

Following transactions are disclosed as on 31st March, 2018:

Goods sold amounting to Rs. 50 lakhs to associate company during the Ist quarter ended on 30th June,
2017. After that related party relationship ceased to exist. However, goods were supplied as was sup-
plied to any other ordinary customer. Decide whether transactions of the entire year have to be dis-
closed as related party transaction. (PYP 2.5 Marks, Nov ‘18)
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Answer 10

As per provision of AS 18, the transactions only for the period in which related party relationships exist
need to be reported.

Hence, transactions of the entity with its associate company for the first quarter ending 30.06.2017 only
are required to be disclosed as related party transactions. Transactions of the entire year need not be
disclosed as related party transactions and transactions for the period (after Ist July) in which related
party relationship did not exist need not be reported.

Hence transaction of sale of goods with the associate company for first quarter ending 30th June, 2017
forRs. 50 Lakhs only are required to be disclosed as related party transaction on 31.3.18.

Answer the following with respect to AS-18:

(i) ABCLtd.soldgoods ofRs.2,00,000toits associate company for the Istquarter ending 30.06.2022.
After that the related party relationship ceased to exist. However, goods were supplied to any
other ordinary customer. Decide whether transactions of the entire year have to be disclosed
as related party transaction.

(ii)) 1f the majority of directors of Arjun Ltd. constitute the majority of the Board of another Company
Bheem Ltd. in their individual capacity as professionals (and not by virtue of their being Direc-
tors in Arjun Ltd.). Are both the companies related?

(iii) AshaLtd. sells all the manufactured furniture of Rs.1,00,00,000 to Sasha Ltd, as per agreement.
Sasha Ltd. is the only customer to Asha Ltd. In the financial statements, Asha Ltd. wants to pres-
entSasha company as a related party. Comment on the disclosure requirement. (PYP 5 Marks
May '23)

Answer 11

i) As per AS 18, parties are considered to be related if any time during the reporting period one par-
ty has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party.
Transactions of ABC Ltd. with its associate company for the first quarter ending 30.06.2022 only are
required to be disclosed as related party transactions as the company has the ability to exercise
significant influence only till 30.6.2022.

The transactions for the period in which related party relationship did not exist need not be reported.

(ii) In the given case, Arjun Ltd. cannot be said to control the composition of board of directors of
Bheem Ltd. as the directors have been appointed in their individual capacity as professionals and
not by virtue of their being directors in Arjun Ltd.

Hence, it cannot be concluded that the companies are related merely because the maijority of the
directorsof one company became the maijority of the directors of the second in their individual
capacity as professionals.

(iii) In the context of AS 18, a single customer, supplier, franchiser, distributor, or general agent with
whom an enterprise transacts a significant volume of business cannot be construed as Related
Party Relationship merely by virtue of the resulting economic dependence. There is an economic
dependence between the companies but no one controls or exercise significant influence on the
other.

In the given case, Asha Ltd. need not report Sasha Company as its related party in its financial state-
ments.
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Question 2 A

According to AS-18 Related Party Disclosures, which ONE of the following is not a related party ofSky-
lineLimited?

a. A shareholder of Skyline Limited owning 30% of the ordinary share capital
b. An entity providing banking facilities to Skyline Limited in the normal course ofbusiness
c. An associate of Skyline Limited

d. Key management personnel of Skyline Limited

Ans: (b)

queston's

Are the following statements in relation to related parties true or false, according to AS-18 Related
PartyDisclosures?

A) A party is related to another entity that it is jointly controlled by.

B) A party is related to another entity that it controls.

Statement (A) Statement (B)
a. False False
b. False True
c. True False
d. True True
Ans: (d)

Question 14

Which of the following is not a related party as envisaged by AS-18 Related Party Disclosures?

a. A director of the entity b. The parent company of the entity
c. A shareholder of the entity that holds 1% d. The spouse of the managing director of
stake in the entity theentity
Ans: (c)

questonts

According to AS-18 Related Party Disclosures, related party transaction is a transfer of resources
orobligations between related parties — provided a price is charged for such transfer.

a. True b. False
Ans: (b)
\_ J
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Question 16

According to AS-18 Related Party Disclosures, parties are considered to be related, if and only if at the
end of the reporting period - one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial and/or operating decisions.

a. True b. False

Ans: (b)

Theoretical Questions Answers
.|

Questions 17
Who are related parties under AS 18? What are the related party disclosure requirements?

Answers 17

Parties are considered to be related if at any time during the reporting period one party has the ability
to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial
and/or operating decisions.

If there have been transactions between related parties, during the existence of a related party
relationship, the reporting enterprise should disclose the following:

() The name of the transacting related party;

(i) A description of the relationship between the parties;

(iii) A description of the nature of transactions;

(iv) Volume of the transactions either as an amount or as an appropriate proportion;

(v) Any other elements of the related party transactions necessary for an understand-
ing of the financial statements;

(vi) The amounts or appropriate proportions of outstanding items pertaining to related parties at
thebalance sheet date and provisions for doubtful debts due from such parties at that date;

(vii) Amounts written off or written back in the period in respect of debts due from or to related parties.

Questions 18

ABC Limited is in the business of manufacturing textiles. It has certain commercial contracts
with its customers and those customer contracts carry various clauses, imposing restriction on ABC
Limited for disclosure of certain information. Accordingly, the company doesn’t intend to pro-
vide related party disclosure under AS-18 in its ensuing financial statements. Is this correct?

Answers18

As per AS-18 stipulate that related party disclosure requirements under AS- 18 do not apply in cir-
cumstances, where providing such disclosures would conflict with the reporting enterprise’s duties
ofconfidentiality, as specifically required in terms of a statute or by any regulator or similar com-
petent authority.

In case, where (1) a statute or (2) a regulator or (3) a similar competent authority governing an en-
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terprise prohibit the enterprise to disclose certain information, which is required to be disclosed as
per AS 18, disclosure of such information is not warranted. For example, banks are obliged by law to
maintain confidentiality in respect of their customers’ transactions and AS-18 would not override the ob-
ligation to preserve the confidentiality of customers’ dealings.

However, this exemption is not available in respect of confidentiality provisions in a commercial contract
between two enterprises - where confidentiality is not specifically required in terms of (1) a statute or
(2)by any regulator or (3) similar competent authority.

Therefore, in the given case AS-18 related party disclosures would have to be made by ABC Limited in
itsensuing financial statements.

Questions 19

Should the related parties be identified as at the reporting date (i.e. balance sheet date) for the
purposes of AS-18? In disclosing transactions with related parties, are the transactions of the en-
tire reporting period to be disclosed or only those for the period during which related party rela-
tionship exists?

Answers19

As per the definition of related parties in AS-18, the existence of a related party relationship should be iden-
tified at all points during the year (and not only at the close of the financial year). However, AS 18 requires
disclosure of transactions with these parties only during the existence of the related party relationship.

Practical Questions Answers
.|

Questions 20

Mr. Raj, a relative of key management personnel, received remuneration of Rs.2,50,000 for his ser-
vicesin the company for the period from 1.4.20X1 to 30.6.20X1. On 1.7.20X], he left the service of the
company.

Should the relative be identified as at the closing date i.e. on 31.3.20X2 for the purposes of AS 18?

Answers 20

According to AS 18 on ‘Related Party Disclosures’, parties are considered to be related if at any time during

the reporting period one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influ-
ence over the other party in making financial and/or operating decisions. Hence Mr. Raj, a relative
of key management personnel, should be identified as related party for disclosure in the financial
statements for the year ended 31.3.20X2.

X Ltd. sold goods to its associate company during the 1st quarter ended 30.6.20X1. After that, the re-
lated party relationship ceased to exist. However, goods were supplied as were supplied to any other
ordinary customer. Decide whether transactions of the entire year have to be disclosed as related par-
ty transaction.

Crack ur CA CS CMA Exams in1Attempt-Join CA Mentoring Program if you are unable to manage/focus on ur studies.
I I L L |

Batch:Working Students(Job) Batch2: Doing Classes Batch 3: Full time available for Studies Batch 4:Married Students Visit:

CAmentoringprogram.org | +917890770777 | https://t.me/caraviagarwaloriginal all subjects free Question


https://api.whatsapp.com/send/?phone=917890770777&text&type=phone_number&app_absent=0
https://t.me/caraviagarwaloriginal
https://camentoringprogram.org/

Dr. CA Ravi Agarwal's CA Inter Accounts Compiler 6.0 Score70+inAccounts 111

Paper 1-Advanced Accounting

(. )\
Answers 21

As per AS 18, transactions of X Ltd. with its associate company for the first quarter ending 30.06.20X1 only
are required to be disclosed as related party transactions. The transactions for the period in which re-
lated party relationship did not exist would not be reported.

You are required to identify the related parties in the following cases as per AS 18:

M Ltd. holds 61 % shares of S Ltd. S Ltd. holds 51 % shares of F Ltd. C Ltd. holds 49% shares of F Ltd.
(Give your answer - Reporting Entity wise for M Ltd., S Ltd., C Ltd. and F Ltd.)

Answers 22

Reporting Entity Related Party

M Ltd. S Ltd. (subsidiary) FLtd.(subsidiary)

S Ltd. M Ltd. (holding company) FLtd. (subsidi-
ary)

F Ltd. M Ltd. (ultimate holding company) SLtd. (holding
company)
C Ltd. (investor/ investing party)

C Ltd. F Ltd. (associate)

Question 23 (lllustration)

Identify the related parties in the following case as per AS 18:A Ltd. holds 51% of B Ltd.
BLtd holds 51% of O Ltd.Z Ltd holds 49% of O Ltd.

Answers 23

In relation to Reporting enterprise - A Ltd.
0 B Ltd. (subsidiary) is a related party

0 O Ltd.(subsidiary) is a related party

In relation to Reporting enterprise - B Ltd.
0 ALtd. (holding company) is a related party
[ OLtd. (subsidiary) is arelated party

In relation to Reporting enterprise - O Ltd.

0 ALtd. (ultimate holding company) is a related party

0 BLtd. (holding company) is a related party

0 ZLtd. (investor/ investing party) is a related party (O Ltd Being Associate of Z Ltd)
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Reporting enterprise - Z Ltd.

0 oOLtd. (Associate) is arelated party

Question 24 (lllustration)

Consider a scenario wherein:
[0 ALtd.has 60% votingrightinBLtd.
[J AlLtd.alsohas22% votingrightinC Ltd.; and
[0 BLtd.has 30% votingrightin C Ltd.
Whether C Ltd. is to be treated under AS-18 as a party related to A Ltd.?

Answers 24

Yes — in relation to A Ltd. (the reporting enterprise), C Ltd. is a related party under AS-18. This is because A
Ltd. indirectly controls C Ltd.

In this case, A Ltd. (together with its subsidiary B Ltd.) controls more than one half of the voting rights ofC Ltd.
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Question 25 (lllustration)

Consider a scenario wherein:
* ¥ Ltd. holds 28% voting right in Y Ltd. (and hence Y Ltd. is an associate of X Ltd.)
« Y Ltd. holds 32% voting right in 2 Ltd. [and hence Z Ltd. is an associate of ¥ Ltd.)

X Ltd.

28 % Voting
Y Ltd.

32 % Voting
Zltd.

# [nthe abowve case, since ¥ Ltd. is an associate of ¥ Ltd. =¥ Ltd. is a related party to X Ltd.
* Likewise, since I Ltd. is an associate of ¥ Ltd. - Z Ltd. is a related party to ¥ Lbd.
* The guestion is: Whether 2 Ltd. is to be treated under A5-18 as a party related to X Ltd.?

Answer 25
ro = 10 relation to X Ltd. [the reporting enterprise), 2 Ltd. is a mot a related party.

This is because as per the requirements of A5-18, “assocdate of an associate’ & not a related party.

Questions 26 lllustrations

Consider the following organization structure related to P Ltd.

P Lid.
l 80% Shares
0 Lrd.,
60% Shares B0% Shares
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Answers 26

The following table identifies the related party relationships for R Ltd. (being the reporting enterprise):

Party Name Relationship under AS-18

P Ltd. P Ltd. has indirect control on R Ltd. (through Q Ltd.)
Hence R Ltd. is related to P Ltd.

Q Ltd. Q Ltd. has direct control of R Ltd.
Hence R Ltd. is related to Q Ltd.

S Ltd. R Ltd. and S Ltd. are under common control of Q Ltd.
Hence R Ltd. is related to S Ltd.

X Ltd. X Ltd. is controlled by R Ltd.
Hence R Ltd. is related to X Ltd.
Y Ltd. is the sub-subsidiary of Q Ltd.

Y Ltd. Both R Ltd. and Y Ltd. are under common control of Q Ltd.Hence R Ltd. is
related to Y Ltd.

Question 27 (lllustration)

Consider the following organization structure related to UH Ltd. (the ultimate
parent company of aGroup), wherein UH Ltd. has made the following invest-
ments:

[0 Investmentintwo of the wholly owned subsidiaries, viz. Sub 1and Sub 2
0 Investmentin JC 1, in which UH Ltd. has a joint control

[] 20% investmentin Ass 1(and hence, Ass 1is an associate of UH Ltd.)

UH Ltd

100% 100% Joint Control  5go Associate

Sub 1 Sub 2 I I Ass 1

Given the above structure: Identify related party relationships for each of the above entities under
AS-18

] |

\_ J
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Answers 27
The following table identifies the related party relationships for each of the entities in the Group:
O O
Mrs. Andy left on 1 July 2051
Reportingenterprise Related Party as per AS-18
UH Ltd. All the four entities (viz. Sub 1, Sub 2, JC1and Ass 1)
Sub 1 Only two of the entities in the Group (viz. UH Ltd. and Sub 2)
Sub 2 Only two of the entities in the Group (viz. UH Ltd. and Sub 1)
JC1 Only UH Ltd.
Ass 1 Only UH Ltd.
\_ J
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Question 28

Consider a scenario wherein:
&«  Mr. Robert holds 70% shares and voting rights in P Ltd

g

pir. Robert T0% Shares
&) . P Ltd.
aliin, and, has control —

§ ’
P, ~

-
o~
-

Are they related?

Mrs. Andy

Determine: Whether Andy (spouse of Mr. Robert) is a related party to P Ltd. under AS-187

« Answer 28
re=3 — mnay 3 a celated party to P Ltd., inview of the requirements of AS-18.
It may be recalled that under A5-18 ‘relatives of individuals owning an interest in the voting power of the
reporting enterprise that gives them control or significant influence over the enterprise’ are considered
as related parties.

raticn
Consider a scenario wherein:
&« Mr. Robert is 8 Managing Director of P Ltd.
& Andy (spouse of Robert) received a remuneration of Rs 5 lacs from P Ltd. = for the services she
rendered to P Ltd. for the period 1st April 201 through 30th June 20X1
&« Andy left the services of P Ltd. on 1st July 2061
& Consider 31st March 2052 as the year-end date for P Lrd.

MO
fMr. Robert . P Ltd.
. |
Received remunengtionof
" 5 locs
Mrs. Andy “
(Spouse of Mr. Robert)

Year - end 31st

March 20x2

1" April 20X1 30" June 20%1

\_

J

|
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Answers 29

Yes — This is because as per AS-18, parties are considered to be related if at any time during the reporting
period one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and/or operating decisions.

Hence Andy (being the spouse and relative of the KMP of P Ltd.) needs to be reported as related
party atthe year-end date (i.e. 31st March 20X2). This is because the remuneration Andy received from P
Ltd. (for theperiod April 20X1 to 30 June 20X1) falls within the reporting year April 20X1 to March 20X2.

Question 30(lllustration)

Consider a scenario wherein:

® UK Bank holds 23% equity shares with voting rights in P Ltd.
B The bank has provided a loan of Rs. 20 million to P Ltd. at market interest rate

m  As per the terms and conditions of the loan agreement, the bank has appointed one person
as its nominee to the board of directors of P Ltd. and any major transaction to be entered into
by P Ltd. will require the consent of the Bank

Determine: Whether under AS-18 - UK Bank is a related party to P Ltd. (the reporting enter-
prise)?

Answers 30

In the instant case, the UK Bank holds 23% shares with voting rights in P Ltd. and hence is deemed to
exercise significant influence over P Ltd.

The bank is also a provider of finance to P Ltd. (the reporting enterprise) and as per AS-18, parties
like providers of finance are deemed not to be considered as a related party in the course of normal
dealings with an enterprise by virtue only of those dealings. However, this exemption will not be
available to UK Bank in this case - since it exercises significant influence over P Ltd. (by virtue of holding
23% shares with voting rights in P Ltd.)

Accordingly, for P Ltd. (the reporting enterprise), the UK Bank is a related party and it will be required to
disclose the transactions with UK Bank in its financial statements.

\_ J
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Question 31 (lllustration)

Consider a scenario wherein:

®  PLtd. hold 22% shares and voting rights in Q Ltd. (and hence QLLtd. is an associate of P Ltd.)
B OnlstApril 20X1, P Ltd. sold certain goods to Q Ltd. amounting toRs. 5 lacs

®  On 30th June 20X], P Ltd. sold its entire 22% stake in Q Ltd. (and hence the related party rela-
tionshipceased to exist after 30th June 20X1)

m  However, P Ltd. continued supply goods to Q Ltd. subsequent to 30th June 20XI1 (just like any
other customer) and sold goods worth Rs. 15 lacs during 9-month period ended 31st March
20x2

m  Consider 31st March 20X2 as the year-end date for P Ltd.

22% shares and Goods sold on 1* April
voting rights 20X1 amounting to ¥5
lacs
v
[ Q Ltd. ]
= Year end
1% April 20X1 30" June 20X1 37 March 20X2
()
LD @, "0
Goods sold 5 l Goods worth ¥ 15 lacs sold
lacs
Sold entire 22% shareholding

Determine whether the transaction for the entire year (ending on 31st March 20X2) is required to bedis-
closed under AS-18 as related party transaction

Answers 31

No — This is because as per AS-18, the disclosure requirements under the Standard relate only to the peri-
odduring related party relationship existed.

Accordingly, only transactions between P Ltd and Q Ltd till 30th June 20X1 (being sale of goods worth Rs.5
lacs) are required to be reported [ disclosed under AS- 18.

Transactions entered into after 30th June 20X1 are NOT required to be disclosed under AS-18.
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Question 32 (lllustration)

Narmada Ltd. sold goods for Rs. 90 lakhs to Ganga Ltd. during financial year ended 31-3-20X1.
The Managing Director of Narmada Ltd. owns 100% shares of Ganga Ltd. The sales were made to
Ganga Ltd. at normal selling prices by Narmada Ltd. The Chief accountant of Narmada Ltd contends
that these sales need not require a different treatment from the other sales made by the compa-
ny and hence no disclosure is necessary as per the accounting standard. Is the Chief Accountant
correct?

Answers 32

As per AS 18 ‘Related Party Disclosures’, Enterprises over which a key management personnel is able to
exercise significant influence are related parties. This includes enterprises owned by directors or major
shareholders of the reporting enterprise and enterprise that have a member of key management in
common with the reporting enterprise.

In the given case, Narmada Ltd. and Ganga Ltd are related parties and hence disclosure of transaction
between them is required irrespective of whether the transaction was done at normal selling price.

Hence the contention of Chief Accountant of Narmada Ltd is wrong.

\_ J
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Chapter 4.5
AS 20- EPS
LG8 MAY | NOV | MAY | NOV MAY NOV | MAY NOV MAY NOV MAY NOV
LN 2018 | 2018 | 2019 | 2019 | 2020 | 2020 | 2021 | 2021 | 2022 | 2022 |2023| 2023
Study
Mat. Q1370 Q.31
Past Q4 | Q8 | NO | Q2 | NO NO | Q9 | NO Q10 | QN | NO | NO
Exams
MTP Q2 | Q1| Q2| NO| Q2 | Q4 | Q3 |QlQ4|/Q3Q4| Q2 | Q4| Q4
RTP Ql |Q2| Ql | Q1| Qi Q2 | Q6 | Q5 Q.7 Ql | Q2| No
I e —
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Crack ur CA CS CMA Exams in1Attempt-Join CA Mentoring Program if you are unable to manage/focus on ur studies.
I I L L |

Batch:Working Students(Job) Batch2: Doing Classes Batch 3: Full time available for Studies Batch 4:Married Students Visit:

CAmentoringprogram.org | +917890770777 | https://t.me/caraviagarwaloriginal all subjects free Question


https://api.whatsapp.com/send/?phone=917890770777&text&type=phone_number&app_absent=0
https://t.me/caraviagarwaloriginal
https://camentoringprogram.org/

Dr. CA Ravi Ayarwal's CA Inter Accounts Compiler 6.0 Score70+in Accounts 121

Paper 1-Advanced Accounting

N
Chapter 4.5

AS 20- EPS

From the following information, you are required to compute Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share
(EPS) of M/s. XYZ Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2019:

Net Profit for the year after tax: Rs. 75,00,000

Number of Equity Shares of Rs.10 each outstanding: Rs. 10,00,000

1,00,000, 8% Convertible Debentures of Rs. 100 each were issued by the Company at the beginning of
the year. 1,10,000 Equity Shares were supposed to be issued on conversion. Consider rate of Incom-
eTax as 30% (MTP 5 Marks Oct’18, RTP May 20) (Same concept different figures- MTP 5 Marks Nov'21,
RTP Nov’19, RTP May’19, RTP Nov’22, RTP May’18)

Answer 1

Computation of basic earnings per share

Net profit for the current year / Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding duringthe
year Rs. 75,00,000 / 10,00,000 = Rs. 7.50 per share

Computation of diluted earnings per share

Adjusted net profit for the current year

Rs.

Net profit for the current year 75,00,000
Add: Interest expense for the current year 8,00,000
Less: Tax relating to interest expense (30% of Rs.8,00,000)  (2,40,000)
Adjusted net profit for the current year 80,60,000

Number of equity shares resulting from conversion of debentures

= 110,000 Equity shares (given in the Question)

Weighted average number of equity shares used to compute diluted earnings per share
=11,10,000 shares (10,00,000 + 1,10,000)

Diluted earnings per share

=Rs. 80,60,000/ 11,10,000

= Rs. 7.26 per share

Note: Conversion of convertible debentures into Equity Share will be dilutive potential equity shares.
Hence, to compute the adjusted profit the interest paid on such debentures will be added back as the
same would not be payable in case these are converted into equity shares.

From the following information, you are required to compute the basic and adjusted Earnings per

share:
\_ J
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( Net profit for 2015-16 1T lakh )
Net profit for 2016-17 15 lakh
No. of shares issued before rights issue 5 lakhs
Right issue One for every 5 held
Right issue price 15 per share
Last date of exercising right option 1-06-2016
Fair value of shares before right issue 21 per share

(MTP 5 Marks- Mar‘19, Mar'18) (Same concept different figures MTP 5 Marks May’20, MTP 5 Marks
Sep’22, RTP Nov'20, RTP Nov’'18, May’23, PYP 5 Marks Nov’19, Old & New SM)

Answer 2

Computation of theoretical ex-rights fair value per Share

Fair value of all outstanding shares immediately prior to exercise of rights : Total amount received from exercise of rights

Number of Shares outstanding prior to exercise :number of Shares issued in the exercise

(RS. 21.00 = 5,00,000 .S'ha‘.r‘esj + (RS. 15.00 = 1,00,000 Shm'es}
5.00,000 Shares + 1,00,000 Shares

Thearetical ex—rights fair value per share = Rs. 20.00
Computation of earnings per share

(a) Computation of adjustment factor
{h} Fair value per share prior to exercise of rights _ (2L.00)

1.05

Theoretical ex :rights value per share (20.00) -

Computation of earnings per share Year 2015-16 | Year2016-17
EPS for the year 2015-16 as originally reported: Rs.2.20
(Rs. 11,00,000/5,00,000 shares)
EPS for the year 2015-16 restated for rights issue: Rs.2.10
[Rs. 11,00,000/ (5,00,000 shares x 1.05)]
EPS for the year 2016-17 including effects of rights issue Rs. 2.55

}‘S.DG.DUD

(5,00,000 x <) + (6,00,000 x =)
17 12

16
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Explain the concept of ‘weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period’.
Also compute, based on AS 20, the weighted average number of equity shares in the following case:
(MTP 5 Marks April 21, April 22)

No. of shares
1st April, 2020 Balance of equity shares 7,20,000
31st August, 2020 Equity shares issued for cash 2,40,000
Ist February, 2021 Equity shares bought back 1,20,000
31st March, 2021 Balance of equity shares 8,40,000

Answer 3

As per AS 20, “Earnings Per Share”, the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period reflects the fact that the amount of shareholders’ capital may have varied during the period
as a result of a larger or less number of shares outstanding at any time. For the purpose of calculating
basic earnings per share, the number of equity shares should be the weighted average number of eg-
uityshares outstanding during the period.

Weighted average number of equity shares:

7,20,000 X 5/12 = 3,00,000 shares
9,60,000 X 5/12 = 4,00,000 shares
8,40,000 X 2/12 =1,40,000 shares

= 8,40,000 shares

Question 4

On 1Ist April, 2021 a company had 6,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each (Rs. 5 paid up by all share-
holders). On 1st September, 2019 the remaining Rs. 5 was called up and paid by all shareholders ex-
cept one shareholder having 60,000 equity shares. The net profit for the year ended 31st March, 2022
was Rs. 21,96,000 after considering dividend on preference shares and dividend distribution tax on
such dividend totaling to Rs. 3,40,000. You are required to compute Basic EPS for the year ended 31st
March, 2022 as per Accounting Standard 20 “Earnings Per Share”. (MTP 5 Marks Mar’22, Oct ‘20& Oct
'21, March '23 & Oct ‘23, PYP 5 Marks, May '18, Old & New SM)

Answer 4

Net Profit attributable to equity shareholders

Basic Earnings per share (EPS) =

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year

B 21,956,000 = Rs. 4.80 per share

4,57,500 Shares (as per working note)

Working Note:

Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares

\_ J
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As per AS 20 ‘Earnings Per Share’, partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of equity share to
the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividend relative to a fully paid equity share during the
reporting period. Assuming that the partly paid shares are entitled to participate in the dividend to the
extent of amount paid, weighted average number of shares will be calculated as follows:

Date No. of equityshares | Amount paid per | Weighted average no. of equityshares
share
Rs. Rs. Rs.
1.4.2020 6,00,000 5 6,00,000 x 5/10 x 5/12 = 1,25,000
1.9.2020 5,40,000 10 5,40,000 x 7/12 = 3,15,000
1.9.2020 60,000 5 60,000 x 5/10 x 7/12 = 17,500
Total weighted 4,57,500
average equity
shares

AB Limited is a company engaged in manufacturing industrial packaging equipment. As per the terms
of an agreement entered with its debenture holders, the company is required to appropriate adequate
portion of its profits to a specific reserve over the period of maturity of the debentures such that, at the
redemption date, the reserve constitutes at least half the value of such debentures. As such appropri-
ations are not available for distribution to the equity shareholders, AB Limited has excluded this from
the numerator in the computation of Basic EPS. Is this treatment correct as per provisions of AS 20? (RTP
Nov 21)

Answer 5

The appropriation made to such a mandatory reserve created for the redemption of debentures would
be included in the net profit attributable to equity shareholders for the computation of Basic EPS. AS20
states that “For the purpose of calculating basic earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period at-
tributable to equity shareholders should be the net profit or loss for the period after deducting preference
dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the period”; With an emphasison the phrase attributable
to equity shareholders, it may be construed that such amounts appropriated to mandatory reserves,
though not available for distribution as dividend, are still attributable to equity shareholders. Accordingly,
these amounts should be included in the computation of Basic EPS. In view of this, the treatment made
by the company is not correct.

Question 6

In the following list of shares issued, for the purpose of calculation of weighted average number of
shares, from which date, weight is to be considered:

(i) Equity Sharesissued in exchange of cash,

(ii) Equity Shares issued as aresult of conversion of a debt instrument,

(iii) Equity Shares issued in exchange for the settlement of a liability of the enterprise,
(iv) Equity Shares issued for rendering of services to the enterprise,

(v) Equity Sharesissued in lieu of interest and/or principal of another financial instrument,

\_ J
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(vi) Equity Shares issued as consideration for the acquisition of an asset other than in cash. (RTP

May ‘21) (New SM)

Answer 6

(i)

(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)

The following dates should be considered for consideration of weights for the purpose of
calculationof weighted average number of shares in the given situations:

Date of Cash receivable

Date of conversion

Date on which settlement becomes effective
When the services are rendered

Date when interest ceases to accrue

Date on which the acquisition is recognized.

a) Stock options have been granted by AB Limited to its employees and they vest equally over

5 years, i.e., 20 per cent at the end of each year from the date of grant. The options will vest
only if the employee is still employed with the company at the end of the year. If the employ-
ee leaves the company during the vesting period, the options that have vested can be exer-
cised, while the others would lapse. Currently, AB Limited includes only the vested options for
calculating Diluted EPS. Should only completely vested options be included for computation of
Diluted EPS? Is this in accordance with the provisions of AS 20? Explain.

b) X Limited, as at March 31,2021, has income from continuing ordinary operations of Rs. 2,40,000,

a loss from discontinuing operations of Rs. 3,60,000 and accordingly a net loss of Rs. 1,20,000.
The Company has 1,000 equity shares and 200 potential equity shares outstanding as at
March 31, 2021. You are required to compute Basic and Diluted EPS? (RTP May 22)

Answer 7

a) The current method of calculating Diluted EPS adopted by AB limited is not in accordance with

AS 20. The calculation of Diluted EPS should include all potential equity shares, i.e., all the stock
options granted at the balance sheet date, which are dilutive in nature, irrespective of the vest-
ing pattern. The options that have lapsed during the year should be included for the portion of the
period the same wereoutstanding, pursuant to the requirement of the standard.

AS 20 states that “A potential equity share is a financial instrument or other contract that entitles,
or may entitle, its holder to equity shares”; Options including employee stock option plans under
which employees of an enterprise are entitled to receive equity shares as part of their remuner-
ation and othersimilar plans are examples of potential equity shares. Further, for the purpose of
calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period should
be adjusted for the effects ofall dilutive potential equity shares.

b) As per AS 20 “Potential equity shares should be treated as dilutive when, and only when, their

conversion to equity shares would decrease net profit per share from continuing ordinary op-
erations”;As income from continuing ordinary operations, Rs. 2,40,000 would be considered and
not Rs. (1,20,000), for ascertaining whether 200 potential equity shares are dilutive or anti-dilutive.
Accordingly,200 potential equity shares would be dilutive potential equity shares since their in-
clusion would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations from Rs. 240
to Rs. 200. Thus thebasic E.P.S would be Rs. (120) and diluted E.P.S. would be Rs. (100).

\

J

Crack ur CACS CMA Exams in1Attempt-Join CA Mentoring Program if you are unable to manage/focus on ur studies.

|
Batch1:Working Students(Job) Batch2: Doing Classes Batch 3: Full time available for Studies Batch 4:Married Students Visit

CAmentoringprogram.org | +917890770777 | https://t.me/caraviagarwaloriginal all subjects free Question


https://api.whatsapp.com/send/?phone=917890770777&text&type=phone_number&app_absent=0
https://t.me/caraviagarwaloriginal
https://camentoringprogram.org/

Dr. CA Ravi Agarwal's CA Inter Accounts Compiler 6.0 Score70+in Accounts 126

Paper 1-Advanced Accounting

- )

From the following information given by Sampark Ltd., Calculate Basis EPS and Diluted EPS as per AS20:

Rs.

Net Profit for the current year 2,50,00,000
No. of Equity Shares Outstanding 50,00,000
No. of 12% convertible debentures of & 100 each 50,000

Each debenture is convertible into 8 Equity Shares

Interest expense for the current year 6,00,000
Tax saving relating to interest expense (30%) 1,80,000
(PYP 5 Marks Nov'18)
Answer 8

Calculation of Basic Earnings Per Share

. Net Profit for the current year  Rs.2,50,00,000
Basic EPS = =

No.of Equity Shares 50,00,000

Basic EPS per share =Rs. 5

Calculation of Diluted Earnings Per Share
_ Adjusted net profit for the current year

Diluted EPS = Weighted average no.of Equity Shares
Adjusted net profit for the current year Rs.
Net profit for the current year 2,50,00,000
Add: Interest expenses for the current year 6,00,000
Less: Tax saving relating to Tax Expenses 1,80,000
2,54,20,000

No. of equity shares resulting from conversion of debentures: 4,00,000 Shares

Weighted average no. of equity shares used to compute diluted EPS: (50,00,000 + 4,00,000) = 54,00,000
Equity Shares

Diluted earnings per share: (2,54,20,000/54,00,000) = Rs. 4.71 (Approx.)

“At the time calculating diluted earnings per share, effect is given to all dilutive potential equity shares
that are outstanding during the period”. Comment and also calculate the basic and diluted earnings
per share for the year 2020-21 from the following information:

0) Net profit after tax for the year Z 64,12,500
(i) | No. of equity shares outstanding 15,00,000
(iii) No. of 9% convertible debentures of 2 100 issued on IstJuly,2020 75,000
\_ J
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4 (iv) |Each debenture is convertible into 8 Equity Shares )
(v) Tax relating to interest expenses 35%
(PYP 5 Marks Dec’21)
Answer 9
In calculating diluted earnings per share, effect is given to all dilutive potential equity shares that were
outstanding during the period;” As per AS 20 ‘Earnings per Share’, the net profit or loss for the period at-
tributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding* during the
period should be adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares for the purpose of calcu-
lation of diluted earnings per share. Basic EPS for the year 2020-21= 64,12,500/15,00,000 = Z 4;2750r T 4;28
Computation of diluted earnings per share for year 2020-21
Adjusted net profit for the current year
Weighted average number of equity Shares
Adjusted net profit for the current year will be (64,12,500 + 5,06,250 — 1,77,188) = Z 67,41,562No. of equity
shares resulting from conversion of debentures: 6,00,000 Shares (75,000 x 8) Weighted average no. of
equity shares used to compute diluted EPS:
(15,00,000 X12/12+ 6,00,000X9/12)
=19,50,000 Shares
Diluted earnings per share: (67,41,562/19,50,000) = Z 3;46
Working Note:
Interest expense for 9 months = 75,00,000><9%><9/12 =g 5,06,250
Tax expense 35 % on interest is £1,77,188 (5,06,250 x 35%)
*Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is increased by the weighted
average number of additional equity shares which would have been outstanding assuming the conver-
sion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
Question 10
NAT, a listed entity, as on Ist April, 2021 had the following capital structure:
4
10,00,000 Equity Shares having face value of 21each 10,00,000
10,00,000 8% Preference Shares having face value of 210 each 1,00,00,000
During the year 2021-2022, the company had profit after tax of  90,00,000
On st January, 2022, NAT made a bonus issue of one equity share for every 2 equity shares outstand-
ing as at 31st December,2021.
On Ist January,2022, NAT issued 2,00,000 equity shares of 2 1 each at their full market price of 7.60
per share.
NAT’s shares were trading at 2 8.05 per share on 31st March,2022.
\_ J
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(" Further it has been provided that the basic earnings per share for the year ended 31st March,2021 was "\
previously reported at g 62.30.

You are required to:

Calculate the basic earnings per share to be reported in the financial statements of NAT for the year
ended 31st March,2022 including the comparative figure, in accordance with AS-20 Earnings Per Share.

Explain why the bonus issue of shares and the shares issue at full market price are treated differently in
the calculation of the basic earnings per share? (5 Marks). (PYP 5 Marks May’22)

Answer 10

I. Calculation of Basic Earnings per share for the year ended 31stMarch, 2022 including the
comparative figure:

Earnings for the year ended 31st March, 2021 = EPS x Number of shares outstanding during 2020 -
2021
= € 62,30 x 10,00,000 equity shares
= € 6,23,00,000
(a) Adjusted Earnings per share after taking into consideration bonus issue
Adjusted Basic EPS = Earnings for the year 2020-2021 / Total outstanding shares +Bonusissue
= Z 6,23,00,000 / (10,00,000+ 5,00,000)
= ¥ 6,23,00,000 / 15,00,000
= 2 41,53 per share
(b) Basic EPS for the year 2021-2022

Basic EPS = Total Earnings — Preference Shares Dividend) / (Total shares outstanding at thebeginning
+ Bonus issue + weighted average of the shares issued in January, 2022)

= (€ 90,00,000 - Z (1,00,00,000 x 8%) / (10,00,000 + 5,00,000 + (2,00,000 x 3/12))
= ¥ 82,00,000 / 15,50,000 shares

= g 5,29 per share

1. In case of a bonus issue, equity shares are issued to existing shareholders for no additional
consideration. Therefore, the number of equity shares outstanding is increased without an in-
creasein resources. Since the bonus issue is an issue without consideration, the issue is treated
as if it had occurred prior to the beginning of the year 202], the earliest period reported.

However, the share issued at full market price does not carry any bonus element and usually
results in a proportionate change in the resources available to the enterprise. Therefore, it is
taken into consideration from the time it has been issued i.e. the time- weighting factor is con-
sidered based on the specific shares outstanding as a proportion of the total number of days
in the period.

The following information is provided to you:

Net profit for theyear2022: ¥ 72,00,000 Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year 2022: 30,00,000 shares

Average Fair value of one equity share during the year 2022: Z 25.00 Weighted average number
of shares under option during the year 2022: 6,00,000 shares
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4 )
Exercise price for shares under option during the year 2022: 20.00
You are required to compute Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share as per AS 20.(PYP 5 Marks Nov'22)
Answer 11
Computation of Basic earnings per share
Earnings Shares Earnings/
Share
= g
Net profit for the year 2022 72,00,000
Weighted average no. of shares during year 30,00,000
2022 Basic earnings per share 240
(72,00,000/30,00,000)
Computation of Diluted earnings per share
Earnings Shares Earnings/Share
¥ g
Net profit for the year 2022 72,00,000
Weighted average no. of shares during 30,00,000
year 2022
Number of shares under option 6,00,000
Number of shares that would have been
issued at fair value
(6,00,000 x 20.00)/25.00 (4,80,000)
Diluted earnings per share 72,00,000 31,20,000 2.31
(rounded-off)
Note: The earnings have not been increased as the total number of shares has been increased only by
the number of shares (1,20,000) deemed for the purpose of the computation to have been issued for no
consideration.
To the extent that partly paid shares are not entitled to participate in dividends during the reporting
period they are considered the equivalent of options.
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4 )
Net Profit for FY 2021-22 30,00,000
Net Profit for FY 2022-23 50,00,000
No. of shares outstanding prior to rights issue 20,00,000 shares Rights Issue Price 20
Last day to exercise rights 1st June, 2022
Right issue is one new share for each five equity share outstanding (i.e. 4,00,000 new shares)
Fair value of one equity share immediately prior to exercise of rights on Ist June, 2022 was g 26.00.
Compute Basic Earnings Per Share for FY 2016-17, FY 2022-23 and restated EPS for FY 2021-22. (Nov '23)
Answer 12
Computation of Basic Earnings Per Share (as per AS 20 Earnings Per Share)
Year 2016- Year 2017-
g 17 18
@
EPS for the year 2021-22 as originally reported
= Net Profit of the year attributable to equity shareholders
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
Year

= (2 30,00,000 / 20,00,000 shares) 1.5

EPS for the year 2021-22 restated for rights issue

= [2 30,00,000 / (20,00,000 shares  1.04 (W.N. 2)] 1.44

EPS for the year 2022-23 including effects of rights issue (Gpprox.)

g 50, 00, 000

(20, 00, 000 shares x 1.04 x2 [ 12) + (24,00, 000 shares x 10 / 12)

213
Z 50,00,000/ 23,46,667 shares (approx.)
\_ J
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4 )
Working Notes:

1. Computation of theoretical ex-rights fair value per share]
Fair value of all outstanding shares immediately prior to exercise of rights + Totalamountreceived from exercise

Number of shares outstanding prior to exercise + Number of shares issued in the exercise

(% 26 x%20,00,000 Shares) = (X 20 x4,00,000 Shares) % ©,00,00,000

= =X25
20,00,000 shares = 4,00,000 Shares 24,00,000 Shares
2. Computation of adjustment factor
Fair value per share prior to excerise of rights 35
= = =1.04
Theoretical ex; rights value per share % 25 (Refer working Note 1)

(approx..)

AB Company Ltd. had 1,00,000 shares of common stock outstanding on January 1. Additional 50,000
shares were issued on July 1, and 25,000 shares were re- acquired on September 1. The weighted av-
erage numberof shares outstanding during the year on Dec. 31is

a. 140,000 shares b. 125,000 shares
c. 116,667 shares d. 120,000 shares
Ans: (c)

Questions 14

As per AS 20, potential equity shares should be treated as dilutive when, and only when, their con-
versionto equity shares would

a. Decrease net profit per share b. Increase net profit per share from
fromcontinuing ordinary opera- continuingordinary operations.
tions.

c. Make no change in net profit per d. Decrease net loss per share from
share fromcontinuing ordinary continuingordinary operations.
operations.

Ans: (a)

As per AS 20, equity shares which are issuable upon the satisfaction of certain conditions resulting
fromcontractual arrangements are

a. Dilutive potential equity shares b. Contingently issuable shares
c. Contractual issued shares d. Potential equity shares
\_ J
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4 )
Ans: (b)

Questions 16

In case potential equity shares have been cancelled during the year, they should be:

a. Ignored for computation of Diluted EPS.

b. Considered from the beginning of the year till the date they are cancelled.

c. The company needs to make an accounting policy and
can follow thetreatment in (a) or (b) as it decides.

d. Considered for computation of diluted EPS only if the impact
of suchpotential equity shares would be material.

Ans: (b)

Partly paid up equity shares are:

a. Always considered as a part of Basic EPS.

b. Always considered as a part of Diluted EPS.

c. Depending upon the entitlement of dividend to the share-
holder, it will beconsidered as a part of Basic or Diluted
EPS as the case may be.

d. Considered as part of Basic/ Diluted EPS depending on the
accountingpolicyof the company.

Ans: (c)

Questions18

In the following list of shares issued, for the purpose of calculation of weighted average
number ofshares, from which date weight is to be considered:

Theoretical Questions Answers

() Equity Shares issued in exchange of cash,

(ii) Equity Shares issued as a result of conversion of a debt instrument,

(iii) Equity Shares issued in exchange for the settlement of a liability of the enterprise,

(iv) Equity Shares issued for rendering of services to the enterprise,

(v) Equity Shares issued in lieu of interest and/or principal of another financial instrument,

(vi) Equity Shares issued as consideration for the acquisition of an asset
other than in cash. Also define Potential Equity Share.

\_ J
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4 )\
Answers18

The following dates should be considered for consideration of weights for the purpose
of calculation ofweighted average number of shares in the given cases:

(i) Date of Cash receivable

(i) Date of conversion

(i) Date on which settlement becomes effective
(iv) When the services are rendered

(v) Date when interest ceases to accrue

(vi) Date on which the acquisition is recognised.

A Potential Equity Share is a financial instrument or other contract that entitles or may entitle its holder
to equity shares.

Questions 19

Stock options have been granted by AB Limited to its employees and they vest equally over 5
years,i.e., 20 per cent at the end of each year from the date of grant. The options will vest only if
the employee is still employed with the company at the end of the year. If the employee leaves
the company during the vesting period, the options that have vested can be exercised, while the
otherswould lapse. Currently, AB Limited includes only the vested options for calculating Diluted
EPS.

Should only completely vested options be included for computation of Diluted EPS? Is this in ac-
cordance with the provisions of AS 20? Explain.

Answers19

As per AS 20 “A potential equity share is a financial instrument or othercontract that entitles, or may en-
title, itsholder to equity shares”.

Options including employee stock option plans under which employees of an enterprise are en-
titled to receive equity shares as part of their remuneration and other similar plans are examples of
potential equity shares. Further, forthe purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net prof-
it or lossfor the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding duringthe period should be adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential eq-
uity shares.

The current method of calculating Diluted EPS adopted by AB limited is notin accordance with AS
20. The calculation of Diluted EPS should include all potential equity shares, i.e., all the stock options
granted at the balance sheet date, which are dilutive in nature, irrespective of the vesting pattern.
Theoptions that have lapsed during the year should be included for the portion of the period the
same were outstanding, pursuant to the requirement of the standard.

Questions 20

Explain why the bonus issue of shares and the shares issue at full market price are treated different-
ly in the calculation of the basic earnings per share?

\_ J
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4 )\
Answers 20

In case of a bonus issue, equity shares are issued to existing shareholders for no additional consider-
ation.Therefore, the number of equity shares outstanding is increased without an increase in resources.
Since the bonus issue is an issue without consideration, the issue is treated as if it had occurred prior to
the beginning of the earliest period reported.

However, the share issued at full market price does not carry any bonus element and usually results in a
proportionate change in the resources available to the enterprise. Therefore, it is taken into consideration
from the time it has been issued i.e. the time- weighting factor is considered based on the specific shares
outstanding as a proportion of the total number of days in the period.

Practical Questions Anhswers
.|

NAT, a listed entity, as on Ist April, 20X1 had the following capital structure:

Particulars C4
10,00,000 Equity Shares having face value of Rs.1each 10,00,000
10,00,000 8% Preference Shares having face value of Rs. 10 each 1,00,00,000
During the year 20X1-20X2, the company had profit after tax of Rs. 90,00,000.

On Ist January, 20X2, NAT made a bonus issue of one equity share for every 2 equity shares outstand-
ing as at 31st December, 20X1.

OnlIst January, 20X2, NAT issued 2,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 1 each at their full market price of Rs.7.60
per share.

NAT's shares were trading at Rs. 8.05 per share on 31st March, 20X2.

Further it has been provided that the basic earnings per share for the year ended 31st March, 20X1 was
previously reported at Rs. 62.30.

You arerequired to:

(i) Calculate the basic earnings per share to be reported in the financial statements of NAT for
the yearended 31st March, 20X2 including the comparative figure, in accordance with AS-20
Earnings Per Share.

(i) Explain why the bonus issue of shares and the shares issue at full market price are treated differ-
ently in the calculation of the basic earnings per share?

Answers 21

i) Computation of Basic Earnings per share for the year ended 3I**March, 20X2:
(including the comparative figure) Working Note - I:

Earnings for the year ended 31st March, 20X1:

EPS x Number of shares outstanding during 20X0-20X1
Rs. 62.30 x 10,00,000 equity shares

Rs. 6,23,00,000

\_ J
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Adjusted/Restated Earnings per share for the year ended 31t March20X1:

(after taking into consideration bonus issue)

Adjusted/Restated Basic EPS:

= Earnings for the year 20X0-20X1 / (Total outstanding shares +Bonusissue)

= Rs. 6,23,00,000 / (10,00,000+ 5,00,000)

= Rs. 6,23,00,000 / 15,00,000

= Rs. 41.53 per share

Computation of Basic EPS for the year 20X1-20X2:

Basic EPS = (Total Earnings — Preference Shares Dividend) / (Total shares outstanding atthe beginning
+ Bonus issue + weighted average of the shares issued in January, 20X2)

= (Rs. 90,00,000 - Rs. (1,00,00,000 x 8%)) / (10,00,000 + 5,00,000 + (2,00,000 x 3/12))
= Rs. 82,00,000 / 15,50,000 shares = Rs. 5.29 per share

ii) In case of a bonus issue, equity shares are issued to existing shareholders for no ad-
ditional consideration. Therefore, the number of equity shares outstanding is increased
without an increase in resources. Since the bonus issue is an issue without consideration,
the issue is treated as if it had occurred prior to the beginning of the year 20X], the earliest
period reported.

However, the share issued at full market price does not carry any bonus element and usually results
ina proportionate change in the resources available to the enterprise. Therefore, it is taken into
consideration from the time it has been issued i.e. the time- weighting factor is considered based on the
specific shares outstanding as a proportion of the total number of days in the period.

(Accounting year 1.1.20X1-31.12.20X1)
Net Profit

Year 20X1: * 20,00,000
Year 20X2: * 30,00,000
10,00,000 shares

No. of shares outstanding prior to Right Issue

Right Issue

One new share for each four
outstanding i.e., 2,50,000 shares.

8

Right Issue price—" 20
Last date of exercise rights
31.3.20X2.

Fair rate of one Equity share immediately : " 25
prior to exercise of rights on 31.3.20X2

\_ J

Crack ur CACS CMA Exams in1Attempt-Join CA Mentoring Program if you are unable to manage/focus on ur studies.
L L L L |

Batch1:Working Students(Job) Batch2: Doing Classes Batch 3: Full time available for Studies Batch 4:Married Students Visit
CAmentoringprogram.org | +917890770777 | https://t.me/caraviagarwaloriginal all subjects free Question


https://api.whatsapp.com/send/?phone=917890770777&text&type=phone_number&app_absent=0
https://t.me/caraviagarwaloriginal
https://camentoringprogram.org/

\_ J

Dr. CA Ravi Agarwal's CA Inter Accounts Compiler 6.0 Score 70+ in Accounts

Paper 1-Advanced Accounting

Answers 22

Computation of Basic Earnings Per Share (as per paragraphs 10 and 26 of AS 20 on Earnings Per Share)

Year Year
2061 | 20M2%

EPS for the year 20X1 as originally reported
Net profit of the year attributable to equity shareholders

Weighted average number of equity share outstanding during the year
= ("20,00,000 / 10,00,000 shares)
2.00

(approx.)

EPS for the year 20X1 restated for rights issue
= ['20,00,000 / (10,00,000 shares x 1.04")]
1.91

EPS for the year 20X2 including effects of rightsissue
30,00,000

(10,00,000 share x 1.04 x 3/12) + (12,50,000 shares x 9/12)

251
30,00,000

11,97,500 shares

(approx.)

Working Notes:

1. Computation of theoretical ex-rights fair value per share
Fair value of all outstanding shares immediately prior to

exercise of rights + Total amount received from exercise
Number of shares outstanding prior to exercise + Number of shares issued in the excercise

(I25x10,00,000 shares)+(X20x2,50,000 shares) $3.00,00,000

10,000 share+2,50,000 shares ~ 12,50,000 shares =24

2. Computation of adjustment factor

Fair value per share prior to exercise of rights

Theoretical exrights value per share

£ 25
X 24(Refer Working Note 1)

= 1.04(approx.)
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€ m )
On st April, 20X1a company had 6,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each (Rs. 5 paid up by all sharehold-
ers).On Ist September, 20X1 the remaining Rs. 5 was called up and paid by all shareholders except

one shareholder having 60,000 equity shares. The net profit for the year ended 31st March, 20X2 was
Rs. 21,96,000 after considering dividend on preference shares of Rs. 3,40,000.

You are required to compute Basic EPS for the year ended 31 st March, 20X2 as per Accounting Stan-
dard 20 “Earnings Per Share”.

Answers 23
Basic Earnings per share (EPS) =

_ Net profit attributable to equity shareholders
- Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year

21,96,000
457500 Shares (as per working note)

= % 4,80 per share

Refer working note 2.

Refer working note 2.
Working Note:

Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares

As per AS 20 ‘Earnings Per Share’, partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of equity share to
the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividend relative to a fully paid equity share duringthe
reporting period. Assuming that the partly paid shares are entitled to participate in the dividend tothe
extent of amount paid, weighted average number of shares will becalculated as follows:

Date No. of Amount Weighted average no. of equityshares
equity paid per
shares share
1.4.20X1 6,00,000 5 6,00,000 x 5/10 x 5/12 =
1,25,000

1.9.20X1 5,40,000 10 5,40,000 x 7/12 = 3,15,000

1.9.20X1 60,000 5 60,000 x 5/10 x 7/12 = 17,500
Total weighted 4,57,500
average equity
shares
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Questions 24

No. of equity shares outstanding = 30,00,000Basic earnings per share Rs.5.00

No. of 12% convertible debentures of Rs. 100 each; 50,000 Each debenture is convertible into 10
equityshares Tax Rate 30% Compute Diluted Earnings per Share. Working notes should form part of
the answer.

Answers 24
Earnings for the year:
= No. of Shares x Basic EPS

=30,00,000 shares x Rs. 5 per share = Rs.1,50,00,000

Computation of Adjusted Net Profit:

= Earnings for the year + Interest on debentures net of tax
=1,50,00,000 + (6,00,000 - 1,80,000) = Rs. 1,54,20,000
Computation of Adjusted Denominator:

No. of equity shares resulting from conversion of debentures:
=50,000 x 10 shares = 5,00,000 shares

No. of equity shares for diluted EPS = 30,00,000 + 5,00,000

= 35,00,000 shares

Computation of Diluted EPS:

= Rs. 1,54,20,000/35,00,000 shares = Rs. 4.4 per share.

Question 25 (lllustration)

Date Particulars Balance
Ist January Balance at beginning of year 1,800 - 1,800
3ist May Issue of shares for cash 600 - 2,400
1st November Buy Back of shares - 300 2,100

Calculate Weighted Number of Shares.

Answers 25
Computation of Weighted Average:
(1,800 x5/12) + (2,400 x 5/12) + (2,100 x 2/12) = 2,100 shares.

The weighted average number of shares can alternatively be computed as follows: (1,800 x12/12) + (600
x 7/12) - (300 x 2/12) = 2,100 shares

In most cases, shares are included in the weighted average number of shares from the date the
consideration is receivable, for example:

\_ J
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4 a. Equity shares issued in exchange for cash are included when cash is receivable; )

b. Equity shares issued as a result of the conversion of a debt instrument to equity shares are
included as of the date of conversion;

c. Equity shares issued in lieu of interest or principal on other financial instruments are included
as of thedate interest ceases to accrue;

d. Equity shares issued in exchange for the settlement of a liability of the enterprise are in-
cluded as ofthe date the settlement becomes effective;

e. Equity shares issued as consideration for the acquisition of an asset other than cash are in-
cluded as of the date on which the acquisition is recognised; and

f. Equity shares issued for the rendering of services to the enterprise are included as the
services arerendered.

In these and other cases, the timing of the inclusion of equity shares is determined by the spe-
cific terms and conditions attaching to their issue. Due consideration should be given to the sub-
stance of any contract associated with the issue.

Question 26(lllustration)

Date Particulars No.ofShares | FaceValue |Paid upValue
Ist January Balance at beginning of year 1,800 Rs.10 Rs.10
3lst October Issue of Shares 600 Rs. 10 Rs.5

Calculate Weighted Number of Shares.

Answers 26

Assuming that partly paid shares are entitled to participate in the dividend to the extent of amount
paid, number of partly paid equity shares would be taken as 300for the purpose of calculation of
earnings pershare.

Computation of weighted average would be as follows:
(1,800 x12/12) + (300 x 2/12) = 1,850 shares.

Where an enterprise has equity shares of different nominal values but with the same dividend rights, the
number of equity shares is calculated by converting all such equity shares into equivalent number
of shares of the same nominal value.

Contingently Issuable Shares

Equity shares which are issuable upon the satisfaction of certain conditions resulting from con-
tractual arrangements (contingently issuable shares) are considered outstanding, and included in the
computation of basic earnings per share from the date when all necessary conditions under the
contract have been satisfied.

Bonus Issue, Share split and Rightissue

Equity shares may be issued, or the number of shares outstanding may be reduced, without a cor-
responding change in resources. Examples include:

a. Abonusissue;

b. A bonus element in any other issue, for example a bonus element in a
\ J
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4 )
rights issue to existingshareholders;

c. Ashare split; and

d. A reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

In case of a bonus issue or a share split, equity shares are issued to existing shareholders for no ad-
ditional consideration. Therefore, the number of equity shares outstanding is increased without an
increase in resources. The number of equity shares outstanding before the event is adjusted for the
proportionatechange in the number of equity shares outstanding as if the event had occurred at the
beginning of theearliest period reported means along with the impact to current year adjustment, it
will also impact thecalculation of EPS of last year retrospectively.

For example, upon a two-for-one bonus issue, the number of shares outstanding prior to the issue is
multiplied by a factor of three to obtain the new total number of shares, or by a factor of two to obtain
the number of additional shares.

Question 27 (lllustration)

Net profit for the year 20X 18,00,000
Net profit for the year 20X2 60,00,000
No. of equity shares outstanding until 30th September 20X2 20,00,000

Bonus issue 1st October 20X2 was 2 equity shares for each equity share outstanding at

30th September, 20X2

Calculate Basic Earnings Per Share.

Answers 27
% o0u00,000
Earnings per share for the year 20X2 = [20,00,000+40,00,000) ~ £1.00
% 18.00, D0n
Adjusted earnings per share for the year 20X1 =%0.30

(20,00, 04K} +40,00,000)

Adjusted earnings per share for the year 20XI1 (20,00,000+40,00,000) = 2 0.30

Since the bonus issue is an issue without consideration, the issue is treated as if it had occurred prior
tothe beginning of the year 20X], the earliest period reported.

The issue of equity shares at the time of exercise or conversion of potential equity shares will not usu-
ally give rise to a bonus element, since the potential equity shares will usually have been issued for
full value,resulting in a proportionate change in the resources available to the enterprise. In a rights
issue, on theother hand, the exercise price is often less than the fair value of the shares. Therefore, a
rights issue usually includes a bonus element.

[Thus, it may be noted that if a company makes a right issue at fair value itself, then there will be no bonus
element in the right issue].

The number of equity shares to be used in calculating basic earnings per share for all periods prior to
therights issue is the number of equity shares outstanding prior to the issue, multiplied by the follow-
ing adjustment factor:
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Fair value per share immediately prior to the exercise of rights / Theoretical ex - rights fair value per
share

The theoretical ex-rights fair value per share is calculated by adding the aggregate fair value of the
shares immediately prior to the exercise of the rights to the proceeds from the exercise of the rights, and
dividing by the number of shares outstanding after the exercise of the rights.

Question 28 (lllustration)

Net profit for the year 20X1 Z11,00,000

Net profit for the year 20X2 Z15,00,000
15,00,000 No. of shares outstanding prior to rights issue 5,00,000 share
Rightsissue price

€15.00

Last date to exercise rights 1st March 20 X 2

Rights issue is one new share for each five outstanding (i.e. 1,00,000 new shares) Fair value of one
equity share immediately prior to exercise of rights on 1st March 20X2 was Rs. 21.00. Compute Basic
Earnings Per Share.

Answers 28

Fair value of shares immediately prior to exercise of rights + Total amount received from exercise

Number of shares outstanding prior to exercise + Number of shares issued in the exercise

(21.00 = 5,00,000 shares) + (15.00 = 1,00,000 shares)
5,00,000 Shares + 1,00,000 Shares

Theoretical ex-rights fair value per share =" 20.00

Computation of adjustment factor:

Fair value per share prior to exercise of rights _  (21.00) 1.05
Theoreticalex—rights value per share {20.00) )

Computation of earnings per share:

EPS for the year 20X1 as originally reported: Rs. 11,00,000/5,00,000 shares = Rs. 2.20 EPS for the year
20X1

restated for rights issue: Rs. 11,00,000/ (5,00,000 shares x 1.05) = Rs. 2.10
EPS for the year 20X2 including effects of rights issue:
(5,00,000 x 1.05 x 2/12) + (6,00,000 x 10/12) = 5,87,500 sharesEPS = 15,00,000/5,87,500 = 2.55

Question 29 (lllustration)

Net profit for the current year Rs.1,00,00,000
No. of equity shares outstanding 50,00,000
\_ J
Crack ur CACS CMA Exams in1Attempt-Join CA Mentoring Program if you are unable to manage/focus on ur studies.
| | I |

Batch1:Working Students(Job) Batch2: Doing Classes Batch 3: Full time available for Studies Batch 4:Married Students Visit
CAmentoringprogram.org | +917890770777 | https://t.me/caraviagarwaloriginal all subjects free Question


https://api.whatsapp.com/send/?phone=917890770777&text&type=phone_number&app_absent=0
https://t.me/caraviagarwaloriginal
https://camentoringprogram.org/

Dr. CA Ravi Agarwal's CA Inter Accounts Compiler 6.0 Score70+in Accounts 142

Paper 1-Advanced Accounting

4 )

Basic earnings per share Rs.2.00
No. of 12% convertible debentures of Rs. 100 each 1,00,000

Each debenture is convertible into 10 equity shares

Interest expense for the current year Rs.12,00,000

Tax relating to interest expense (30%) Rs. 3,60,000

Compute Diluted Earnings Per Share.

Answers 29
Adjusted net profit for the current year (1,00,00,000 + 12,00,000 - 3,60,000) = Rs. 1,08,40,000

No. of equity shares resulting from conversion of debentures: 10,00,000 Shares No. of equity shares used
to compute diluted EPS: (50,00,000 + 10,00,000)

=60,00,000 Shares
Diluted earnings per share: (1,08,40,000/60,00,000) = Rs. 1.81

Question 30 (lllustration)

Net profit for the year 20X1 Rs.12,00,000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 20X1 5,00,000

shares
Average fair value of one equity share during the year 20X1 Rs.20.00
Weighted average number of shares under option during the year 20X1 1,00,000 shares
Exercise price for shares under option during the year 20X1 Rs.15.00

Compute Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share.

Answers 30
Computation of earnings per share
Earnings™ | Shares |Earnings/Share"
Net profit for the year 20X 12,00,000
Weighted average no. of shares duringyear 20X] 5,00,000
Basic earnings per share 2.40
Number of shares under option 1,00,000
Number of shares that would havebeen issued at
fair value (100,000 x 15.00)/20.00 o
(75,000)
Diluted earnings per share 12,00,000 5,25,000 |2.29
Note:
\_ J
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The earnings have not been increased as the total number of shares has been increased only by the
number of shares (25,000) deemed for the purpose of the computation to have been issued for no
consideration.

Question 31 (lllustration)

X Limited, during the year ended March 31, 20X1, has income from continuing ordinary operations
of Rs. 2,40,000, a loss from discontinuing operations of Rs. 3,60,000 and accordingly a net loss of
Rs.1,20,000. The Company has 1,000 equity shares and 200 potential equity shares outstanding
as at March 31, 20X1.

You are required to compute Basic and Diluted EPS?

Answers 31

As per AS 20 “Potential equity shares should be treated as dilutive when, and only when, their conversion
to equity shares would decrease net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations”.

Asincome from continuing ordinary operations, Rs. 2,40,000 would be considered and not Rs. (1,20,000),
for ascertaining whether 200 potential equity shares are dilutive or anti-dilutive. Accordingly, 200 po-
tential equity shares would be dilutive potential equity shares since their inclusion would decrease
the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations from Rs. 240 to Rs. 200. Thus, the basic E.P.S
would be Rs. (120) and diluted E.P.S. would be Rs. (100).

In case there are more than 1 potential equity shares:

In considering whether potential equity shares are dilutive or antidilutive, each issue or series of
potential equity shares is considered separately rather than in aggregate. The sequence in which
potential equity shares are considered may affect whether or not they are dilutive. Therefore, in
orderto maximise the dilution of basic earnings per share, each issue or series of potential equity
shares is considered in sequence from the most dilutive to the least dilutive. For the purpose of de-
termining thesequence from most dilutive to least dilutive potential equity shares, the earnings per
incremental potential equity share is calculated. Where the earnings per incremental share is the least,
the potential equity share is considered most dilutive and vice-versa.

\_ J
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AS 24- Discontinuing Operations
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Chapter 4.6

AS 24- Discontinuing Operations

() What are the disclosure and presentation requirements of AS 24 for discontinuing opera-
tions? (RTP May 20, May 22, Old & New SM)

i) Give four examples of activities that do not necessarily satisfy criterion (a) of paragraph 3
of AS 24,but that might do so in combination with other circumstances. (RTP May 20, Nov 18,
May 22, Old &New SM)

Answer 1

(i) An enterprise should include prescribed information relating to a discontinuing operation in its
financial statements beginning with the financial statements for the period in which the initial
disclosure event (as defined in paragraph 15) occurs

INITIAL DISCLOSURE

An enterprise should include the following information relating to a discontinuing operation in its
financial statements beginning with the financial statements for the period in which the initial
disclosure event occurs:

a. A description of the discontinuing operation(s)
b. The business or geographical segment(s) in which it is reported as per AS 17
¢. The date and nature of the initial disclosure event.

d. The date or period in which the discontinuance is expected to be completed if known or deter-
minable

e. The carrying amounts, as of the balance sheet date, of the total assets to be disposed of and
the total liabilities to be settled

f. The amounts of revenue and expenses in respect of the ordinary activities attributable to the
discontinuing operation during the current financial reporting period

g. The amount of pre-tax profit or loss from ordinary activities attributable to the discontinuing
operation during the current financial reporting period, and the income tax expense related
thereto

h. The amounts of net cash flows attributable to the operating, investing, and financing activ-
ities ofthe discontinuing operation during the current financial reporting period
DISCLOSURES OTHER THAN INITIAL DISCLOSURES NOTE

All the disclosures above should be presented in the notes to the financial statements except for
amounts pertaining to pre-tax profit/loss of the discontinuing operation and the income tax
expense thereon (second last bullet above) which should be shown on the face of the statement
of profit and loss.

Other disclosures

When an enterprise disposes of assets or settles liabilities attributable to a discontinuing op-
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4 eration or enters into binding agreements for the sale of such assets or the settlement of "
such liabilities, it shouldinclude, in its financial statements, the following information when
the events occur:

a. For any gain or loss that is recognized on the disposal of assets or settlement of liabilities
attributable to the discontinuing operation, (i) the amount of the pre-tax gain or loss and
(i) income tax expense relating to the gain or loss and

b. The net selling price or range of prices (which is after deducting expected disposal costs)
of those net assets for which the enterprise has entered into one or more binding sale
agreements, the expected timing of receipt of those cash flows and the carrying amount of
those net assets on the balance sheet date.

Updating the disclosures

In addition to these disclosures, an enterprise should include, in its financial statements, for
periods

subsequent to the one in which the initial disclosure event occurs, a description of any sig-
nificant changes in the amount or timing of cash flows relating to the assets to be disposed
or liabilities to be settled and the events causing those changes.

The disclosures should continue in financial statements for periods up to and including the
period in which the discontinuance is completed. Discontinuance is completed when the
plan is substantially completed or abandoned, though full payments from the buyer(s) may
not yet have been received. If an enterprise abandons or withdraws from a plan that was
previously reported as a discontinuing operation, that fact, reasons therefore and its effect
should be disclosed.

Separate disclosure for each discontinuing operation Any disclosures required by AS 24
should be presented separately for each discontinuing operation.

Presentation of the required disclosures

The above disclosures should be presented in the notes to the financial statements except the
followingwhich should be shown on the face of the statement of profit and loss:

a. The amount of pre-tax profit or loss from ordinary activities attributable to the discontin-
uing operation during the current financial reporting period, and the income tax expense
related thereto and

b. The amount of the pre-tax gain or loss recognized on the disposal of assets or settle-
ment of liabilities attributable to the discontinuing operation.

(ii) Para 3 of AS 24 “Discontinuing Operations” explains the criteria for determination of discon-
tinuing operations.

Examples of activities that do not necessarily satisfy criterion (a) of the definition, but that
might do soin combination with other circumstances, include:

a. Gradual or evolutionary phasing out of a product line or class of service.
h. Discontinuing, even if relatively abruptly, several products within an ongoing line of business.

¢. Shifting of some production or marketing activities for a particular line of business
from one location to another and

d. Closing of a facility to achieve productivity improvements or other cost savings.
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Rohini Limited is in the business of manufacture of passenger cars and commercial vehicles. The
Company is working on a strategic plan to close the production of passenger cars and to produce
only commercial vehicles over the coming 5 years. However, no specific plans have been drawn up for
sale of neither the division nor its assets. As part of its prospective plan it will reduce the production of
passenger cars by 20% annually. It also plans to establish another new factory for the manufacture of
commercial vehicles and transfer surplus employees in a phased manner.
You are required to comment:

(i) If mere gradual phasing out in itself can be considered as a ‘discontinuing operation’

within the meaning of AS-24.

(i) Ifthe Company passes aresolution to sell some of the assets in the passenger car division
and also to transfer few other assets of the passenger car division to the new factory, does
this trigger the application of AS-24?

(iii) Would your answer to (ii) above be different if the Company resolves tosell the assets of
the passenger car division in a phased but time bound manner? (New SM)
Answers 2
(i) A discontinuing operation is a component of an enterprise:
(@) that the enterprise, pursuant to a single plan, is:

i) disposing of substantially in its entirety, such as by sellingthe component in a single
transaction or by demerger or spin-off of ownership of the component to the en-
terprise’s shareholders; or

ii) disposing of piecemeal, such as by selling off the component’s assets and settling
its liabilities individually; or

iii) terminating through abandonment; and
(b) thatrepresents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations; and
(¢) thatcan be distinguished operationally and for financial reporting purposes.

Mere gradual phasing out is not considered as discontinuing operation as defined under
AS 24,

‘Discontinuing Operations’,

Examples of activities that do not necessarily satisfy criterion of thedefinition, but that might do
so incombination with other circumstances, include:

i)  Gradual or evolutionary phasing out of a product line or class of service;

ii)  Shifting of some production or marketing activities for a particular line of business from
one location to another; and

iii) Closing of a facility to achieve productivity improvements or other cost savings. In this
case, it cannot be considered as Discontinuing Operation as per AS-24 as the compa-
nies’ strategic planhas no final approval from the board through a resolution and there
isno specific time bound activities like shifting of assets and employees. Moreover, the
new segment i.e. commercial vehicle production line in a new factory has not started.

(ii) No, the resolution is silent about stoppage of the Car segment in definite time period. Though,
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4 sale of some assets and some transfer proposals were passed through a resolution to the
new factory, butthe closure road map and new segment starting roadmap are missing.

Hence AS 24 will not be applicable and it cannot be considered as Discontinuing operations.

(iii) Yes, phased and time bound program resolved in the board clearly indicates the closure
of the passenger car segment in a definite time frame and will constitute a clear roadmap.

Hence this action will attract compliance of AS 24 and it will be considered as Discontinu-
ing Operations as per AS-24.

What are discontinuing operations as per AS 24? Should an enterprise include prescribed
informationrelating to a discontinuing operation in its financial statements? (RTP Nov ‘21)

Answer 3
A discontinuing operation is a component of an enterprise:
a. That the enterprise, pursuant to a single plan, is:

(i) Disposing of substantially in its entirety, such as by selling the component in a single
transactionor by demerger or spin-off of ownership of the component to the enterprise’s
shareholders or

(i) Disposing of piecemeal, such as by selling off the component’'s assets and settling its
liabilitiesindividually or

(iii) Terminating through abandonment and
b. That represents a separate maijor line of business or geographical area of operations.
c. That can be distinguished operationally and for financial reporting purposes.

An enterprise should include prescribed information relating to a discontinuing operation in its
financial statements, as per requirements of AS 24, beginning with the financial statements for
the period in which the initial disclosure event occurs.

Question 4

What do you understand by Discontinuing Operations? What are the disclosure and pres-
entationrequirements of AS 24 for discontinuing operations? Explain in brief. (RTPNov 20, PYP 5
Marks Nov'18)

Answer 4

As per AS 24 “Discontinuing Operations”, a discontinuing operation is a component of an en-
terprise:

a. That the enterprise, pursuant to a single plan, is:

(i) Disposing of substantially in its entirety, such as by selling the component in a sin-
gle transaction or by demerger or spin-off of ownership of the component to the
enterprise’s shareholders or

(ii) Disposing of piecemeadl, such as by selling off the component’s assets and settling its
liabilitiesindividually or

(iii) Terminating through abandonment and
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(~ b. That represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations. )
c. That can be distinguished operationally and for financial reporting purposes.

An enterprise should include the following information relating to a discontinuing operation
in its financial statements beginning with the financial statements for the period in which the
initial disclosure event occurs:

m A description of the discontinuing operation(s);
®  The business or geographical segment(s) in which it is reported as per AS 17
B The date and nature of the initial disclosure event.

B The date or period in which the discontinuance is expected to be completed if known or
determinable,

B The carrying amounts, as of the balance sheet date, of the total assets to be disposed of and
thetotal liabilities to be settled;

B The amounts of revenue and expenses in respect of the ordinary activities attributable to
thediscontinuing operation during the current financial reporting period,;

B The amount of pre-tax profit or loss from ordinary activities attributable to the discontinuing
operation during the current financial reporting period, and the income tax expense related
thereto;

B The amounts of net cash flows attributable to the operating, investing, and financing activi-
ties of the discontinuing operation during the current financial reporting period.

What is the disclosure requirement in interim financial reports as per AS 24 for discontinuing
operations? (RTP Nov’22)

Answer 5

Disclosure in interim financial reports

Disclosures in an interim financial report in respect of a discontinuing operation should be made
inaccordance with AS 25, ‘Interim Financial Reporting’, including:

B Any significant activities or events since the end of the most recent annual reporting period
relating to a discontinuing operation and

B Any significant changes in the amount or timing of cash flows relating to the assets to be disposed
or liabilities to be settled.

A consumer goods producer has changed the product line as follows:
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Dish washing Bar Clothes washing \
Bar
(Per month) (Per month)
January 2021 - September 2021 2,00,000 2,00,000
October 2021 - December 2021 1,00,000 3,00,000
January 2022 - March 2022 Nil 4,00,000

The company has enforced a gradual enforcement of change in product line on the basis of an over-
all plan. The Board of Directors has passed a resolution in March 2021 to this effect. The company
followscalendar year as its accounting year.

You required to advise the company whether it should be treated as discontinuing operation or not
as per AS 24? (RTP May ‘23, MTP 5 Marks Apr’19, Aug’18, RTP May'18)

Answer 6
As per AS 24 'Discontinuing Operations’, a discontinuing operation is a component of an enterprise:

(i) that the enterprise, pursuant to a single plan, is:

(1) disposing of substantially in its entirety,
(2) disposing of piecemeal, or
(3) terminating through abandonment; and

(ii) that represents a separate maijor line of business or geographical area of operations; and
(iii) that can be distinguished operationally and for financial reporting purposes.

As per provisions of the standard, business enterprises frequently close facilities, abandon products
oreven product lines, and change the size of their work force in response to market forces. While those
kinds of terminations generally are not, in themselves, discontinuing operations, they can occur in
connection with a discontinuing operation. Examples of activities that do not necessarily satisfy cri-
terion of discontinuing operation are gradual or evolutionary phasing out of a product line or class of
service, discontinuing, even if relatively abruptly, several products within an ongoing line of business;

In the given case, the company has enforced a gradual enforcement of change in product line and does
not represent a separate major line of business and hence is not a discontinued operation. If it were a
discontinuing operation, the initial disclosure event is the occurrence of one of the following, whichever
occurs earlier:

B the enterprise has entered into a binding sale agreement for substantially all of the assets at-
tributable to the discontinuing operation; or

B the enterprises board of directors or similar governing body has both approved a detailed, formal
plan for discontinuance and made an announcement of the plan.

Rohini Limited is in the business of manufacture of passenger cars and commercial vehicles. The
Company is working on a strategic plan to close the production of passenger cars and to produce
only commercial vehicles over the coming 5 years. However, no specific plans have been drawn up
for sale of neither the division nor its assets. As part of its prospective plan it will reduce the produc-
tion of passenger cars by 20% annually. It also plans to establish another new factory for the man-
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( ufacture of commercial vehicles and transfer surplus employees in a phased manner. Youarerequired
tocomment:

B |f mere gradual phasing out in itself can be considered as a ‘discontinuing operation’ within the
meaning of AS-24.

B |f the Company passes a resolution to sell some of the assets in the passenger car division and
also to transfer few other assets of the passenger car division to the new factory, does this trigger
the application of AS-24?

B Would your answer to the above be different if the Company resolves to sell the assets of the
passenger car division in a phased but time bound manner? (PYP 5 Marks July 21) (Same concept
lesser adjustments RTP May'21)

Answer 7
As per AS 24, a discontinuing operation is a component of an enterprise:
(@) that the enterprise, pursuant to a single plan, is:

(i) disposing of substantially in its entirety, such as by selling the component in a single
transactionor by demerger or spin-off of ownership of the component to the enter-
prise’s shareholders;

or

(i) disposing of piecemeal, such as by selling off the component’s assets and settling its
liabilitiesindividually; or

(iii) terminating through abandonment; and
(b) that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations; and
(c) that can be distinguished operationally and for financial reporting purposes.

Mere gradual phasing out is not considered as discontinuing operation as defined under AS 24, ‘Discon-
tinuing Operations’; Examples of activities that do not necessarily satisfy criterion of the definition, but that
might do so in combination with other circumstances, include:

(@) Gradual or evolutionary phasing out of a product line or class of service;

(b) Shifting of some production or marketing activities for a particular line of busi-
ness from one location to another; and

(c) Closing of a facility to achieve productivity improvements or other cost savings. In this
case, it cannot be considered as Discontinuing Operation as per AS-24 as the and there
is no specific time bound activities like shifting of assets and employees. Moreover, the
new segment i.e,, commercial vehicle production line in a new factory has not started.

(i) No, the resolution is salient about stoppage of the Car segment in definite time period. Though,
saleof some assets and some transfer proposals were passed through a resolution to the new
factory, but the closure road map and new segment starting roadmap are missing.

Hence, AS 24 will not be applicable and it cannot be considered as Discontinuing operations.

iii) Yes, phased and time bound program resolved in the board clearly indicates the closure of the
P prog 4
passenger car segment in a definite time frame and will constitute a clear roadmap.

Hence, this action will attract compliance of AS 24 and it will be considered as Discontinuing
Operationsas per AS-24.
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\

AB decided to dispose of its Clothing division as part of its long-term strategy.

a. Date of Board approval - 1t March b. Date of formal announcement
20X1; made toaffected parties - 15th
March 20X1
c. Date of Binding Sale agreement — d. Reporting date — 31st March 20X1
Ist July20X1;

The date of initial disclosure event would be:

a. 18t March 20X1 b. 15" March 20X1
c. 31t March 20X1 d. 31t July 20X1
Ans: (b)

Question 9

To qualify as a component that can be distinguished operationally and for financial reporting pur-
poses,the condition(s) to be metis (are):

a. The operating assets and lia- b. Its revenue can be directly attribut-
bilities of the component can be edtoit.
directly attributed to it.

c. Atleast a majority of its operating d. All of the above
expensescan be directly attribut-
ed to it.

Ans: (d)

Question 10

Identify which of the following statements is incorrect?

a. A discontinuing operation is a component of an enterprise that representsa separate
majorline of business or geographical area of operations.

b. A discontinuing operation is a component of an enterprise that can be distinguished
operationally and for financial reporting purposes.

c. A discontinuing operation is a component of an enterprise that may ormay not be
distinguished operationally and for financial reporting purposes.

d. A discontinuing operation may be disposed of in its entirety or piecemeal, but always pur-
suant to an overall plan to discontinue the entire component.

\_ J
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(" Ans: (c) A

Identify the incorrect statement.

e. Discontinuing operations are infrequent events, but this does not meanthat all infrequent
events are discontinuing operations.

f.  The fact that a disposal of a component of an enterprise is classified as a discontinuing
operation under AS 24 would always raise a question regarding the enterprise’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

g. Forrecognising and measuring the effect of discontinuing operations, AS 24 does not provide
anyguidelines, but for the purpose the relevantAccounting Standards should be referred.

h. An enterprise shall include a description of the discontinuing operation,in its financial
statements beginning with the financial statements for the period in which the initial dis-
closure event occurs.

Ans: (b)

Theoretical Questions Answers
.|

(i)  What are the disclosure and presentation requirements of AS 24 for discontinuing operations?

(i) Give four examples of activities that do not necessarily satisfy criterion (a) of
paragraph 3 of AS24, but that might do so in combination with other circum-
stances.

Answers 12

An enterprise should include prescribed information relating to a discontinuing operation in its fi-
nancialstatements beginning with the financial statements for the period in which the initial disclosure
event (as defined in paragraph 15 of AS 24) occurs. For details, please refer Section 6.5 of this Chapter
above.
(i) Examples of activities that do not necessarily satisfy criterion (a) of the definition, but that
might do so in combination with other circum- stances, include:

(a) Gradual or evolutionary phasing out of a product line or class ofservice;

(b) Discontinuing, even if relatively abruptly, several products withinan ongoing line of
business;

(c) Shifting of some production or marketing activities for a particularline of business from
onelocation to another; and

(d) Closing of a facility to achieve productivity improvements or other cost savings.

What are the initial disclosure requirements of AS 24 for discontinuing operations?
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~ Answers13 )

An enterprise should include the following information relating to a discontinuing operation in
its financial statements beginning with the financial statements for the period in which the initial
disclosure event occurs:

(a) A description of the discontinuing operation(s)
(b) The business or geographical segment(s) in which it is reported as per AS 17.
(c) The date and nature of the initial disclosure event.

(d) The date or period in which the discontinuance is expected to be completed if known or
determinable

(e) The carrying amounts, as of the balance sheet date, of the total assets to be disposed
of and thetotal liabilities to be settled.

(f) The amounts of revenue and expenses in respect of the ordinary activities attributable
to thediscontinuing operation during the current financial reporting period.

(g) The amount of pre-tax profit or loss from ordinary activities attributable to the discontin-
uing operation during the current financial reportingperiod, and the income tax expense
related thereto.

(h) The amounts of net cash flows attributable to the operating, investing, and financing activ-
ities of thediscontinuing operation during the current financial reporting period.

Practical Questions Answers
.|

Questions 14

Rohini Limited is in the business of manufacture of passenger cars and commercial vehicles. The
Company is working on a strategic plan to close the production of passenger cars and to produce
onlycommercial vehicles over the coming 5 years. However, no specific plans have been drawn up
for saleof neither the division nor its assets. As part of its prospective plan it will reduce the produc-
tion of passenger cars by 20% annually. It also plans to establish another new factory for the manu-
facture ofcommercial vehicles and transfer surplus employees in a phased manner.

You are required to comment:

(i) If mere gradual phasing out in itself can be considered as a ‘discontinuing operation’
within themeaning of AS-24.

(i) 1If the Company passes a resolution to sell some of the assets in the passenger car divi-
sion and also

to transfer few other assets of the passenger car division to the new factory, does this
trigger the application of AS-24?

(i) Would your answer to (ii) above be different if the Company resolves tosell the as-
sets of thepassenger car division in a phased but time bound manner?

Answers14
(i) A discontinuing operation is a component of an enterprise:
(@) that the enterprise, pursuant to a single plan, is:

i) disposing of substantially in its entirety, such as by sellingthe component in a
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4 single transaction or by demerger or spin-off of ownership of the component to "\
the enterprise’sshareholders; or

i) disposing of piecemeal, such as by selling off the component’s assets and settling
its liabilities individually; or

i) terminating through abandonment; and

(b) that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations;
and

(c) that can be distinguished operationally and for financial reporting purposes.

Mere gradual phasing out is not considered as discontinuing operation as defined un-
der AS 24,

‘Discontinuing Operations’.

Examples of activities that do not necessarily satisfy criterion of thedefinition, but that
might do soin combination with other circumstances, include:

i)  Gradual or evolutionary phasing out of a product line or class of service;

i) Shifting of some production or marketing activities for a particular line of business
from one location to another; and

i) Closing of a facility to achieve productivity improvements or other cost savings. In
this case, it cannot be considered as Discontinuing Operation as per AS-24 as the
companies’ strategic plan has no final approval from the board through a resolution
and there isno specific time bound activities like shifting of assets and employees.
Moreover, the new segment i.e. commercial vehicle production line in a new factory
has not started.

(i) No, the resolution is silent about stoppage of the Car segment in definite time period.
Though, saleof some assets and some transfer proposal were passed through a resolution to
the new factory, but the closure road map and new segment starting roadmap are missing.

Hence AS 24 will not be applicable and it cannot be considered as Discontinuing operations.

(iii) Yes, phased and time bound program resolved in the board clearly indicates the closure
of the passenger car segment in a definite time frame and will constitute a clear roadmap.

Hence this action will attract compliance of AS 24 and it will be considered as Discontin-
uing Operations as per AS-24.
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Chapter 4.7

AS 25 Interim Financial Reporting

Attempts MAY | NOV | MAY | NOV MAY NOV | MAY | NOV MAY NOV | MAY | NOV

2019 | 2019 | 2020 | 2020 | 2021 | 2021 2022 2022 | 2023 | 2023

(UM 2018 | 2018

Stud
Mat.y Q.9TO0Q.23
Past NO NO NO NO NO NO NO NO NO NO NO NO
Exams
MTP NO NO NO NO NO NO NO NO NO NO NO NO
RTP Q.7 Q.6 Q.5 NO NO Q.3 NO NO NO NO NO NO

J
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Chapter 4.7

AS 25 Interim Financial Reporting

Fresh Limited reported a Profit Before Tax (PBT) of Rs. 4 lakhs for the third quarter ending 30-09-2016. On
enquiry you observe the following. Give the treatment required under AS 25:

®  Dividend income of Rs. 4 lakhs received during the quarter has been recognized to the extent of
Rs. 1lakh only.

m  80% of sales promotion expenses Rs. 15 lakhs incurred in the third quarter has been deferred to
the fourth quarter as the sales in the last quarter is high.

=  In the third quarter, the company changed depreciation method from WDV to SLM, which resulted
in excess depreciation of Rs.12 lakhs. The entire amount has been debited inthe third quarter,
though the share of the third quarter is only Rs. 3 lakhs.

®  Rs.2lakhs extra-ordinary gain received in third quarter was allocated equally to thethird and
fourth quarter.

B Cumulative loss resulting from change in method of inventory valuation was recognized in the
third quarter of Rs. 3 lakhs. Out of this loss Rs. 1 lakh relates to previous quarters.

®  Sale of investment in the first quarter resulted in a gain of Rs. 20 lakhs. The company had appor-
tioned this equally to the four quarters.

Prepare the adjusted profit before tax for the third quarter. (MTP 5 Marks Oct 17)

Answer1

As per para 36 of AS 25 “Interim Financial Reporting”, seasonal or occasional revenue and cost within a
financial year should not be deferred as of interim date untill it is appropriate to defer at the end of the en-
terprise’s financial year. Therefore, dividend income, extra- ordinary gain, and gain on sale of investment
received during 3 rd quarter should be recognised in the 3rd quarter only. Similarly, sales promotion ex-
penses incurred in the 3 rd quarter should also be charged in the 3rd quarter only.

Further, as per the standard, if there is change in the accounting policy within the current financial year,
then such a change should be applied retrospectively by restating the financial statements of prior interim
periods of the current financial year. The change in the method of depreciation or inventory valuation is a
change in the accounting policy. Therefore, the prior interim periods’ financial statements should be restat-
ed by applying the change in the method of valuation retrospectively.

Accordingly, the adjusted profit before tax for the 3rd quarter will be as follows:

Statement showing Adjusted Profit Before Tax for the third quarter:
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(

(Rs. in lakhs) N

Profit before tax (as reported) 4
Add: Dividend income Rs. (4-1) lakhs 3
Excess depreciation charged in the 3rd quarter, due tochangein the method, 9

should be applied retrospectively Rs. (12-3)lakhs

Extra ordinary gain Rs. (2-1) lakhs 1

Cumulative loss due to change in the method of inventory valuation should be 1
applied retrospectively Rs. (3-2) lakhs

Less: Sales promotion expenses (80% of Rs. 15 lakhs) 12

Gain on sale of investment (occasional gain should not be deferred) 5

Adjusted Profit before tax for the third quarter 1

On 30-6-2017, L Limited incurred Rs. 6,00,000 net loss from disposal of a business segment. Also on
31-7-2017, the company paid Rs. 1,60,000 for property taxes assessed for the calendar year 2017. How
should the above transactions be included in determination of net income of L Limited for the six
months interim period ended on 30-9-2017? (MTP 4 Marks Aug 17)

Answer 2

Para 28 of AS 25 “Interim Financial Reporting” states that revenues and gains should be recognized in
interim reports on the same basis as used in annual reports. As at September 30, 2017, L Ltd. would report
the entire Rs. 6,00,000 loss on the disposal of its business segment since the loss was incurred during the
interim period.

A cost charged as an expense in an annual period should be allocated among the interim periods, which
are clearly benefited from the expense, through the use of accruals and/or deferrals. Since Rs. 1,60,000
property tax payment relates to the entire 2017 calendar year, only Rs. 80,000 of the payment would be
reported as an expense at September 30, 2017, while out of the remaining Rs. 80,000, Rs. 40,000 for Jan.2017
to March, 2017 would be shown as payment of the outstanding amount of previous year and another Rs.
40,000 related to quarter October, 2017 to December, 2017, would be reported as a prepaidexpense.

A Ltd. is dedling in seasonal products. The following is the quarterly sales pattern of the product:

Quarter 1 I I 1%
Ending 315t March 30th yune 30th september 318t December
20% 20% 50% 25%

For the first quarter ending 31st March, 2020, A Ltd. gives you the following information:

Rs.in crore

Sales 100

J
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(" Salary and other expenses 60 )
Advertisement expenses (routine)
Administrative and selling expenses 8

While preparing interim financial report for the first quarter, A Ltd. wants to defer

Rs. 42 crore expenditure to third quarter on the argument that third quarter is having more sales,
therefore third quarter should be debited by higher expenditure, considering the seasonal nature of
business. The expenditures are uniform throughout all quarters.

alculate the result of first quarter as per AS 25 and comment on the A Ltd. view. (RTP Nov 20)

Answer 3
(a) Calculation of the result of first quarter as per AS 25
Particulars (Rs. in
crore)
Result of first quarter ending 315t March, 2020
Turnover 100
Other Income Nil
Total (a) 100
Less: Changes in inventories Nil
Salaries and other expenses 60
Administrative and selling expenses (4 + 8) 12
Total (b) 72
Profit (a)-(b) 28

As per AS 25 on Interim Financial Reporting, the income and expense should be recognised when they are
earned and incurred respectively. As per AS 25, the costs should be anticipated ordeferred only when

B it is appropriate to anticipate that type of cost at the end of the financial year, and
B costs are incurred unevenly during the financial year of an enterprise.

B The expenditure of Rs. 42 crore made in the first quarter shall be charge in that quarter only i.e.
when they are earned and incurred. Therefore, the argument given by A Ltd. relating to deferment
of Rs. 42 crore is not tenable as expenditures are uniform throughout all quarters.

Question 4

Adam Ltd. provides you the following information and asks you to calculate the tax expense for each
quarter with reference to AS 25, assuming that there is no difference between the estimated taxable
income and the estimated accounting income:

Estimated Gross Annual Income 33,00,000 (inclusive of Estimated Capital Gains of Rs. 8,00,000) Esti-
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(¢ mated Income of Quarter I is Rs. 7,00,000, Quarter Il is Rs. 8,00,000, Quarter lll (including Estimated "\
Capital Gains of Rs. 8,00,000) is Rs. 12,00,000 and Quarter IV is Rs. 6,00,000.

Tax Rates: On Capital Gains 12%0n Other Income: First Rs. 5,00,000 30% Balance Income- 40% (RTP
Nov 19)

Answer4

As per para 29 of AS 25 ZInterim Financial Reportingg, income tax expense is recognised in each interim
period based on the best estimate of the weighted average annual income tax rate expected for the
full financial year.

If different income tax rates apply to different categories of income (such as capital gains or income
earnedin particular industries) to the extent prac ticable, a separate rate is applied to each individual
category ofinterim period pre-tax income.

Rs.
Estimated annual income exclusive of estimated capital goin(33,00,000 -
8,00,000) () 25,00,000
Tax expense on other income:
30% on Rs. 5,00,000 150,000
40% on remaining Rs. 20,00,000 8,00,000
(B) 9,560,000
Weighted average annual income tax rate =
B/A
(9,50,000/25,00,000) x 100 = 38%
Tax expense to be recognised in each of the quarterly reports
Rs.
Quarter | - Rs. 7,00,000 x 38% 2,66,000
Quarter Il - Rs. 8,00,000 x 38% 3,04,000
Quarter Il - Rs. (12,00,000 - 8,00,000) x 38% 152,000
Rs. 8,00,000 x 12% 96,000 2,48,000
Quarter IV - Rs. 6,00,000 x 38% 2,28,000
10,46,000

Faithful Ltd. is dealing in seasonal product sales pattern of the product, quarter wise is as follows: 1st-
2nd3rdgth

Information regarding the 1st quarier &%gl%otg 30th éﬂﬂﬁ%%lp&h as follows:Sales 80crore
Salary and other expenses 60 axgte proof done.indd

Advertisement expenses (routine) 4 crore

Administrative and selling expenses 8 crore
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4 )
While preparing interim financial report for first quarter Faithful Ltd. wants to defer

Rs. 10 crore expenditure to third quarter on the argument that third quarter is having more sales there-
fore third quarter should be debited by more expenditure. Considering the seasonal nature of business
and the expenditures are uniform throughout all quarters, calculate the result of the first quarter as per
AS 25. Also give a comment on the company’s view. ( RTP May 19)

Answer 5

According to AS 25 the Income and Expense should be recognized when they are earned and incurred
respectively. Therefore, seasonal incomes will be recognized as and when they occur. Thus, the company’s
view is not as per AS 25. Correct Statement of Profit or Loss for the quarter ending on 30 th June, 2018 would
be

Particulars (Rs. in
crore)

Result of first quarter ending 30th June, 2018

Turnover 80

Other Income Nil

Total (a) 80

Less: Changes in inventories Nil

Salaries and other cost 60

Administrative and selling Expenses (4+8) 12

Total (b) 72
Profit (a)-(b) 8

Question 6

To comply with listing requirements and other statutory obligations, Prateek Ltd. prepares interim fi-
nancial reports at the end of each quarter. The company has brought forward losses of Rs. 350 lakhs
under Income-tax Law, of which 90% is eligible for set off as per the recent verdict of the Court, that has
attained finality. No deferred tax asset has been recognized on such losses in view of the uncertainty
over its eligibility for set off. The company has reported quarterly earnings of Rs. 350 lakhs and Rs. 150
lakhs respectively for the first two quarters of financial year 2017-2018 and anticipates net earnings of
Rs. 400 lakhs in the coming half year ended March 2018 of which Rs. 50 lakhs will be the loss in the quar-
ter ended December, 2017. The tax rate for the company is 30% with a 10% surcharge. You are required
to calculate the amount of tax expense to be reported for each quarter of financial year 2017-2018. (RTP
Nov 18)
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~ Answer 6 )

Estimated tax liability on annual income = [Income Rs. 900 lakhs — b/f losses Rs. 315 lakhs (90% of 350)]
x33% = 33% of Rs. 585 lakhs = Rs. 193.05 lakhs

As per para 29(c) of AS 25 ZInterim Financial ReportingZ, income tax expense is recognised in each in-
terimperiod based on the best estimate of the weighted average annual income tax rate expected for
the full financial year.

Thus, estimated weighted average annual income tax rate = Rs. 193.05 lakhs divided by Rs. 900
lakhs=21.45%

Tax expense to be recognised in each quarter Rs.in lakhs
Quarter | — Rs. 350 lakhs x 21.45% 75.075
Quarter Il — Rs. 150 lakhs x 21.45% 32175
Quarter Il - (Rs. 50 lakhs) x 21.45% (10.725)
Quarter IV — Rs. 450 lakhs x 21.45% 96.525
193.05

Estimated annual income Z 1 lakh (inclusive of Estimated
Capital Gains (earned in Quarter II) 220,000The estimated income of
each quarter is Z25,000Tax Rates:

On Capital Gains 10%

On other income:

First 240,000 30%

Balance income 40%

There is no difference between the estimated taxable income and the estimated accounting income.
Calculate tax expense for each quarter and for the year. (RTP May 18)

Answer 7

TaxExpense:
On Capital Gains portion of annual income:

10% of 20,000 g 2,000
On other income: 30% of 40,000 + 40% of Z40,000 228,000
Total: 230,000

Weighted Average Annual Effective Tax Rate:

On Capital Gains portion of annual Income: (2,000 / 20,000) X 100 = 10%On other income: (28,000/
80,000) X 100 = 35%

When income of & 25,000 for ond Quarter includes capital gains of g 20,000, the tax expensefor each
quarter will be calculated as below:

Income Tax Expense

Quarter | 225,000 35% of 25,000 = 8,750
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(| Quarter I Capital Gains: | 220,000 10% of 220,000 = 22,000 )
Other: £5,000 35% of 5,000 = 21750 Z3,750
Quarter Il 225,000 35% of 25,000 = 8,750
Quarter IV 225,000 35% of 25,000 = 28,750
Total tax expense for the
year 230,000

Question 8

An enterprise reports quarterly, estimates an annual income of 2 10 lakhs. Assume tax rates on 1Ist 2
5,00,000 at 30% and on the balance income at 40%. The estimated quarterly income are 2 75,000, 2
2,50,000, 2 3,75,000 and Z 3,00,000.

Calculate the tax expense to be recognized in each quarter. (RTP Nov 17) (New SM)

Answer 8

As per para 29 of AS 25 ‘Interim Financial Reporting’, income tax expense is recognised in each interim
period based on the best estimate of the weighted average annual income tax rate expected for the full
financial year.

g

Estimated Annual Income (A) 10,00,000

Tax expense:

30% on g 5,00,000 150,000

40% on remaining g 5,00,000 2,00,000

(B) 3,560,000
Weighted average annual income tax rate = B/A = 3,50,000/ 10,00,000= 35%

Tax expense to be recognized in each of the quarterlyreports g
Quarter | - g 75,000 x 35% 26,250
Quarter Il - Z 250,000 x 35% 87,500
Quarter Il - 2 3,75,000 x 35% 131,250
Quarter IV - 2.3,00,000 x 35% 1,05,000

g 10,00,000 3,50,000
\_ /
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\

AS 25 mandates the following in relation to interim financial reports.

a. Which entities should publish b. How frequently it should publish
interimfinancial reports. interimfinancial reports.
c. How soon it should publish after the d. None of the above.
end ofinterim period.
Ans: (d)

Question 10

The standard defines Interim Financial Report as a financial report for an interim period that contains o
set of financial statements.

a. Complete b. Condensed
c. Financial statement similar to annual d. Either complete or condensed
Ans: (d)

ABC Limited has reported Rs. 85,000 as per tax profit in first quarter and expects a loss of Rs. 25,000 each
in subsequent quarters. It has corporate tax rate slab of 20% on the first Rs. 20,000 earnings and 40%
on all additional earnings. Calculate tax expenses that should report in first quarter interim financia

report.
a. Rs.17,000 b. Rs. 30,000
c. Rs. 2,000 d. AS 25 does not mandate to report tax
expenses
Ans: (a)

An entity prepares quarterly interim financial reports in accordance with AS 25. The entity is engaged
in sale of mobile phones and normally 5% of customers claim on their warranty. The provision in the first
quarter was calculated as 5% of sales to date, which was “10 million. However, in the second quarter, d
fault was found and warranty claims were expected to be 10% for the whole of the year. Sales in the secH
ond quarter were “15 million. What would be the provision charged in the second quarter’s interim finan-
cial statements?

a. ‘Imillion b. Rs. 2 million
c. Rs.1.25 million d. Rs. 1.5 million
Ans: (b)
\_ J
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4 Theoretical Questions Answers )
1 —
What are the periods for which Interim Financial Statements are required to be pre-
sented? You are required to answer your question in light of preparation of financial

statements for the period ended and as at 31st December, 20X1. The Financial Year is FY
20X1-X2.

Answers 13

A.s per Accounting Standard 25, Interim reports should include interimfinancial statements (condensedor
complete) for periods as given below.

Statement Current period Comparative period
Balance sheet End of current interimperiod End of immediately preceding fi-
nancialyear
Statement of profit Current interim period Comparable interim period and
andloss andcumulatively for the year- year-todate of immediately pre-
to-date ceding

financial year

Cash flow statement Cumulatively for the cur- Comparable year-to-date of imme-
rentfinancial year- to-date diatelypreceding financial year

In light of the above, following periods needs to be covered in interim financial statements for the period
ended and as at 3ist December, 20X1:

Balance Sheet as of the end of the current interim period and a comparative balance sheet as
of the end of the immediately preceding financial year (As at 31 December 20XI1
and 31 March 20X1).

Statements of for the currentinterim period and cumulatively for the current financial year
Profitand Loss to date, with comparative statements of profit and loss for the comparable
interim periods (current and year-to-date) of the immediately preceding
financial year. (for 3 months and 9 months i.e, year to date ended 31 De-
cember 20X1 and samefor 31 December 20X0 being comparative period).

Cash Flow State- cumulatively for the current financial year to date, with a comparative
ment statement for the comparable year-to-date period of the immediately
preceding financial year. (year to date i.e., 1 April 20X1 to 31 December 20X]
and 1 April 20X0 to 31

December 20X0).

Questions 14

Whether quarterly financial results presented under Clause 41 of the Listing Agreement entered into
between Stock Exchanges and the listed enterprises meet the definition of ‘interim financial report’ as
per AS 25 and the provisions of AS 25 should be applied on the same?
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"~ Answers 14 )

The presentation and disclosure requirements contained in AS 25 should be applied only if an enterprise
prepadres and presents an ‘interim financial report’ as defined in AS 25. Accordingly, presentation and
disclosure requirements contained in AS 25 are not required to be applied in respect of interim finan-
cial results (which do not meet the definition of ‘interim financial report’ as per AS 25) presented by an
enterprise.

The quarterly financial results presented under Clause 41 of the Listing Agreement do not meet the defi-
nition of ‘interim financial report’ as per AS 25. However, the recognition and measurement principles
laid down in AS 25 should be applied for recognition and measurement of items contained in such in-
terim financial results.

Whether the impairment loss recognized on property, plant and equipment in first quarter of the fi-
nancial year can be reversed in the second quarter in that financial year?

Answers 15

As per AS 25, the principles for recognising and measuring losses from inventorywrite-downs, restructur-
ings,or impairments in an interim period are the same asthose that an enterprise would follow if it pre-
pared onlyannual financial statements. However, if such items are recognised and measured in one in-
terimperiod andthe estimate changes in a subsequent interim period of that financialyear, the original
estimate is changedin the subsequent interim period either byaccrual of an additional amount of loss
or by reversal of the previously recognised amount. In light of the same, the impairment loss recognized
in onequarter can be reversed in the another quarter of the financial year, if favourableindicator exists
as per AS 28 and the recoverable amount increased in comparison to earlier period.

Practical Questions Ahswers
.|

Questions 16

In view of the provisions of Accounting Standard 25 on Interim Financial Reporting, on what
basis will you calculate, for an interim period, the provision in respect of defined benefit
schemes like pension, gratuity etc. for the employees?

Answers 16

Accounting Standard 25 suggests that provision in respect of defined benefit schemes like pen-
sion and gratuity for an interim period should be calculated based on the year-to-date basis by
using the actuarially

determined rates at the end of the prior financial year, adjusted for significant market fluctuations
since that time and for significant curtailments, settlements or other significant one-time events.

Questions 17

On 30th June, 20X1, Asmitha Ltd. incurred Rs. 2,00,000, net loss from disposal of a business
segment. Also,on 31st July, 20X1, the company paid Rs. 60,000 for property taxes assessed for
the calendar year 20X1. How the above transactions should be included in determination of
net income of Asmitha Ltd. for the six months interim period ended on 30th September, 20X1.
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(” Answers 17 )

According to Para 10 of AS 25 “Interim Financial Reporting”, if an enterprise prepares and presents
a complete set of financial statements in its interim financial report, the form and content of those
statements should conform to the requirements as applicable to annual complete set of financial
statements. As at 30th September, 20X1, Asmitha Ltd would report the entire amount of Rs. 2,00,000
as losson the disposal of its business segment since the loss was incurred during interim period. A
cost charged asan expense in an annual period should be allocated to interim periods on accrual
basis.

Since Rs. 60,000 Property tax payment relates to entire calendar year 20X], Rs. 30,000 would be re-
ported as anexpense for six months ended on 30th September, 20X1 while out of the remaining Rs.
30,000, Rs. 15,000 for January, 20X1 to March, 20X1 should be shown as payment of the outstanding
amount of previous year and another Rs. 15,000 related to quarter October, 20X1 to December, 20X1
would be reported as prepaid expenses.

Questions 18

An enterprise reports quarterly, estimates an annual income of Rs. 10 lakhs. Assume tax rates on
1st Rs. 5,00,000 at 30% and on the balance income at 40%. The estimated quarterly income are
Rs. 75,000, Rs. 2,50,000, Rs. 3,75,000 and Rs. 3,00,000.

Calculate the tax expense to be recognized in each quarter.

Answers 18

As per para 29 of AS 25 ‘Interim Financial Reporting’, income tax expense is recognised in each in-
terim period based on the best estimate of the weighted average annual income tax rate expected
for the full financial year.

Rs.

Estimated Annual Income (A) 10,00,000
Tax expense:
30% on Rs. 5,00,000 1,50,000
40% on remaining Rs. 5,00,000 2,00,000
(B) 3,50,000

B 3,50,000

Weighted average annual income taxrate = —= —— = 35%

A 10,00,000
Tax expense to be recognized in each of the quarterly reports )
Quarter | - ) 75,000 x 35% 26,250
Quarter Il - Rs. 2,50,000 x 35% 87,500

\_ J
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(| Quarter Rs.3,75,000 x 35% 1,31,250 h
I -
Quarter IV - Rs.3,00,000 x 35% 1,05,000
Rs.10,00,000 3,50,000

Questions 19

Antarbarti Limited reported a Profit Before Tax (PBT) of Rs. 4 lakhs for the third quarter ending 30-09-
20X1. On enquiry you observe the following. Give the treatment required under AS 25:

(i) Dividend income of Rs. 4 lakhs received during the quarter has been recognized to the
extent of Rs. 1lakh only.

(ii) 80% of sales promotion expenses Rs. 15 lakhs incurred in the third quarter has been de-
ferred to the fourth quarter as the sales in the last quarter is high.

(iii) In the third quarter, the company changed depreciation method from WDV to
SLM, which resulted in excess depreciation of Rs. 12 lakhs. The entire amount has
been debited in the third quarter, thoughthe share of the third quarter is only Rs.
3 lakhs.

(iv) Rs.2lakhs extra-ordinary gain received in third quarter was allocated equally to
the third and fourth quarter.

(v) Cumulative loss resulting from change in method of inventory valuation was
recognized in the thirdquarter of Rs. 3 lakhs. Out of this loss Rs. 1 lakh relates to
previous quarters.

(vi) Sale of investment in the first quarter resulted in a gain of Rs. 20 lakhs. The com-
pany had apportioned this equally to the four quarters.

Prepare the adjusted profit before tax for the third quarter.

Answers 19

As per para 36 of AS 25 “Interim Financial Reporting”, seasonal or occasional revenue and cost
within a financial year should not be deferred as of interim date until it is appropriate to defer at
the end of the enterprise’s financial year. Therefore, dividend income, extra-ordinary gain, and
gain on sale of investmentreceived during 3 quarter should be recognised in the 3 quarter only.
Similarly, sales promotion expensesincurred in the 3" quarter should also be charged in the 3
quarter only.

Further, as per AS 10, Property, Plant and Equipment, if there is change in the depreciation method,
such achange should be accounted for as a change in accounting estimate in accordance with
AS 5, Net Profit or Loss for the Period, Prior Period Items and Changes in Accounting Policies, and
applied prospectively. Therefore, no adjustment would be required due to change in the method
of depreciation.

Accordingly, the adjusted profit before tax for the 3 quarter will be as follows:
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4 )

Statement showing Adjusted Profit Before Tax for the third quarter

(Rs. in lakhs)

Profit before tax (as reported) Add: Dividend income Rs. (4-1) lakhsExcess depreci- 4
ation charged in the 3rd quarter, due to change in the method 3

Extra ordinary gain Rs. (2-1) lakhsCumulative loss due to change in the
method of inventory valuation should be

applied retrospectively Rs. (3-2) lakhs

Less: Sales promotion expenses (80% of Rs. 15 lakhs) 1
Gain on sale of investment (occasional gain should not bedeferred) 9
Adjusted Profit before tax for the third quarter (12)

(5)
(8)

Question 20 (lllustration)

Sincere Corporation is dealing in seasonal product. Sales pattern of the product
quarter-wise is as follows:

Ist quarter 30th June 10%
2nd quarter 30th September 10%
3rd quarter 31st December 60%
4th quarter 31st March 20%

Information regarding the 1st quarter ended on 30th June, 20X1 is as follows:

Sales 80 crores
Salary and other expenses 60 crores
Advertisement expenses (routine) 4 crores
Administrative and selling expenses 8 crores

While preparing interim financial report for first quarter Sincere Corporation wants to defer Rs. 10 crores
expenditure to third quarter on the argument that third quarter is having more sales, therefore, the third
quarter should be debited by more expenditure. Considering the seasonal nature of business and the
expenditures are uniform throughout all quarters, calculate the result of the first quarter as per AS 25.
Also give a comment on the company’s view.
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Answers 20
Particulars (ZIncrores)
Result of first quarter ended 30th June, 20X
Turnover 80
Other Income Nil
Total (a) 80
Less: Changes in inventories Nil
Salaries and other cost 60
Administrative and selling Expenses (4+8) 12
Total (b) 72
Profit (a)-(b) 8

According to AS 25, the Income and Expense should be recognized when they are earned and incurred
respectively. Therefore, seasonal incomes will be recognized when they occur. Thus, the company’s view
isnot as per AS 25.

Question 21 (lllustration)

The accounting year of X Ltd. ends on 30th September, 20X1and it makes its reports quarterly. Howev-
er, for the purpose of tax, year ends on 31st March every year. For the Accounting year from 1-10-20X0
to 30-9-20X1, the quarterly income is as under:

1st quarter ending on 31st December, 20X0 Rs. 200 crores
2nd quarter ending on 31st March, 20X1 Rs. 200 crores
3rd quarter ending on 30th June, 20X1 Rs. 200 crores
4th quarter ending on 30th September, 20X1 Rs. 200 crores
Total Rs. 800 crores

Average actual tax rate for the financial year ending on 31st March, 20X1 is 20% and for financial year
ending 31st March, 20X2 is 30%. Calculate tax expense for each quarter.

Answers 21
Calculation of tax expense

Ist quarter ending on 31st December, 20X0 200 x 20% Rs. 40 lakhs

2nd quarter ending on 31st March, 20X 200 x 20% Rs. 40 lakhs

3rd quarter ending on 30th June, 20XI 200 x 30% Rs. 60 lakhs

\ J
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4 4th quarter ending on 30th September, 20X 200 x 30% Rs. 60 lakhs )

Question 22 (lllustration)

Accountants of Poornima Ltd. showed a net profit of Rs. 7,20,000 for the third quarter of
20X1 after incorporating the following:

(i) Bad debts of Rs. 40,000 incurred during the quarter. 50% of the bad debts have
been deferred tothe next quarter.

(ii) Extra ordinary loss of Rs. 35,000 incurred during the quarter has been fully recognized in this
quarter

(iii) Additional depreciation of Rs. 45,000 resulting from the change in the method of chargeof de-
preciation assuming that Rs. 45,000 is the charge for the 3rd quarter only.

Ascertain the correct quarterly income.
Answers 22
In the above case, the quarterly income has not been correctly stated. As per AS 25 “Interim
Financial
Reporting”, the quarterly income should be adjusted and restated as follows:

Bad debts of Rs. 40,000 have been incurred during current quarter. Out of this, the company hasdeferred
50% (i.e.) Rs. 20,000 to the next quarter. Therefore, Rs. 20,000 should be deducted from

Rs. 7,20,000. The treatment of extra-ordinary loss of Rs. 35,000 being recognized in the samequarter
is correct.

Recognising additional depreciation of Rs. 45,000 in the same quarter is in tune with AS 25.Hence no
adjustments are required for these two items.

Poornima Ltd should report quarterly income as Rs7,00,000 (Rs7,20,000 - RsQ0,000).

Question 23 (lllustration)

Intelligent Corporation (I - Corp.) is dealing in seasonal products. The quarterly sales patternof the product
is given below:

Quarter | n ] v
Ending 30th June 30th September 3ist December 31st March
15% 15% 50% 25%
For the First quarter ending 30th June, 20X1, I -Corp. gives you the following information:
Rs.crores
Sales 50
Salary and other expenses 30
Advertisement expenses (routine) 02
Administrative and selling expenses 08
S— L ) -
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While preparing interim financial report for the first quarter, ‘I - Corp.” wants to defer Rs. 21 crores ex-
penditure to third quarter on the argument that third quarter is having more sales,therefore, third quar-
ter should be debited by higher expenditure, considering the seasonal nature of business and that the
expenditures are uniform throughout all quarters.

Calculate the result of first quarter as per AS 25 and comment on the company’s view.

Answers 23
Result of the first quarter ended 30* June, 20X1
(Rs.in crores)
Turnover 50
Add: Other Income Nil
Total 50
Less: Change in inventories Nil
Salaries and other cost 30
Administrative and selling expenses (8 + 2) 10 40
Profit 10

B As per AS 25 on Interim Financial Reporting, the income and expense should be recognized when
they areearned and incurred respectively. As per AS 25, the costs should be anticipatedor deferred
only whenit is appropriate to anticipate that type of cost at the end of the financial year, and costs
are incurred unevenly during the financial year of an enterprise.

Therefore, the argument given by I-Corp relating to deferment of Rs. 21 crores is not tenable asexpendi-
turesare uniform throughout all quarters.
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AS 2- Valuation of Inventory

Attempts

Coverage

Study
Mat.

Past
Exams

MTP
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MAY | NOV MAY NOV | MAY | NOV | MAY NOV | MAY NOV MAY NOV

2018 | 2018 2019 2019 | 2020 | 2020 | 2021 2021 | 2022 2022 2023 2023
Q.22T70 Q.33

NO | NO Q.2,Q.18 | Q.17 | NO NO Q.17 Q.16 | Q.19 Q.20 NO NO

Q5 [Q2Q.6 (Q2Q5 Q17 Q2 NO Q3Q4 Q7 |Q3 Q.8,Q.9 | Q.3,Q10 | Q.4,Q.17

Q.13 | Q.6 Qmn Q8 |Ql0 [Q.6 Q.12 Q1 [ Q5,Q14 | Q.15 Ql Q.21
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AS 2- Valuation of Inventory

An enterprise ordered 20,000 KG of certain material at 2110 per unit. The purchase price includes GST
212 per KG, in respect of which full input tax credit (ITC) is admissible. Freight incurred amounted to

€1,17,600. Normal transit loss is 2%. The enterprise actually received 19,500 KG and consumed 18,000
KG of the material.

You are required to calculate cost of material per KG;Allocation of material cost. (RTP May 23) (SM)

Answer 1
Calculation of Normal cost per Kg.
©
Purchase price (20,000 Kg. x 2 110) 22,00,000
Less: Input Tax Credit (20,000 Kg. x Z 12) (2,40,000)
19,60,000
Add: Freight 117,600
A. Total material cost 20,77,600
B. Number of units normally received = 98% of 20,000 Kg. Kg.19,600
C. Normal cost per Kg. (A/B) 106
Allocation of material cost
Kg. Z [Kg. 4
Materials consumed 18,000 106 19,08,000
Cost of inventory 1,500 106 1,59,000
Abnormal loss 100 106 10,600
Total material cost 19,600 106 20,77,600

Note: Abnormal losses are recognized as separate expense.

Omega Ltd. has a normal wastage of 4% in the production process. During the year 2019-20, the
Company used 12,000 MT of raw material costing Rs. 150 per MT. At the end of the year 630 MT of
wastage was ascertained in stock. The accountant wants to know how this wastage is to be treated
inthe books.

You are required to compute the amount of normal and abnormal loss and treatment thereof in line
with AS 2 “Valuation of inventories”. (MTP 5 Marks, May ‘20, April '19, Oct '18, Old & New SM)(Same
concept different figures PYP May’19 5 Marks)
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Answer 2

As per para AS 2 ‘Valuation of Inventories’, abnormal amounts of wasted materials, Labour and
other production costs are excluded from cost of inventories and such costs are recognized as
expenses in the period in which they are incurred. The normal loss will be included in determin-
ing the cost of inventories (finished goods) at the year end.

Amount of Normal Loss and Abnormal Loss:
Material used 12,000 MT @ Rs. 150 = Rs. 18,00,000

Normal Loss (4% of 12,000 MT) 480 MT

Net quantity of material 11,520MT

Abnormal Loss in quantity 150 MT (630 MT less 480 MT)
Abnormal Loss Rs. 23,437.50

[150 units @ Rs. 156.25 (Rs.18,00,000/11,520)] Amount of Rs. 23,437.50 will be charged to the Profit
and Loss statement.

In a production process, normal waste is 5% of input. 5,000 MT of input were put in process resulting in
wastage of 300 MT. Cost per MT of input is Rs. 1,000. The entire quantity of waste and finished output
is in stock at the year end. State with reference to Accounting Standard, how will you value the inven-
tories in this case? What will be treatment for normal and abnormal waste? (MTP 5 Marks, March 21,
Apr’'22 & April '23, Old & New SM)

Answer 3

As per para 13 of AS 2 (Revised), abnormal amounts of wasted materials, labour and other produc-
tion costs are excluded from cost of inventories and such costs are recognized as expenses in the
period in which they are incurred.

In this case, normal waste is 250 MT and abnormal waste is 50 MT. The cost of 250 MT will | be in-
cludedin determining the cost of inventories (finished goods) at the year end. The cost of abnor-
mal waste (50 MT x 1,052.6315 = Rs. 52,632) will be charged to the profit and loss statement.

Cost per MT (Normal Quantity of 4,750 MT) = 50,00,000 / 4,750 = Rs. 1,052.6315 Total value of inven-
tory = 4,700 MT x Rs.1,052.6315 = Rs. 49,47,368.

Question 4

(i) “In determining the cost of inventories, it is appropriate to exclude certain costs and rec-
ognize them as expenses in the period in which they are incurred”. Provide examples of
such costs as per AS 2 ‘Valuation of Inventories’. (MTP 2.5 Marks April 21 & Oct ‘23, RTP
May’22, Old & New SM)

(ii) X Limited purchased goods at the cost of Rs. 40 lakhs in October, 2020. Till March, 2021,
75% of the stocks were sold. The company wants to disclose closing stock at Rs. 10 lakhs.
The expected sale value is Rs. 11 lakhs and a commission at 10% on sale is payable to the
agent. Advise, what is the correct value of closing stock to be disclosed as at 31.3.2021.
(MTP 2.5 Marks April 21 & Oct ‘23)
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Answer 4

(i) As per AS 2 'Valuation of Inventories’, certain costs are excluded from the cost of the in-
ventories and arerecognized as expenses in the period in which incurred. Examples of
such costs are:

(a) abnormal amount of wasted materials, Labour, or other production costs;

(b) storage costs, unless those costs are necessary in the production process prior to a
further production stage;

(c) administrative overheads that do not contribute to bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition; and

(d) selling and distribution costs.

(ii) As per AS 2 “Valuation of Inventories”, the inventories are to be valued at lower of cost or
net realizablevalue. In this case, the cost of inventory is Rs. 10 lakhs. The net realizable
value is 11,00,000 Rs. 90%

= Rs. 9,90,000. So, the stock should be valued atRs. 9,90,000.

On the basis of information given below, find the value of inventory (by periodic inven-
tory method) as per AS 2, to be considered while preparing the Balance Sheet as on 31st
March, 2017 on weighted Average Basis.

Details of Purchases:

Date of pur- Unit(Nos.) Purchase cost per unit (Rs.)
chase

01-03-2017 20 108

08-03-2017 15 107

17-03-2017 30 109

25-03-2017 15 107

Details of issue of Inventory:

Date of Issue Unit(Nos.)
03-03-2017 10
12-03-2017 20
18-03-2017 10
24-03-2017 20
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Net realizable value of inventory as on 31st March, 2017 is Rs. 107.75 per unit. You are required
to compute the value of Inventory as per AS 2. (MTP March ‘19, 5 Marks, MTP March ‘18, 5 Marks,
RTP May’22)

Answer 5

Net Realizable Value of Inventory as on 3lst March, 2017 = Rs.107.75 x 20 units = Rs. 2,155 Value
of inventory as per Weighted Average basis. Total units purchased and total cost:

01.03.2017 Rs. 108 x 20 units = Rs. 2160
08.3.2017 Rs. 107 x 15 units = Rs. 1605
17.03.2017 Rs. 109 x 30 units = Rs. 3270
25.03.2017 Rs. 107 x 15 units = Rs. 1605

Total 80 units = Rs. 8640
Weighted Average Cost = Rs. 8640/80 units = Rs.108Total cost =Rs. 108 x 20 units = Rs. 2,160

Value of inventory to be considered while preparing Balance Sheet as on 3ist March, 2017
is, Cost orNet Realizable value whichever is lower i.e. Rs. 2,155.

A Limited is engaged in manufacturing of Chemical Y for which Raw Material X is required. The
company provides you following information for the year ended 31st March, 2017.

Rs. Per unit
Raw Material X
Cost price 380
Unloading Charges 20
Freight Inward 40
Replacement cost 300
Chemical Y
Material consumed 440
Direct Labour 120
Variable Overheads 80

Additional Information:
(i) Total fixed overhead for the year was Rs. 4,00,000 on normal capacity of 20,000 units.
(ii)Closing balance of Raw Material X was 1,000 units and Chemical Y was Rs. 2,400 units.

You are required to calculate the total value of closing stock of Raw Material X and Chem-
ical Y according to AS 2, when Net realizable value of Chemical Y is Rs. 800 per unit. (MTP
Aug. ‘18, 5 Marks, RTP Nov’18) (Same concept different figures RTP Nov’20)

Answer 6

When Net Realizable Value of the Chemical Y is Rs. 800 per unit NRV is greater than the
cost of FinishedGoods Y i.e. Rs. 660 (Refer W.N.)

Hence, Raw Material and Finished Goods are to be valued
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Qty. Rate Amount (Rs.)
(Rs.)
Raw Material X 1,000 440 4,40,000
Finished Goods Y 2,400 660 15,84,000
Total Value of Closing Stock 20,24,000

Working Note:

Statement showing cost calculation of Raw Material X and Chemical Y

Raw Material X Rs.
Cost Price 380
Add: Freight Inward 40
Unloading charges 20
Cost 440
Chemical Y Rs.
Materials consumed 440
Direct Labour 120
Variable overheads 80
Fixed overheads (Rs.4,00,000/20,000 units) 20
Cost 660
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Question 7

From the following information provided by XYZ Limited you are required to compute the closing
inventory:

Raw Material P

Closing balance 600 units  per unit
Cost price including GST 250

Input tax credit available 20

Freight inward 30

Handling charges 15

Replacement cost 180

Finished goods Q

Closing balance 1500 units  per unit
Material consumed 250

Direct Labour 70

Direct overhead 30

Total fixed overhead for the year was 2 3,00,000 on a normal capacity of 30,000 units while actual
production has been of 25,000 units.

Calculate the value of closing stock, when

(i) Netrealizable value of the finished good Q is Z 450 per unit.

(i) NetRealizable value of the Finished Good Qs Z 340 per unit.(MTP Oct ‘21, 5 marks)
Answer 7

(i) When Net Realizable Value of the Finished Good Q is 450 per unit Value of Closing Stock:

Valuation Qty. Rate Amount
Base () ()
Raw Material P Cost 600 275 1,65,000
Finished Good Q Cost 1,500 360 5,40,000
Total value of closing stock 7,05,000

When Net Realizable Value of the Finished Good Q is Z 340 per unit Since NRV of finished goods Q is less
than its cost i.e. 2 360 (Refer W.N.), raw material P is to be valued at replacement cost and finished goods
is to be valued at NRV.

Value of Closing Stock:

Valuation Base Qty. Rate () Amount ()
Raw material P Replacement cost 600 180 1,08,000
Finished good Q Net Realizable 1,500 340 5,10,000
Value
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Total value  of 6,18,000
closing stock

Working Note:

Statement showing calculation of cost of raw material P and finished good Q

Raw Material P g
Cost Price (250-20) 230
Add: Freight Inward 30
Handling charges 15
Cost 275
Finished Goods Q Z
Materials consumed 250
Direct Labour 70
Variable overheads 30
10
360

Question 8

Hello Ltd. purchased goods at the cost of Rs. 20 lakhs in October. Till the end of the financial year,
75% of the stocks were sold. The Company wants to disclose closing stock at Rs. 5 lakhs. The
expected sale value is Rs. 5.5 lakhs and a commission at 10% on sale is payable to the agent.
You are required to ascertain the value of closing stock? (MTP 5 Marks Sep '22, RTP Nov'19)

Answer 8

As per AS 2 “Valuation of Inventories”, the inventories are to be valued at lower of cost or net realizable
value.

In this case, the cost of inventory is Rs. 5 lakhs. The net realizable value is Rs. 4.95 lakhs (Rs. 5.5
lakhs less cost to make the sale @ 10% of Rs. 5.5 lakhs). So, the closing stock should be valued at
Rs. 4.95 lakhs.

Question 9

U.S.A Ltd. purchased raw material @ Z 400 per kg. Company does not sell raw material but uses
in production of finished goods. The finished goods in which raw material is used are expected
to be sold at below cost. At the end of the accounting year, company is having 10,000 kg of raw
material in inventory. As the company never sells the raw material, it does not know the selling
price of raw material and hence cannot calculate the realizable value of the raw material for
valuation of inventories at the end of the year. However replacement cost of raw material is
300 per kg. How will you value the inventory of raw material? (MTP 5 Marks Oct '22)
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Answer 9

As per AS 2 (Revised) “Valuation of Inventories”, materials and other supplies held for use in the pro-
duction of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will
be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. However, when there has been a decline
in the price of materials and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed net
realizablevalue, the materials are written down to net realizable value. In such circumstances, the
replacement cost of the materials may be the best available measure of their net realizable value.
Therefore, in this case, USA Ltd. will value the inventory of raw material at  30,00,000 (10,000 kg. @
Z 300 per kg.).

Question 10

The expected production for the year was 15,000 kg of the finished product. Due to fall in market de-
mand the sales price for the finished goods was Z 20 per kg and the replacement cost for the raw ma-
terial was Z 9.50 per kg on the closing day. You are required to calculate the closing inventory as on that
date. (MTP 5 Marks March '23) (RTP May 20)

Particulars Kg. 4
Opening Inventory: Finished Goods 1,000 25,000
Raw Materials 1,100 11,000
Purchases 10,000 1,00,000
Labour 76,500
Overheads (Fixed) 75,000
Sales 10,000 2,80,000
Closing Inventory: Raw Materials 900
Finished Goods 1200
Answer 10

Calculation of cost for closing inventory

Particulars C4
Cost of Purchase (10,200 x 10) 1,02,000
Direct Labour 76,500

75000 X 10,200 51,000

Fixed Overhead

15,000
Cost of Production 2,29,500
Cost of closing inventory per unit (2,29,500/10,200) Z 22,50
Net Realisable Value per unit g 20.00

Since net realisable value is less than cost, closing inventory will be valued at 2 20.

As NRV of the finished goods is less than its cost, relevant raw materials will be valued at
replacementcost i.e.  9.50.
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Therefore, value of closing inventory: Finished Goods (1,200 x
20) Z 24,000Raw Materials (900 x 9.50) Z
8,550 32,550

On 31st March 2020, a business firm finds that cost of a partly finished unit on that date
is  430. Theunit can be finished in 2020-21 by an additional expenditure of Z 310. The
finished unit can be sold for

Z 750 subject to payment of 2% brokerage on selling price. The firm seeks your advice
regarding the amount at which the unfinished unit should be valued as at 31st March,
2020 for preparation of final accounts. Assume that the partly finished unit cannot be
sold in semi-finished form and its NRV is zero without processing it further. (RTP Nov
21) (same concept different figures RTP May 19)(Old & New SM)

Answer 11
Valuation of unfinished unit
g
Net selling price 750
Less: Estimated cost of completion (310)
440
Less: Brokerage (2 % of 750) (15)
Net Realisable Value 425
Cost of inventory 430
Value of inventory (Lower of cost and net realisable value) 425

The inventory of Rich Ltd. as on 31st March, 2020 comprises of Product — A: 200 units and Product - B:
800 units.

Details of cost for these products are:
Product — A: Material cost, wages cost and overhead cost of each unit are Rs. 40,

Rs. 30 and Rs. 20 respectively, Each unit is sold at Rs. 110, selling expenses amounts to 10% of selling
costs.

Product - B: Material cost and wages cost of each unit are Rs. 45 and Rs. 35 respectively and normal
selling rate is Rs. 150 each, however due to defect in the manufacturing process 800 units of Product-
B were expected to be sold at Rs. 70. You are requested to value closing inventory according to AS 2
after considering the above. (RTP May 21)

Answer 12

According to AS 2 'Valuation of Inventories’, inventories should be valued at the lower of cost and net
realizable value.
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Product-A
Material cost Rs. 40 x 200 = 8,000
Wages cost Rs. 30 x 200 = 6,000
Overhead Rs.20 x 200 = 4,000
Total cost Rs. 18,000
Realizable value [200 x (110-11)] Rs. 19,800
Hence inventory value of Product -A Rs. 18,000
Product-B
Material cost Rs. 45 x 800 = 36,000
Wages cost Rs. 35 x 800 = 28,000
Total cost Rs. 64,000
Realizable value (800 x 70) Rs. 56,000
Hence inventory value of Product-B Rs. 56,000
Total Value of closing inventory i.e. Product A + Product B (18,000+ 56,000) Rs. 74,000

A private limited company manufacturing fancy terry towels had valued its closing inventory of inven-
tories of finished goods at the realizable value, inclusive of profit and the export cash incentives. Firm
contracts had been received and goods were packed for export, but the ownership in these goodshad
not been transferred to the foreign buyers. You are required to advise the company on the valuation of
the inventories in line with the provisions of AS 2. (RTP May '18)

Answer 13

Accounting Standard 2 “Valuation of Inventories” states that inventories should be valued at lower of his-
torical cost and net realizable value. The standard states, “at certain stages in specific industries, such as
when agricultural crops have been harvested or mineral ores have been extracted, performance may
be substantially complete prior to the execution of the transaction generating revenue. In such cases,
when sale is assured under forward contract or a government guarantee or when market exists and there
is a negligible risk of failure to sell, the goods are often valued at net realizable value at certain stages
of production.” Terry Towels do not fall in the category of agricultural crops or mineral ores. Accordingly,
taking into account the facts stated, the closing inventory of finished goods (Fancy terry towel) should
have been valued at lower of cost and net realizable value and not at net realizable value. Further, export
incentives are recorded only in the year the export sale takes place. Therefore, the policy adopted by the
company for valuing its closing inventory of inventories of finished goods is not correct.

Question 14

Rohan Pvt. Ltd., a wholesaler in agriculture products, has valued the inventory on Net Realizable Value
on the ground that AS 2 does not apply to inventory of agriculture products. (RTP May "22)
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Answer 14

AS 2 does not apply to producers of agricultural products but applies to traders in agricultural products.
Hence AS 2 will apply to Rohan Pvt. Ltd. and it will have to value inventory at lower of cost or market value.

The closing stock of finished goods (at cost) of a company amounted to Rs. 4,50,000. The following
items were included at cost in the total:

(a) 100 coats, which had cost Rs. 2,200 each and normally sold for Rs. 4,000 each.
Owing to a defect inmanufacture their NRV was determined at 50% of their normal
selling price.

(b) ShirtswhichhadcostRs. 50,000, their net realizable value at Balance sheet date was Rs.
55,000. Commission @ 10% on sales is payable to agents.

What should the inventory value be according to AS 2 after considering the above items?

(RTPNov'22)
Answer 15
Valuation of closing stock
Rs.
Closing stock at cost 4,50,000
Less: Adjustment for 100 coats (Working Note 1) (20,000)
Value of inventory 4,30,000

Working Notes:

1. Adjustmentfor Coats Rs.
Cost included in Closing Stock 2,20,000
NRV of Coats 2,00,000

Adjustment to be made as NRV is less than Cost 20,000

2. No adjustment required for shirts as their NRV is more than their cost which was
included in valueof inventory.

Joy Ltd. purchased 20,000 kilograms of Raw Material @ Z 20 per kilogram during the year 2020-21.
They have furnished you with the following further information for the year ended 31st March, 2021:

Particulars Units Amount ()

Opening Inventory:

Finished Goods 2,000 1,00,000
Raw Materials 2,200 44,000
Direct Labour 3,06,000
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Fixed Overheads 3,00,000
Sales 20,000 11,20,000
Closing Inventory:

Finished Goods 2,400

Raw Materials 1,800

The plant has a capacity to produce 30,000 Units of finished product per annum. However, the actual
production of finished products during the year 2020-21 was 20,400 Units. Due to a fall in the market
demand, the price of the finished goods in which the raw material has been utilized is expected to be
sold @ ¥ 40 per unit. The replacement cost of the raw material was g 19 per kilogram. You are required to
ascertain the value of closing inventory as at 31st March, 2021 as per AS 2. (PYP July’21, 5 Marks)

Answer 16

Statement Showing the Computation of Value of Closing Inventory Value of Closing Finished Goods

Particulars Amount ()
Cost of Raw Material consumed (20,400 units X g 20 per kg) 4,08,000
Direct Labour 3,06,000
Fixed Overheads (3,00,000/30,000 x 20,400) 2,04,000
Cost of Production 9,18,000
Cost of Closing Inventory of Finished Goods per unit (2 45
9,18,000/20,400)

Net Realizable Value (NRV) per unit 40

Since net realizable value is less than cost, closing inventory of Finished Goods will be valued at 2 40
per unit Value of Closing Raw Materials as NRV of finished goods is less than its cost, the relevant raw
material will be valued at its replacement cost, which is the best available measure of its NRV ie. @ €
19 per kg. Therefore, value of closing inventory would be as under:

Finished Goods 2,400 units @ & 40/- per unit Z 96,000
Raw Materials 1,800 kg @ ¥ 19/- per kg Z 34,200
Total Z1,30,200

Working Note:Calculation of raw material consumed during the year

Particulars Unit (Kg)

Opening Inventory 2,200
Purchases 20,000
Less: Closing Inventory (1,800)
Raw Material Consumed 20,400
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Mr. Jatin gives the following information relating to the items forming part of the inventory as on
31.03.2019. His enterprise produces product P using Raw Material X.

(i) 900 units of Raw Material X (purchases @ 2 100 per unit). Replacement cost of Raw
Material X as on3103.2019 is Z 80 per unit

(i) 400 units of partly finished goods in the process of producing P. Cost incurred till
date is 245 per unit. These units can be finished next year by incurring additional

cost of Z 50 per unit.

(iii) 800 units of Finished Goods P and total cost incurred is Z 295 per unit.

Expected selling price of product P is 2280 per unit, subject to a payment of 5% broker-

age on selling price.

Determine how each item of inventory will be valued as on 31.03.2019. Also calculate
the value of total Inventory as on 31.03.2019. (PYP 5 Marks Jan ‘21) (Sam concept dif-
ferent figures PYP 5 Marks Nov'19, MTP Oct’'19 5 Marks, Old & New SM) (MTP 5 Marks Sep

'23)

Answer 17

As per AS 2 (Revised) “Valuation of Inventories”, materials and other supplies held for use in the pro-
duction of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they willbe
incorporated are expected to be sold at cost or above cost. However, when there has been a decline in
the price of materials and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed net realizable
value, the materials are written down to net realizable value. In such circumstances, the replacement
cost of the materials may be the best available measure of their net realizable value. In the given case,
selling price of product P is 266 and total cost per unit for production is  295.

Hence the valuation will be done as under:

(i) 900 units of raw material X will be written down to replacement cost as market value of
finished productis less than its cost, hence valued at 80 per unit.

(ii) 400 units of partly finished goods will be valued at 216 per unit i.e,, lower of cost (g 245) or
Net realizablevalue Z 216 (Estimated selling price 266 per unit less additional cost of &

50).

(iii) 800 units of finished product P will be valued at NRV of 266 per unit since it is lower than

cost T 295.

2021 Valuation of Total Inventory as on 31.03.2019:

Units Cost NRV/Repl Value = unit’s x cost or
(@) acement NRVwhichever is

G less ()

Raw material X 900 100 80 72,000
Partly finished 400 245 216 86,400

goods

Finished goods P 800 295 266 2,12,800
Value of Inventory 3.71,200
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Question 18

State whether the following statements are ‘True’ or ‘False’. Also give reason for your answer. As per
the provisions of AS-2, inventories should be valued at the lower of cost and selling price. (PYP 1 Mark,
May’19)

Answer 18

False: Inventories should be valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value (not selling price) as
per AS 2.

Question 19

SM Enterprises is a leading distributor of petrol. A detailed inventory of petrol in hand is taken when
the books are closed at the end of each month. For the month ending June 2021 following information
is available:

m  Sales for the month of June 2021 was 30,40,000.
B General overheads cost 4,00,000.

B |nventory at beginning 10,000 litres @ g 92 per litre.

Purchases-June 1, 2021, 20,000 litres @ € 90 per litre, June 30, 2021, 10,000 litres @ T 95 per litre.
B Closing inventory 13,000 litres.

You are required to compute the following by FIFO method as per AS 2:

(i) Value of Inventory on 30th June, 2021.

(ilAmount of cost of goods sold for June,2021.

(iii) Profit/Loss for the month of June,2021. (PYP 5 Marks May ‘22)

Answer 19
g
Cost of closing inventory for 13,000 litres as on 30th June 2021
10,000 litres @ Z 95 9,50,000
3,000 litres @ € 90 2,70,000
Value of inventory (determined at cost in absence of NRV) -
12,20,000
Calculation of cost of goods sold
Opening inventories (10,000 litres @ ¥ 92) 9,20,000
Purchases June — 1 (20,000 litres @ Z 90) 18,00,000
June - 30 (10,000 litres @ 95) 9,50,000
36,70,000
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Less: Closing inventories (12,20,000)
Cost of Goods Sold 24,550,000
Calculation of Profit 30,40,000
Sales (Given) (A) 24,50,000
Cost of Goods Sold 4,00,000
Add: General Overheads 28,50,000
Total Cost (B) 1,90,000
Profit (A-B)

Question 20

Following information of Sarah Limited is given:

Sarah Limited uses Raw Material ‘A’ for production of production of Finished Goods ‘B’

Closing balance of Raw Material ‘A’ in units on 31stMarch,2022 750

Price Per Unitin

Cost Price 150
Freight inward 10
Replacement Cost 152

Closing balance of Finished Good ‘B’ in units on 31stMarch,2022

1,600

Price Per Unit in &

Material Consumed 225
Direct Labour 75
Direct variable overhead 60

Total Fixed Overheads amounts to Z 1,00,000 on normal capacity of 20,000 units.You are re-
quired to calculate the value of Closing Stock of Raw materials and Closing Stock of Finished
Goods, as on 31st March, 2022, as per AS 2, when selling price of Finished Goods ‘B’ is Z 360 per

unit. (PYP 5 Marks Nov '22)

Answer 20
Raw Material A C4
Cost Price 150
Add: Freight Inward 10
Cost per unit 160
Replacement cost per unit of raw material 152

As per AS 2 (Revised) “Valuation of Inventories”, the inventories are to be valued at lower of cost
or net realizable value. Materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories
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are written down below cost if the selling price of finished product containing the material does
not exceedthe cost of the finished product. In the given case, net realizable value of the Product
‘B’ (Finished Goods) is 360 per unit which is less than its cost Z 365 per unit. Raw Material is to be
valued at replacement cost.

Value of the closing stock of raw material on 31/03/2022 would be 2 1,14,000 (750 units X 152 per unit).

Finished Goods B g
Materials consumed 225
Direct Labour 75
Direct Variable overheads 60
Fixed overheads (2 1,00,000/20,000 units) 5
Cost per unit 365
Net realizable value per unit 360

As per AS 2 (Revised) “Valuation of Inventories”, the inventories are to be valued at lower of cost ornet
realizable value. Hence, Finished Goods are to be valued at NRV since NRV is less than the cost.

Value of the closing stock of Finished goods as on 31/03/2022 would be Z 5,76,000 (1,600 units X Z
360 per unit).

Alphal Ltd. sells flavored milk to customers; some of the customers consume the milk in the shop run
by Alpha Limited. While leaving the shop, the consumers leave the empty bottles in the shop and the
company takes possession of these empty bottles. The company has laid down a detailed internal
record procedure for accounting for these empty bottles which are sold by the company by calling for
tenders.

Keeping this in view:
Decide whether the inventory of empty bottles is an asset of the company;

If so, whether the inventory of empty bottles existing as on the date of Balance Sheet is to be con-
sidered as inventories of the company and valued as per AS 2 or to be treated as scrap and shownat
realizable value with corresponding credit to ‘Other Income’? (RTP Nov "23)

Answer 21

As per the ‘Framework on Presentation and Preparation of Financial Statements”:

Tangible objects or intangible rights carrying probable future benefits, owned by an enterprise are
calledassets.

Alpha Ltd. sells these empty bottles by calling tenders. It means further benefits are accrued on its sale.
Therefore, empty bottles are assets for the company.

As per AS 2, inventories are assets held for sale in the ordinary course of business.

Inventory of empty bottles existing on the Balance Sheet date is the inventory and Alpha Ltd. has
detailed controlled recording and accounting procedure which duly signify its materiality.

Thus, inventory of empty bottles cannot be considered as scrap and should be valued as inventory in
accordance with AS 2.
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Which item of inventory is under the scope of AS 2 (Revised)?

a. WIP arising under construction con- b. Raw materials

tracts

Cc. Shares d. Debentures held as stock in trade
Ans: (b)

Materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written downbelow-
cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be

a. Sold at or above cost b. Sold above cost

c. Soldlessthan cost d. Sold at market value(where mar-
ket value ismore than cost)

Ans: (a)

Question 24

All of the following costs are excluded while computing value of inventories except?

a. Selling and Distribution costs b. Allocated fixed production overheads
basedon normal capacity

c. Abnormal wastage d. Storage costs (which is necessary
part of theproduction process)

Ans: (b)

Identify the statement(s) which is/are incorrect.

a. Storage costs which is a necessary part of the production process isincluded in in-
ventoryvaluation.

b. Administration overheads are never included in inventory valuation.

c. Full amount of variable production overheads incurred are included in inventory val-
uation.

d. Administration overheads are always included in inventory valuation.

Ans: (b)
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Theoretical Questions Answers
.|

“In determining the cost of inventories, it is appropriate to exclude certain costs and rec-
ognise them as expenses in the period in which they are incurred”.Provide examples of
such costs as per AS 2 (Revised) ‘Valuation of Inventories’.

Answers 26

As per AS 2 (Revised) ‘Valuation of Inventories’, certain costs are excluded fromthe cost of the inventories
and are recognised as expenses in the period in which incurred. Examples of such costs are:
abnormal amount of wasted materials, labour, or other production costs;

a) storage costs, unless those costs are necessary in the production process prior to a
further production stage;

b) administrative overheads that do not contribute to bringing the inventories to their
present locationand condition; and

¢) selling and distribution costs.
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Practical Questions Answers
.|

Questions 27

Capital Cables Ltd., has a normal wastage of 4% in the production process. During the year 20X1-20X2
the Company used 12,000 MT of raw material costing Z 150 per MT. At the end of the year 630 MT of
wastage was in stock. The accountant wants to know how this wastage is to be treated in the books.

Explain in the context of AS 2 (Revised) the treatment of normal loss and abnormal loss and also
findout the amount of abnormal loss, if any.

Answers 27

As per AS 2 (Revised) ‘Valuation of Inventories’, abnormal amounts of wasted materials, labour and
other production costs are excluded from cost of inventories and such costs are recognised as ex-
penses in theperiod in which they are incurred. The normal loss will be included in determining the
cost of inventories(finished goods) at the year end.

Amount of Abnormal Loss:

Material used 12,000 MT @150 = g18,00,000
Normal Loss (4% of 12,000 MT) 480 MT

Net quantity of material 11,520 MT

Abnormal Loss in quantity 150 MT

Abnormal Loss 23,437.50

[150 units @ Z 156.25 (Z 18,00,000/11,520)

Amount g 23,437.50 will be charged to the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Mr. Mehul gives the following information relating to items forming part of inventory as on 31-3-
20X1. His factory produces Product X using Raw material A.

(i) 600 units of Raw material A (purchased @ 2 120). Replacement cost of raw ma-
terial A as on 31-3-20X1 is Z 90 per unit.

(i) 500 units of partly finished goods in the process of producing X and costincurred
till date 2 260 perunit. These units can be finished next year by incurring addi-
tional cost of 60 per unit.

(i) 1500 units of finished Product X and total cost incurred 320 per unit. Expected
selling price ofProduct X is 300 per unit.

Determine how each item of inventory will be valued as on 31-3-20X]1. Also calculate the
value of total inventory as on 31-3-20XI1.

Answers 28

As per AS 2 (Revised) “Valuation of Inventories”, materials and other supplies held for use in the
production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will
beincorporated are expected to be sold at cost or above cost. However, when there has been a
decline inthe price of materials and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed
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net realisable value, the materials are written down to net realisable value. In such circumstances, the
replacement cost ofthe materials may be the best available measure of their net realisable value. In
the given case, selling price of product X is € 300 and total cost per unit for production is  320.

Hence the valuation will be done as under:

() 600 units of raw material will be written down to replacement cost as market val-
ue of finishedproduct is less than its cost, hence valued at 90 per unit.

(i) 500 units of partly finished goods will be valued at 240 per unit i.e. lower of cost
(2 260) or Netrealisable value g 240 (Estimated selling price Z 300 per unit less ad-
ditional cost of  60).

(iii) 1,500 units of finished product X will be valued at NRV of 300 per unit since it is lower
than cost e

320 of product X.

Valuation of Total Inventory as on 31.03.20X1:

Units | Cost NRV/ Value = units x cost or
(2) Replacement NRVwhicheveris less
(C))
cost

Raw material A 600 120 90 54,000
Partly finished goods 500 260 240 1,20,000
Finished goods X 1,500 320 300 4,50,000
Value of Inventory 6,24,000

Questions 29

on 31st March 20X1, a business firm finds that cost of a partly finished unit on that date is  530. The unit
can be finished in 20X1-X2 by an additional expenditure of Z 310. The finished unit can be sold for 750
subject to payment of 4% brokerage on selling price. The firm seeks your advice regarding the amount
at which the unfinished unit should be valued as at 31st March, 20X1 for preparation of finalaccounts.
Assume that the partly finished unit cannotbe sold in semi-finished form and its NRV is zerowithout pro-
cessing it further.
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Answers 29
Valuation of unfinished unit

4

Net selling price 750
Less: Estimated cost of completion (310)
440

Less: Brokerage (4% of 750) (30)
Net Realisable Value 410
Cost of inventory 530
Value of inventory (Lower of cost and net realisable value) 410

Question 30 (lllustration)

The company deals in three products, A, Band C, which are neither similar norinterchangeable. At the
time of closing of its account for the year 20 X1-X2, the Historical Cost and Net Realisable Value of the
items of closing stock are determined as follows:

Items Historical Cost (2 in lakhs) Net Realisable Value (Zin lakhs)
A 40 28
B 32 32
C 16 24

What will be the value of closing stock?

Answers 30

As per AS 2 (Revised) on ‘Valuation of Inventories’, inventories should be valued at the lower of cost
andnet realisable value. Inventories should be written down to net realisable value on an item-by-
item basis in the given case.

Items Historical Net Realisable Value Valuation of closing
Cost (zinlakhs) stock (Zinlakhs)
(Zinlakhs)
A B 40 28 28
c 32 32 32
16 24 16
88 84 76

Hence, closing stock will be valued at 2 76 lakhs.
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Question 31 (lllustration)

X Co. Limited purchased goods at the cost of 40 lakhs in October, 20X1. Till March, 20X2, 75% of the
stocks were sold. The company wants to disclose closing stock at 10 lakhs. The expected sale value is 211
lakhs and a commission at10% on sale is payable to the agent. Advise, what is the correct closing stock
to be disclosed as at 31.3.20X2.

Answers 31

As per AS 2 (Revised) “Valuation of Inventories”, the inventories are to be valued at lower of cost or net
realisable value.

In this case, the cost of inventory is Z 10 lakhs. The net realisable value is 11,00,000 90% = Z 9,90,000. So,

Question 32 (lllustration)

In a production process, normal waste is 5% of input. 5,000 MT of input were put in process resulting in
wastage of 300 MT. Cost per MT of input is 1,000. The entire quantity of waste is on stock at the yearend.
State with reference to Accounting Standard, how will you value the inventories in this case?

Answers 32

As per AS 2 (Revised), abnormal amounts of wasted materials, labour and other production costs are
excluded from cost of inventories and such costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they
are incurred.

In this case, normal waste is 250 MT and abnormal waste is 50 MT. The cost of 250 MT will be included in
determining the cost of inventories (finished goods) at the year end. The cost of abnormal waste (50 MTx
1,052.6315 = Z 52,632) will be charged to the profit and loss statement.

Cost per MT (Normal Quantity of 4,750 MT) = 50,00,000 / 4,750 = Z 1,052.6315 Total value of inventory =
4,700 MT x 1,052.6315 = T 49,47,368.

Question 33 (lllustration)

You are required to value the inventory per kg of finished goods consisting of:

per kg.
Material cost 200
Direct labour 40
Direct variable overhead 20

Fixed production charges for the year on normal working capacity of 2 lakh kgs is Z 20 lakhs. 4,000 kgs of
finished goods are in stock at the year end.
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Answers 33

In accordance with AS 2 (Revised), the cost of conversion include a systematic allocation of fixed and
variable overheads that are incurred in converting materials into finished goods. The allocation of fixed
overheads for the purpose of their inclusion in the cost of conversion is based on normal capacity of the
production facilities.

Cost per kg. of finished goods:

g

Material Cost 200
Direct Labour 40
Direct Variable Production Overhead 20

20,00,000 10 70

2,00,000
Fixed Production Overhead

270

Hence the value of 4,000 kgs. of finished goods = 4,000 kgs x 270 =10,80,000
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AS 10-Property, Plant & Equipment
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AS 10-Property, Plant & Equipment

Mohan Ltd. has an existing freehold factory property, which it intends to knock down and redevelop.
During the redevelopment period, the company will move its production facilities to another (tem-
porary) site.

The following incremental costs will be incurred:
Setup costs of Rs. 5,00,000 to install machinery in the new location.Rent of Rs. 15,00,000

Removal costs of Rs. 3,00,000 to transport the machinery from the old location to the temporarylo-
cation.

Mohan Ltd. wants to seek your guidance as whether these costs can be capitalized into the cost of the
new building. You are required to advise in line with AS 10 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. (MTP 5
Marks May 20, April 21, March 18, Oct '18 & Apr’'22 & Oct “22) (Old & New SM)

Answer 1

Constructing or acquiring a new asset may result in incremental costs that would have been avoided if
the asset had not been constructed or a